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Approximate date of commencement of the proposed sale of the securities to the public:
As soon as practicable after this Registration Statement becomes effective.

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities
to be Registered

Amount to be
Registered(1)

Proposed Maximum
Offering Price Per
Common Share

Proposed Maximum
Offering Price(2)

Amount of
Registration Fee(3)

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share 2,100,392 N/A $70,905,531 $7,586.89

(1)
Represents the maximum number of shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock, par value $0.01 per share, estimated to be issuable upon the completion of
the merger of Cascade Acquisition Corporation, a Minnesota corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp, with and into United Financial
Corporation, a Minnesota corporation, based on the number of shares of United common stock, no par value, outstanding or reserved for issuance under
various plans, immediately prior to the merger and the exchange of each such share of United common stock for 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp
common stock.

(2)
Pursuant to Rule 457(f), and solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee, the proposed maximum offering price per share is based upon the
aggregate market value on November 24, 2006 of the shares of United Financial Corp. common stock expected to be cancelled in the merger and
computed as the product of (1) $23.04, the average of the high and low prices per share of United Financial Corp. common stock on November 24,
2006, as quoted on the Nasdaq Global Market, and (2) 3,077,497, the maximum number of shares of United Financial Corp. common stock which may
be exchanged in the merger.

(3)
Determined in accordance with Section 6(b) of the Securities Act at a rate equal to $107.00 per $1,000,000 of the proposal maximum aggregate
offering price. The fee has been previously paid.

        If the securities being registered on this Form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General
Instruction G, check the following box.    o

        If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act
"), check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.    o

        If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act
registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.    o

THE REGISTRANT HEREBY AMENDS THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT ON SUCH DATE OR DATES AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO
DELAY ITS EFFECTIVE DATE UNTIL THE REGISTRANT SHALL FILE A FURTHER AMENDMENT WHICH SPECIFICALLY STATES THAT
THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL THEREAFTER BECOME EFFECTIVE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 8(a) OF THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON SUCH DATE AS THE
COMMISSION, ACTING PURSUANT TO SAID SECTION 8(a), MAY DETERMINE.
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PRELIMINARY DRAFT DATED DECEMBER 22, 2006, SUBJECT TO COMPLETION

The information in this document is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell the securities offered by this document until the
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This document is not an offer to sell these
securities, and we are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities, in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

PROPOSED MERGER�YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

Dear Shareholder:

        We are pleased to report that the board of directors of United Financial Corp. has unanimously approved a strategic merger of United
Financial Corp. into a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. Before we can complete the merger, we must obtain the approval of the
shareholders of United. We are sending you this document to ask you to vote in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

        In the merger, a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp will merge with and into United, and United will survive the merger as a wholly
owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. If the merger is completed, United shareholders will receive 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock
for each share of United common stock held immediately prior to the merger.

        Based on the closing price of U.S. Bancorp common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on November 3, 2006, the last trading day
before public announcement of the merger, the 0.6825 exchange ratio represented approximately $22.91 in value for each share of United
common stock. Based on the closing price of U.S. Bancorp common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on December 21, 2006, the latest
practicable date before the date of this document, the 0.6825 exchange ratio represented approximately $24.86 in value for each share of United
common stock. You should obtain current market quotations for both U.S. Bancorp common stock and United common stock. U.S. Bancorp's
common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "USB." United common stock is reported on the Nasdaq Global
Market under the symbol "UBMT."

        The merger is intended to be generally tax-free to United shareholders other than with respect to any cash received instead of fractional
shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock.

        We cannot complete the merger unless United shareholders approve and adopt the merger agreement. United will hold a shareholders'
meeting to vote on this merger proposal. Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting, please submit your
proxy with voting instructions in accordance with the instructions contained in this document. If you do not vote, it will have the same effect as
voting against the merger.

The United Board of Directors Unanimously Recommends
That You Vote "FOR" Approval and Adoption of the Merger Agreement

        This document describes the special meeting, the merger, the documents related to the merger, and other related matters. Please read this
entire document carefully. You can also obtain information about U.S. Bancorp and United from documents that U.S. Bancorp and United
have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Kurt R. Weise
Chairman of the Board

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved the U.S. Bancorp
common stock to be issued under this proxy statement/prospectus or determined if this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or
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adequate. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

        The securities to be issued in the merger are not savings or deposit accounts and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or any other governmental agency.

        The date of this proxy statement/prospectus is December 22, 2006, and it is first being mailed to United shareholders on or about
December 26, 2006.
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UNITED FINANCIAL CORP.
120 First Avenue North, Great Falls, Montana 59403

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON JANUARY 25, 2007

        United Financial Corp. will hold a special meeting of United shareholders at the La Quinta Inn, 600 River Drive South, Great Falls,
Montana, at 12:00 P.M. Mountain Time, on January 25, 2007 to consider and vote upon the following matters:

�
a proposal to approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, by and among U.S. Bancorp, Cascade Acquisition
Corporation and United Financial Corp., dated as of November 6, 2006, as it may be amended from time to time, pursuant to
which Cascade Acquisition Corporation will merge with and into United Financial Corp.;

�
a proposal to approve the adjournment of the United special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional
proxies; and

�
such other business as may properly come before the special meeting of shareholders or any adjournment or postponement
of the meeting.

        Upon completion of the merger, United will be a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp, and each share of United common stock will
be converted into 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock. Your attention is directed to the proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this
notice for a complete discussion of the merger. A copy of the merger agreement is included as Annex A to the accompanying proxy
statement/prospectus.

        The board of directors has fixed the close of business on December 18, 2006 as the record date for the United special meeting. United
shareholders of record at such time are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the United special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of
the special meeting.

Whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting, please submit your proxy with voting instructions. To submit your proxy by
mail, please complete, sign, date and return the accompanying proxy card in the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope.
Alternatively, you may use the toll-free telephone number indicated on the proxy card to vote by telephone or the website indicated on the proxy
card to vote on the internet. This will not prevent you from voting in person, but will help secure a quorum and reduce solicitation costs. Any
holder of United common stock present at the special meeting may vote in person instead of by proxy, thereby canceling any previous proxy. A
proxy may be revoked in writing at any time before the special meeting.

        The United board of directors has unanimously approved the merger agreement and unanimously recommends that United shareholders
vote "for" approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Kurt R. Weise
Chairman of the Board
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Your vote is important. Please complete, sign, date and return your proxy card, or vote via phone or
the Internet promptly, whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting.
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REFERENCES TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

        This document incorporates important business and financial information about U.S. Bancorp from documents that are not included in or
delivered with this document. You can obtain documents incorporated by reference in this document and other filings of United and U.S.
Bancorp by requesting them in writing or by telephone from the appropriate company at the following addresses:

United Financial Corp.
120 First Avenue North,

Great Falls, Montana 59403
Attention: Kevin P. Clark
Telephone: (406) 727-6106

U.S. Bancorp
800 Nicollet Mall

Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402
Attention: Judith T. Murphy
Telephone: (612) 303-0783

        You will not be charged for any of these documents that you request. United shareholders requesting documents should do so by
January 19, 2007 in order to receive them before the meetings.

        See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 150.

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference into this document to vote on the merger
agreement. No one has been authorized to provide you with information that is different from that contained in, or incorporated by
reference into, this document. This document is dated December 22, 2005. You should not assume that the information contained in, or
incorporated by reference into, this document is accurate as of any date other than that date. Neither our mailing of this document to
United shareholders nor the issuance by U.S. Bancorp of common stock in connection with the merger will create any implication to the
contrary.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETING AND THE MERGER

Q:
What Am I Being Asked To Vote On?

A:
United shareholders are being asked to approve and adopt a merger agreement entered into among U.S. Bancorp, Cascade Acquisition
Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp formed for the purpose of the merger, and United Financial Corp. In the
merger, Cascade Acquisition Corporation will be merged with and into United Financial Corp., and United Financial Corp. will
survive the merger as a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp.

Q:
Why Is The United Board of Directors Recommending The Merger?

A:
The United board believes that the merger is advisable, fair to and in the best interest of United and its shareholders.

Q:
Why Is My Vote Important?

A:
The affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of United is required to approve and adopt the
merger agreement. Accordingly, if a United shareholder fails to vote or abstains, this will have the same effect as a vote against
approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

Q:
What Will I Receive For My United Common Stock If The Merger Is Completed?

A:
You will receive 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock for each of your shares of United common stock, and cash in lieu of
any fractional share of U.S. Bancorp common stock.

Q:
What Will I Receive For My United Stock Options If The Merger Is Completed?

A:
For each share of United common stock subject to a stock option, you will receive a cash payment equal to the excess, if any, of the
cash value at the completion of the merger of 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock over the exercise price of the stock option,
less any applicable withholding tax and without interest.

Q:
When Do You Expect To Complete The Merger?

A:
We are working to complete the merger as quickly as possible. We cannot complete the merger until a number of conditions are
satisfied, including approval of the merger by our shareholders and by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. We
expect to complete the merger in the first quarter of 2007, assuming these and other approvals are received.

Q:
Do I Have Appraisal Rights?

A:
No. Under Minnesota law, United's state of incorporation, United shareholders do not have appraisal rights in connection with the
merger.

Q:
What Do I Need To Do Now?

A:
After you have carefully read this document, indicate on your proxy card how you want your shares to be voted. Then complete, sign,
date and mail your proxy card in the enclosed postage paid return envelope as soon as possible. Alternatively, you may vote by
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telephone or the internet. This will enable your shares to be represented and voted at the United special meeting.

Q:
If My Shares Are Held In Street Name By My Broker, Will My Broker Automatically Vote My Shares For Me?

A:
No. Without instructions from you, your broker will not be able to vote your shares. You should instruct your broker to vote your
shares, following the directions your broker provides. Please check the voting form used by your broker to see if it offers telephone or
internet voting.

1
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Q:
What If I Fail To Instruct My Broker?

A:
If you fail to instruct your broker to vote shares held in "street name," the resulting broker non-vote will have the same effect as a vote
against approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

Q:
Can I Change My Vote?

A:
Yes. If you have not voted through your broker, there are three ways you can change your vote after you have submitted your proxy
(whether by mail, telephone or the Internet):

�
First, you may send a written notice to the Chairman of United, stating that you would like to revoke your proxy.

�
Second, you may complete and submit a new proxy card or vote again by telephone or the internet. Your latest vote actually
received by United before the special meeting will be counted, and any earlier votes will be revoked.

�
Third, you may attend the United special meeting and vote in person. Any earlier proxy will thereby be revoked. However,
simply attending the meeting without voting will not revoke an earlier proxy you may have given.

If you have instructed a broker to vote your shares, you must follow the directions you receive from your broker in order to change or
revoke your vote.

Q:
Should I Send In My Share Certificates Now?

A:
No. Please do NOT send in your share certificates at this time. After the merger is completed, you will be provided with a letter of
transmittal explaining what you must do to exchange your United share certificates for merger consideration.

Q:
Whom Should I Call With Questions?

A:
If you have questions about the merger or the special meeting or you need additional copies of this document, or if you have questions
about the process for voting or if you need a replacement proxy card, you should contact:

Kevin P. Clark
Telephone: (406) 727-6106

Q:
Where Can I Find More Information About The Companies?

A:
You can find more information about U.S. Bancorp and United from the various sources described under "Where You Can Find More
Information" on page 150.

2
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information from this document. It does not contain all of the information that may be important
to you. We urge you to read carefully the entire document and the other documents to which we refer in order to understand fully the
merger and the related transactions. In addition, we incorporate by reference into this document important business and financial
information about U.S. Bancorp. You may obtain the information incorporated by reference into this document without charge by
following the instructions in the section entitled "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 150. Each item in this summary
refers to the page of this document on which that subject is discussed in more detail.

United Will Become a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of US Bancorp (Page 16)

        We encourage you to read the merger agreement, which is attached as Annex A to this document. The merger agreement provides that
Cascade Acquisition Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp formed for the purpose of the merger which we sometimes refer
to as "merger subsidiary," will be merged with and into United. United will survive the merger as a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of U.S.
Bancorp, and the separate corporate existence of merger subsidiary shall cease.

What You Will Receive in the Merger (Page 16)

        Upon completion of the merger, each United shareholder will receive 0.6825 of shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock for each share of
United common stock held immediately prior to the merger. We sometimes refer to this ratio as the "exchange ratio." The aggregate number of
shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock to which a United shareholder will be entitled upon completion of the merger will equal 0.6825
multiplied by the number of shares of United common stock held by that United shareholder. However, U.S. Bancorp will not issue any
fractional shares. United shareholders entitled to a fractional share will instead receive an amount in cash equal to the fraction of a whole share
of U.S. Bancorp common stock to which such shareholder would otherwise be entitled multiplied by the average closing sale price of U.S.
Bancorp common stock on the five New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, trading days immediately prior to the date on which the merger is
completed. As an example, a holder of 100 shares of United common stock would receive 68 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock and an
amount of cash equal to the product of 0.25 and the average closing sale price of U.S. Bancorp common stock on the five NYSE trading days
prior to the date on which the merger is completed.

The market prices of both United common stock and U.S. Bancorp common stock will fluctuate prior to the merger. You should obtain
current stock price quotations for United common stock and U.S. Bancorp common stock.

The United Board of Directors Unanimously Recommends that You Vote "FOR" the Approval and Adoption of The Merger Agreement
(Page 19)

        The board of directors of United believes that the merger is in the best interests of United and its shareholders and has unanimously
approved the merger agreement. For the factors considered by the United board of directors in reaching its decision to approve the merger
agreement, see the section entitled "The Merger�United's Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of United's Board of Directors."

United's Financial Advisor Has Provided an Opinion to the United Board of Directors as to the Fairness of the Exchange Ratio, from a
Financial Point of View, to United Shareholders (Page 21)

        In deciding to approve the merger, the United board of directors considered the opinion of its financial advisor, Howe Barnes Hoefer &
Arnett, which we sometimes refer to as Howe Barnes, which

3
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was given to the United board of directors on November 6, 2006, that, as of the date of such opinion and based upon and subject to the
assumptions, qualifications and limitations described in the opinion, the exchange ratio pursuant to the merger agreement was fair from a
financial point of view to the holders of United common stock. A copy of this opinion is attached to this document as Annex C. United
shareholders should read the opinion completely and carefully to understand the assumptions made, matters considered and limitations on the
review undertaken by Howe Barnes in providing its opinion.

Certain Executive Officers and Directors Have Financial Interests in the Merger (Page 29)

        Some members of United's management and the United Board of Directors have interests in the merger that are in addition to or different
from their interests as United shareholders. These interests exist because of rights they may have under existing supplemental retirement
agreements with United or its subsidiaries and United's 2000 Long-Term Incentive and Stock Option Plan, and, in the case of Kevin Clark and
Steven Feurt, pursuant to the terms of retention and noncompetition agreements with United and U.S. Bancorp entered into in connection with
the merger agreement. The United Board of Directors was aware of these interests and considered them in approving the merger agreement and
the merger.

The Largest Shareholder of United Has Agreed to Vote in Favor of the Merger (Page 47 and Annex B)

        As in inducement for U.S. Bancorp to enter into the merger agreement, the largest shareholder of United, John M. Morrison, has agreed
with United that the shares of United that he beneficially owns will be voted in favor of the merger and that he will not support any other merger
proposal by a third party. Because the shares subject to this support agreement represent approximately 32.50% of the outstanding shares of
United common stock as of the record date, this support agreement may have the effect of discouraging a competing offer to acquire United.

Regulatory Approvals We Must Obtain for the Merger (Page 32)

        We cannot complete the merger unless we file an application and obtain the prior approval of the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System or receive a waiver from the application requirement. We have made or will make the necessary filings with the Federal
Reserve Board. We also have made or will make filings with various state banking departments, antitrust authorities and several other regulatory
agencies.

        Although we currently believe we should be able to obtain these regulatory approvals in a timely manner, we cannot be certain when or if
we will obtain them or, if obtained, whether they will contain terms, conditions or restrictions not currently contemplated that will be detrimental
to the combined company after the completion of the merger.

Completion of the Merger Is Subject to Satisfying Several Conditions (Page 38)

        United's and U.S. Bancorp's respective obligations to complete the merger are subject to the fulfillment or waiver of certain conditions,
including:

�
the approval and adoption of the merger agreement by United shareholders;

�
the receipt of governmental and regulatory approvals;

�
the receipt of all other notices, consents and waivers from third parties, except as would not reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on United or U.S. Bancorp;

�
the absence of any judgment or law prohibiting or making illegal the merger;

4
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�
the effectiveness of the registration statement pursuant to which the U.S. Bancorp common stock will be registered;

�
the authorization for listing by the NYSE of the shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock to be issued in connection with the
merger;

�
the truth and correctness of the other party's representations and warranties, subject to the standard of materiality in the
merger agreement;

�
the other party's performance in all material respects of all the obligations required to be performed by it under the merger
agreement; and

�
the receipt by each party from its legal advisor of a written legal opinion with respect to certain tax matters.

        U.S. Bancorp's obligation to complete the merger is subject to the following additional conditions:

�
the absence of any condition to any regulatory approval of the merger that could have a material adverse effect on United or
U.S. Bancorp, in each case as measured on a scale relative to United; and

�
the continued employment of certain senior executives of United, and the absence of any notice of termination from these
executives prior to the completion of the merger.

        We cannot be certain when, or if, the conditions to the merger will be satisfied or waived, or that the merger will be completed.

When We Can Terminate the Merger Agreement (Page 40)

        United and U.S. Bancorp may agree in writing to terminate the merger agreement before completing the merger, even after approval and
adoption of the merger agreement by United shareholders, if a majority of the board of directors of each of United and U.S. Bancorp votes to do
so.

        In addition, either U.S. Bancorp or United may decide to terminate the merger agreement in various circumstances, including the following:

�
if there is an uncured breach of the other party's representations, warranties or covenants that would result in the failure of
the related closing conditions;

�
if any of the required regulatory approvals are denied and the denial is final and nonappealable, or any governmental entity
enjoins or prohibits the merger and the injunction or prohibition is final and nonappealable;

�
if the merger has not been completed by June 30, 2007; or

�
if holders of shares representing a majority of the common stock of United fail to approve the merger at the special meeting.

        In addition, U.S. Bancorp may terminate the merger agreement if United fails to recommend approval of the merger to its shareholders or
breaches its non-solicitation covenant or its obligation to use reasonable best efforts to obtain its shareholders' approval, and United may
terminate the merger agreement if the U.S. Bancorp share price declines to below $25.18, the percentage decline is at least 20 percentage points
greater than the decline of the PHLX/KBW Bank Sector Index and U.S. Bancorp does not elect to increase the exchange ratio based on a
formula prescribed in the merger agreement.

You Do Not Have Statutory Appraisal Rights in the Merger (Page 37)
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        Under Minnesota law, United shareholders are not entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the merger.

5
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United Special Meeting (Page 13)

        The United special meeting will be held on January 25, 2007, at 12:00 P.M. Mountain Time, at the La Quinta Inn, 600 River Drive South,
Great Falls, Montana. At the United special meeting, United shareholders will be asked:

�
to approve and adopt the merger agreement;

�
to approve the adjournment of the United special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies; and

�
to act on such other business as may properly come before the United special meeting.

        Record Date.    United shareholders may cast one vote at the United special meeting for each share of United common stock that was
owned at the close of business on December 18, 2006. At that date, there were 3,077,497 shares of United common stock entitled to be voted at
the special meeting.

        As of the United record date, directors and executive officers of United and their affiliates had the right to vote 263,094 shares of United
common stock, or 8.5% of the outstanding United common stock entitled to be voted at the special meeting.

        Required Vote.    To approve and adopt the merger agreement, the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of United common stock
entitled to vote must vote in favor of the approval and adoption of the merger agreement. A United shareholder's failure to vote, a broker
non-vote or an abstention will have the same effect as a vote against the approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

The Merger Is Intended to Be Generally Tax-Free to United Shareholders (Page 33)

        The merger is intended to qualify as a tax-free reorganization for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and assuming the merger will so
qualify, holders of United common stock generally will not recognize any gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes on the exchange of
their common stock for U.S. Bancorp common stock in the merger, except for any gain or loss that may result from the receipt by United
shareholders of cash instead of a fractional share of U.S. Bancorp common stock. It is a condition to our respective obligations to complete the
merger that U.S. Bancorp and United each receives a legal opinion that the merger will so qualify.

        To review the tax consequences to United shareholders in greater detail, see "The Merger�Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences
of the Merger" beginning on page 33.

Comparative Market Prices and Dividends (Page 140)

        United common stock is reported on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol "UBMT." U.S. Bancorp common stock is quoted on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "USB." The following table sets forth the closing sale prices per share of United common stock
and U.S. Bancorp common stock on November 3, 2006, the last trading day before we announced the merger, and on December 21, 2006, the
last practicable trading day before the distribution of this document.

United Common
Stock

U.S. Bancorp
Common
Stock

November 3, 2006 $ 20.75 $ 33.57
December 21, 2006 $ 24.85 $ 36.43
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Our Companies (Pages 48 and 136)

United Financial Corp.

        United Financial Corp. is a bank holding company headquartered in Great Falls, Montana, with operations in 12 Montana communities.
United was organized as a Minnesota corporation in 1996. United's banking business in Montana is conducted through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Heritage Bank, a Montana corporation established in 1923. United had assets of approximately $418 million, deposits of
approximately $311 million and stockholders' equity of approximately $33 million at September 30, 2006.

        United's principal offices are located at 120 First Avenue North, Great Falls, Montana 59401, and its telephone number is (406) 727-6106.

U.S. Bancorp

        U.S. Bancorp is a multi-state financial holding company headquartered in Minneapolis, Minnesota. U.S. Bancorp was incorporated in
Delaware in 1929 and operates as a financial holding company and a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956.
U.S. Bancorp provides a full range of financial services, including lending and depository services, cash management, foreign exchange and
trust and investment management services. It also engages in credit card services, merchant and automated teller machine ("ATM") processing,
mortgage banking, insurance, brokerage and leasing.

        U.S. Bancorp's banking subsidiaries are engaged in the general banking business, principally in domestic markets. The subsidiaries range in
size from $28 million to $134 billion in deposits and provide a wide range of products and services to individuals, businesses, institutional
organizations, governmental entities and other financial institutions. Commercial and consumer lending services are principally offered to
customers within the Company's domestic markets, to domestic customers with foreign operations and within certain niche national venues.
Lending services include traditional credit products as well as credit card services, financing and import/export trade, asset-backed lending,
agricultural finance and other products. Leasing products are offered through bank leasing subsidiaries. Depository services include checking
accounts, savings accounts and time certificate contracts. Ancillary services such as foreign exchange, treasury management and receivable
lock-box collection are provided to corporate customers. U.S. Bancorp's bank and trust subsidiaries provide a full range of asset management
and fiduciary services for individuals, estates, foundations, business corporations and charitable organizations.

        U.S. Bancorp had assets of approximately $217 billion, deposits of approximately $121 billion and stockholders' equity of approximately
$21 billion at September 30, 2006.

        U.S. Bancorp's principal executive offices are located at 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402, and its telephone number is
(651) 466-3000.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF UNITED

        Set forth below are highlights from United's consolidated financial data at or for the years ended December 31, 2001 through 2005, and the
nine months ended September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2006. You should read this information in conjunction with United's consolidated
financial statements and related notes, as well as the section entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations," included in United's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, and quarterly report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2006, and from which this information is derived. See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 150.

As of and for the nine
months ended
September 30, As of and for the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data)

Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income $ 10,836 $ 10,082 $ 14,132 $ 13,012 $ 11,853 $ 10,331 $ 9,598
Noninterest income 3,585 3,640 4,549 4,185 6,166 4,647 4,017
Securities gains, net � 1 1 242 18 1 125

Total net revenue 14,421 13,723 18,682 17,439 18,037 14,979 13,740
Noninterest expense 9,036 8,663 11,787 11,089 11,492 9,747 8,795
Provision for credit losses 175 150 230 70 778 1,115 1,387

Income from continuing operations before taxes 5,210 4,910 6,665 6,280 5,767 4,117 3,558
Applicable income taxes 1,990 1,860 2,525 2,362 1,938 1,562 1,411

Income from continuing operations 3,220 3,050 4,140 3,918 3,829 2,555 2,147
Discontinued operations (after-tax) � � � � 891 400 228

Net income $ 3,220 $ 3,050 $ 4,140 $ 3,918 $ 4,720 $ 2,955 $ 2,375
Per Common Share
Earnings per share from continuing operations $ 1.05 $ .99 $ 1.35 $ 1.29 $ 1.26 $ .84 $ .68
Diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations 1.02 .97 1.32 1.25 1.22 .83 .68
Earnings per share 1.05 .99 1.35 1.29 1. 55 .97 .75
Diluted earnings per share 1.02 .97 1.32 1.25 1.50 .96 .75
Dividends declared per share .69 .67 .90 1.66 .72 . 53 .51
Book value per share 10.79 10.33 10.41 10.06 10.63 10.00 9.38
Market value per share 21.10 20.00 20.75 19.2 21.08 11.73 9.20
Average common shares outstanding 3,073 3,058 3,061 3,043 3,050 3,048 3,145
Average diluted common shares outstanding 3,147 3,145 3,147 3,143 3,139 3,085 3,155
Financial Ratios
Return on average assets 1.06% 1.12% 1.13% 1.18% 1.51% .95% .78%
Return on average common equity 13.4 13.2 13.4 12.7 15.0 10.1 8.2
Net interest margin 3.85 4.03 4.16 4.22 4.03 3.57 3.36
Efficiency ratio (a) 62.7 63.1 63.1 63.6 63.7 65.1 64.0
Average Balances
Loans $ 323,255 $ 280,913 $ 286,726 $ 251,140 $ 219,011 $ 210,961 $ 216,315
Loans held for sale 6,526 6,903 7,386 5,372 12,249 8,667 6,208
Investment securities 42,649 40,535 35,858 40,133 40,083 48,073 50,960
Earning assets 375,245 334,005 339,636 308,505 292,975 289,272 285,570
Assets 404,051 361,600 367,618 331,191 312,870 310,656 304,590
Noninterest-bearing deposits 50,399 45,805 47,618 42,717 36,821 30,679 27,519
Deposits 257,210 222,286 229,964 199,878 195,728 191,108 181,348
Shareholders' equity 32,133 30,792 31,002 30,773 31,557 29,389 28,935
Period End Balances
Loans and loans held for sale $ 340,477 $ 310,589 $ 315,899 $ 270,797 $ 231,062 $ 224,164 $ 222,402
Allowance for credit losses 3,896 3,682 3,751 3,708 3,755 3,113 2,794
Investment securities 39,641 32,407 35,359 38,949 43,279 43,526 53,484
Assets 418,071 380,937 389,547 347,140 304,817 378,073 382,823
Deposits 311,116 302,831 303,691 258,334 227,514 225,230 223,703
Long-term debt 68,558 42,305 49,385 55,385 41,889 49,787 63,103
Shareholders' equity 33,183 31,659 31,978 30,628 32,381 30,476 28,597
Regulatory capital ratios

Tier 1 capital 9.8% 10.6% 10.2% 11.1% 13.4% 11.4% 10.7%
Total risk-based capital 10.9 11.8 11.3 12.3 14.7 12.6 11.9

Leverage 8.4 8.8 8.7 9.3 10.9 8.5 8.1
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(a)
Computed as noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income excluding securities gains (losses), net.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA OF U.S. BANCORP

Set forth below are highlights from U.S. Bancorp's consolidated financial data at or for the years ended December 31, 2001 through 2005,
and the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2006. You should read this information in conjunction with U.S. Bancorp's
consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as the section entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis," included in U.S.
Bancorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, and quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended September 30, 2006, which are incorporated by reference in this document and from which this information is derived. See "Where You
Can Find More Information" on page 150.

As of and for the nine
months ended
September 30, As of and for the year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(Dollars and shares in millions, except per share data)

Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis)(a) $ 5,095 $ 5,303 $ 7,088 $ 7,140 $ 7,217 $ 6,847 $ 6,405
Noninterest income 5,114 4,556 6,151 5,624 5,068 4,911 4,340
Securities gains (losses), net 3 (57) (106) (105) 245 300 329

Total net revenue 10,212 9,802 13,133 12,659 12,530 12,058 11,074
Noninterest expense 4,568 4,399 5,863 5,785 5,597 5,740 6,149
Provision for credit losses 375 461 666 669 1,254 1,349 2,529

Income from continuing operations before taxes 5,269 4,942 6,604 6,205 5,679 4,969 2,396
Taxable-equivalent adjustment 34 23 33 29 28 33 54
Applicable income taxes 1,678 1,573 2,082 2,009 1,941 1,708 818

Income from continuing operations 3,557 3,346 4,489 4,167 3,710 3,228 1,524
Discontinued operations (after-tax) � � � � 23 (23) (45)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (after-tax) � � � � � (37) �

Net income $ 3,557 $ 3,346 $ 4,489 $ 4,167 $ 3,733 $ 3,168 $ 1,479
Per Common Share
Earnings per share from continuing operations $ 1.98 $ 1.82 $ 2.45 $ 2.21 $ 1.93 $ 1.68 $ .79
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 1.95 1.80 2.42 2.18 1.92 1.68 .79
Earnings per share 1.98 1.82 2.45 2.21 1.94 1.65 .77
Diluted earnings per share 1.95 1.80 2.42 2.18 1.93 1.65 .76
Dividends declared per share .99 .90 1.230 1.020 .855 .780 .750
Book value per share 11.30 10.93 11.07 10.52 10.01 9.62 8.58
Market value per share 33.22 28.08 29.89 31.32 29.78 21.22 20.93
Average common shares outstanding 1,784 1,836 1,831 1,887 1,924 1,916 1,928
Average diluted common shares outstanding 1,809 1,862 1,857 1,913 1,936 1,925 1,940
Financial Ratios
Return on average assets 2.24% 2.22% 2.21% 2.17% 1.99% 1.84% .89%
Return on average common equity 23.7 22.5 22.5 21.4 19.2 18.3 9.0
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis) 3.68 4.00 3.97 4.25 4.49 4.65 4.46
Efficiency ratio(b) 44.7 44.6 44.3 45.3 45.6 48.8 57.2
Average Balances
Loans $ 141,059 $ 131,432 $ 133,105 $ 122,141 $ 118,362 $ 114,453 $ 118,177
Loans held for sale 2,062 1,723 1,795 1,608 3,616 2,644 1,911
Investment securities 39,858 42,308 42,103 43,009 37,248 28,829 21,916
Earning assets 185,075 176,851 178,425 168,123 160,808 147,410 143,501
Assets 212,188 201,505 203,198 191,593 187,630 171,948 165,944
Noninterest-bearing deposits 28,666 29,003 29,229 29,816 31,715 28,715 25,109
Deposits 120,456 120,552 121,001 116,222 116,553 105,124 104,956
Short-term borrowings 23,398 18,313 19,382 14,534 10,503 10,116 11,679
Long-term debt 40,462 36,016 36,141 35,115 33,663 32,172 26,088
Shareholders' equity 20,543 19,911 19,953 19,459 19,393 17,273 16,426
Period End Balances
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As of and for the nine
months ended
September 30, As of and for the year ended December 31,

Loans $ 144,408 $ 136,627 $ 137,806 $ 126,315 $ 118,235 $ 116,251 $ 114,405
Allowance for credit losses 2,256 2,258 2,251 2,269 2,369 2,422 2,457
Investment securities 39,520 41,516 39,768 41,481 43,334 28,488 26,608
Assets 216,855 206,895 209,465 195,104 189,471 180,027 171,390
Deposits 120,961 120,795 124,709 120,741 119,052 115,534 105,219
Long-term debt 41,230 36,257 37,069 34,739 33,816 31,582 28,542
Shareholders' equity 20,926 19,864 20,086 19,539 19,242 18,436 16,745
Regulatory capital ratios
Tangible common equity 5.4% 6.2% 5.9% 6.4% 6.5% 5.7% 5.9%
Tier 1 capital 8.8 8.4 8.2 8.6 9.1 8.0 7.8
Total risk-based capital 13.0 12.8 12.5 13.1 13.6 12.4 11.9
Leverage 8.3 7.7 7.6 7.9 8.0 7.7 7.9

(a)
Interest and rates are presented on a fully taxable-equivalent basis utilizing a tax rate of 35 percent.

(b)
Computed as noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis and noninterest income excluding securities
gains (losses), net.
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COMPARATIVE PER SHARE DATA

        The following table sets forth for U.S. Bancorp common stock and United common stock certain historical, pro forma and pro
forma-equivalent per share financial information. The pro forma and pro forma equivalent per share information gives effect to the merger as if
the merger had been effective for the periods, or in the case of book value information as of the dates, presented. The pro forma data in the tables
assumes that the merger is accounted for as an acquisition by U.S. Bancorp of United using the purchase method of accounting. See "The
Merger�Accounting Treatment" on page 36. The information in the following table is based on, and should be read together with, the historical
financial information that we have presented in our prior filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. See "Where You Can Find More
Information." The pro forma information does not reflect anticipated financial benefits or integration costs that may arise as a result of the
merger.

U.S. Bancorp
Historical

United
Historical

Pro Forma
Combined

Per Equivalent U.S.
Bancorp Share

NET INCOME:
For the year ended December 31, 2005:
Basic $ 2.45 $ 1.35 $ 2.45 $ 1.67
Diluted $ 2.42 $ 1.32 $ 2.42 $ 1.65

For the nine months ended September 30, 2006:
Basic $ 1.98 $ 1.05 $ 1.97 $ 1.35
Diluted $ 1.95 $ 1.02 $ 1.95 $ 1.33

CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED:
For the year ended December 31, 2005 $ 1.23 $ 0.90 $ 1.23 $ 0.84

For the nine months ended September 30, 2006 $ 0.99 $ 0.69 $ 0.99 $ 0.68

BOOK VALUE:
As of December 31, 2005 $ 11.07 $ 10.41 $ 11.07 $ 7.56

As of September 30, 2006 $ 11.30 $ 10.79 $ 11.31 $ 7.72
10
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

        This document contains or incorporates by reference a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 regarding U.S. Bancorp and United and may include statements for the period following the completion of the
merger. Statements that are not historical or current facts, including statements about beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements.
These statements often include the words "may," "could," "would," "should," "believes," "expects," "anticipates," "estimates," "intends," "plans,"
"targets," "potentially," "probably," "projects," "outlook" or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements cover, among other things,
the benefits of the merger, including future financial and operating results, U.S. Bancorp's and United's plans, objectives, expectations and
intentions and the future plans and prospects of United and U.S. Bancorp. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties,
and important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated, including:

�
completion of the merger is dependent on, among other things, receipt of approval of United shareholders and regulatory
approvals, the timing of which cannot be predicted with precision and that may not be received at all;

�
expected revenue synergies and cost savings from the merger may not be fully realized or realized within the expected time
frame;

�
the integration of United's business and operations with those of U.S. Bancorp may take longer or be more costly than
anticipated;

�
capital investments may not produce expected growth in earnings anticipated at the time of the expenditure;

�
the merger may be more expensive to complete than anticipated, including as a result of unexpected factors or events;

�
customer and employee relationships and business operations may be disrupted by the merger;

�
changes in general business and economic conditions;

�
changes in interest rates, legal and regulatory developments;

�
increased competition from both banks and non-banks;

�
changes in customer behavior and preferences;

�
changes in technology;

�
the effects of weather conditions in the geographic markets and business areas in which United and U.S. Bancorp operate;

�
the effects of other mergers or acquisitions and related integration; and

�
the effects of critical accounting policies and judgments.

        Because such forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. United shareholders are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements,
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which speak only as of the date of this document or the date of any document incorporated by reference. All subsequent written and oral
forward-looking statements concerning the merger or other matters addressed in this document and attributable to U.S. Bancorp, United or any
person acting on their behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and neither United nor U.S. Bancorp undertakes any obligation to update
them in light of new information or future events.
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        For discussion of these and other risks that may cause actual results to differ from expectations, refer to U.S. Bancorp's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, on file with the SEC, including the sections entitled "Risk Factors" and "Corporate Risk
Profile," and to United's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, on file with the SEC, including the section
entitled "Risk Factors."
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THE UNITED SPECIAL MEETING

Date, Time and Place

        The United special meeting will be held on January 25, 2007 at 12:00 P.M. Mountain Time at the La Quinta Inn, 600 River Drive South,
Great Falls, Montana.

Matters to be Considered

        At the United Special Meeting, United shareholders will be asked to:

�
approve and adopt the merger agreement;

�
approve the adjournment of the United special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies; and

�
transact such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the
meeting.

Proxies

        You should complete and return the proxy card accompanying this document to ensure that your vote is counted at the United special
meeting, regardless of whether you plan to attend the United special meeting. If you are a registered shareholder (that is, you hold stock
certificates registered in your own name), you may also vote by telephone or through the internet, by following the instructions described on
your proxy card. If your shares are held in nominee or "street name" you will receive separate voting instructions from your broker or nominee
with your proxy materials. Although most brokers and nominees offer telephone and internet voting, availability and specific processes will
depend on their voting arrangements. You can revoke the proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the United special meeting by submitting
to Kevin P. Clark written notice of revocation or a properly executed proxy of a later date, or by attending the United special meeting and voting
in person. Written notices of revocation and other communications about revoking United proxies should be addressed to:

United Financial Corp.
120 First Avenue North

Great Falls, Montana 59403
Attention: Kevin P. Clark

(406) 727-6106

        If your shares are held in street name, you should follow the instructions of your broker regarding the revocation of proxies.

        All shares represented by valid proxies that we receive through this solicitation, and that are not revoked, will be voted in accordance with
the instructions on the proxy card. If you make no specification on your proxy card as to how you want your shares voted before signing and
returning it, your proxy will be voted "FOR" approval and adoption of the merger agreement and "FOR" the proposal to adjourn the special
meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies. The United board of directors is currently unaware of any other matters that
may be presented for action at the United special meeting. If other matters properly come before the United special meeting, or at any
adjournment or postponement thereof, we intend that shares represented by properly submitted proxies will be voted, or not voted, by and at the
discretion of the persons named as proxies on the proxy card.

13

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

27



Solicitation of Proxies

        We will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies from you. In addition to solicitation of proxies by mail, we will request that banks, brokers
and other record holders send proxies and proxy material to the beneficial owners of United common stock and secure their voting instructions,
if necessary. We will reimburse the record holders for their reasonable expenses in taking those actions. We have also made arrangements with
D.F. King & Co., Inc. to assist us in soliciting proxies and have agreed to pay them $7,500 plus reasonable expenses for these services. If
necessary, we may also use several of our regular employees, who will not be specially compensated, to solicit proxies from United
shareholders, either personally or by telephone, telegram, facsimile or letter.

Record Date

        The United board of directors has fixed the close of business on December 18, 2006 as the record date for determining the United
shareholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the United special meeting. At that time, 3,077,497 shares of United common stock were
outstanding, held by approximately 1,200 holders of record. As of the record date, directors and executive officers of United and their affiliates
had the right to vote 263,094 shares of United common stock as of the record date, representing less than 9% of the shares entitled to vote at the
United special meeting. United currently expects that its directors and executive officers will vote such shares "FOR" approval and adoption of
the merger agreement.

Quorum and Vote Required

        The presence, in person or by properly executed proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of United common stock is
necessary to constitute a quorum at the special meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted solely for the purpose of determining
whether a quorum is present.

        Approval and adoption of the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of
United common stock entitled to vote at the United special meeting. Approval of the proposal relating to the adjournment of the special meeting,
if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies requires that the votes cast in favor of the proposal exceed the votes cast in opposition.
You are entitled to one vote for each share of United common stock you held as of the record date.

Because the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of United common stock entitled to vote at the
United special meeting is required to approve and adopt the merger agreement, the failure to vote by proxy or in person will have the
same effect as a vote against the merger agreement. Abstentions and broker non-votes also will have the same effect as a vote against the
merger. Accordingly, the United board of directors urges United shareholders to complete, date and sign the accompanying proxy card
and return it promptly in the enclosed postage-paid envelope, or to vote by telephone or the Internet.

        Abstentions, failures to vote and broker non-votes will have no effect on the vote to adjourn the special meeting, if necessary or
appropriate, to solicit additional proxies.

Voting by Telephone or the Internet

        Many shareholders of United have the option to submit their proxies or voting instructions electronically by telephone or the Internet
instead of submitting proxies by mail on the enclosed proxy card. Please note that there are separate arrangements for using the telephone and
the Internet depending on whether your shares are registered in United's stock records in your name or in the name of a brokerage firm or bank.
United shareholders should check their proxy card or the voting
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instructions forwarded by their broker, bank or other holder of record to see which options are available.

        United holders of record may submit their proxies:

�
by telephone, by calling the toll-free number indicated on their proxy card and following the recorded instructions; or

�
through the Internet, by visiting the website indicated on their proxy card and following the instructions.

Voting by Directors and Executive Officers

        At U.S. Bancorp's request as an inducement for U.S. Bancorp to enter into the merger agreement and with the approval of United's board, in
connection with the execution of the merger agreement, John Morrison, United's largest shareholder, entered into a support agreement pursuant
to which he agreed to vote his shares of United common stock FOR approval and adoption of the merger agreement. The outstanding shares of
common stock covered by the support agreement represent approximately 32.5% of the outstanding shares of United common stock as of
December 21, 2006, the latest practicable date before printing of this document.

        On the record date, Mr. Morrison, together with the other directors and executive officers of United, including their affiliates, owned and
were entitled to vote a total of 1,262,920 shares of United common stock or approximately 41% of the shares of United common stock then
outstanding. In addition to Mr. Morrison's contractual obligation each of these other individuals has advised United that he or she intends to vote
all of his or her shares of United common stock FOR approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

Other Business

        United is not currently aware of any business to be acted upon at the special meeting other than the matters discussed in this document.
Under United's bylaws, except as required by law, no business may be brought before the special meeting other than the matters set forth in the
notice of the special meeting, which is provided at the beginning of this document. If other matters do properly come before the special meeting,
or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, United intends that shares of United common stock represented by properly submitted proxies
will be voted by and at the discretion of the persons named as proxies on the proxy card in accordance with their best judgment.
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THE MERGER

        The following discussion contains material information pertaining to the merger. This discussion is a summary only and may not contain all
of the information that is important to you. A copy of the merger agreement is attached to this document as Annex A and is incorporated into
this section by reference. We encourage you to read and review the merger agreement in its entirety as well as the discussion in this document.

Structure

        The merger agreement provides that Cascade Acquisition Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp formed for the purpose
of the merger, which we sometimes refer to as "merger subsidiary," will be merged with and into United. United will survive the merger as a
direct, wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp.

        Each share of United common stock outstanding prior to the merger will be converted, upon completion of the merger, into the right to
receive 0.6825 shares of the common stock of U.S. Bancorp. We sometimes refer to this ratio as the "exchange ratio." Shares of United common
stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the merger will be cancelled.

Background of the Merger

        For the past several years, the board of directors has been considering the costs and risks of remaining a public company. United has a
relatively small shareholder base and there has been relatively little trading in its common stock. Over the last several years, United has been
incurring increased accounting, legal and regulatory expenses related to its public reporting obligations which given its size and relatively small
executive staff were becoming a larger burden. The increased regulatory burden was expected to put increasing pressure on United's operating
performance and require significant management attention over the next several years. The board regularly discussed the fact that United was
not enjoying some of the benefits typically enjoyed by public companies. United was not large enough to cost-effectively use the public markets
to raise capital, and trading in United's common stock has been sufficiently infrequent that investors have reportedly had difficulty selling or
buying shares of common stock.

        At the same time the board has been looking for ways to grow United, including growing assets in Montana while preserving United's asset
quality. The board began to discuss a number of strategic alternatives including de-registering under the Exchange Act, growing larger by
acquiring other banks or merging with a larger institution. As United began its preparation for compliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, it became clear that the process would require United to incur additional expense in engaging internal control
consultants. At a May 2006 board meeting following the annual meeting of shareholders, the directors discussed United's financial condition and
its prospects for future growth in assets, continued asset quality, operating performance and ability to continue paying dividends in light of these
challenges. The board periodically discussed these concerns and the challenges on a confidential basis with Mr. Morrison, United's largest
shareholder.

        At a social function in June 2006, Mr. Morrison and Jack Grundhofer, former U.S. Bancorp chairman and chief executive officer,
informally discussed banking and banking opportunities in Montana. Later in June, 2006, Mr. Weise, United's chairman, met in Minneapolis
with Barry Martin, division president and John Elmore, executive vice president of U.S. Bancorp.

        At the July 2006 board of directors meeting, Mr. Weise discussed the outlook for United's growth in assets and earnings, and challenges
regarding increasing its dividend in the coming years. With these issues and increasing costs associated with Sarbanes-Oxley, Mr. Weise
continued to discuss with board members and the executive management team strategic alternatives open to United.
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        On July 17, 2006, representatives of United and U.S. Bancorp met and continued discussing the possibility of a business combination
between the two companies.

        On August 11, 2006, the board of directors of United held a special meeting to discuss the possibility of a transaction with U.S. Bancorp
and U.S. Bancorp's request to conduct a due diligence investigation of United beyond publicly available information. The board discussed
United's prospects, shareholder liquidity issues and the risks and expense facing United as a small public company, as well as the potential
strategic benefits of aligning with a larger financial institution. The board discussed the need to enter into a confidentiality agreement before
permitting any due diligence investigation and the importance of maintaining confidentiality to avoid disruption to the business. At this meeting
the board also heard from representatives of Lindquist & Vennum, P.L.L.P., United's outside counsel, who provided advice on the process and
fiduciary duties of directors. The board established a special committee to consider a possible transaction with U.S. Bancorp. The special
committee consisted of Mr. Weise, Mr. Morrison and Mr. Murray. The special committee was authorized to meet with counsel and engage an
investment banker firm to render a fairness opinion if necessary in connection with a possible transaction.

        On August 11, United and U.S. Bancorp entered into a confidentiality agreement. On August 14, several members of senior management of
United traveled to Minneapolis and met with several members of senior management of U.S. Bancorp to discuss a possible transaction.

        On August 18, United received a nonbinding letter of intent from U.S. Bancorp expressing an indication of interest in a possible stock for
stock acquisition subject to various contingencies including due diligence, definitive documentation and Mr. Morrison's agreement to vote his
shares in favor of the transaction. For the next several weeks, United provided due diligence information to U.S. Bancorp.

        On September 11, U.S. Bancorp's outside counsel at Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz ("Wachtell Lipton") delivered a draft merger
agreement and support agreement for Mr. Morrison to United. The draft merger and support agreement were provided to each of the directors.

        On September 22, the board of directors met to discuss the merger agreement and support agreement. Representatives of Lindquist &
Vennum and Mr. Morrison were present at the meeting. The board discussed, among other things, the financial aspects of the proposal, the
merger structure, the treatment of options, the proposed covenants between signing and closing the transaction, the ability of United to receive
bids from third parties, the necessity of a fairness opinion, the scope of the representations and warranties, and exceptions to such representations
and warranties, conditions to closing, timing of a possible transaction, grounds for termination and amount of the break-up fee. The board
instructed Lindquist & Vennum to prepare a revised draft merger agreement. The board also authorized Mr. Weise to engage an investment
banker to potentially render a fairness opinion to the board in connection with a proposed transaction.

        On September 29, representatives of Lindquist & Vennum delivered revised versions of the merger agreement and support agreement to
U.S. Bancorp and its counsel at Wachtell Lipton. During the week of October 2�6, Mr. Weise interviewed investment bankers and received
proposals from two firms. On October 5, U.S. Bancorp's counsel at Wachtell Lipton delivered a revised draft of the merger agreement and
support agreement. This revised draft was distributed to the board of directors. On October 6, United engaged Howe, Barnes, Hoefer &
Arnett, Inc. a community bank and thrift-focused investment bank from Chicago.

        On October 16, representatives of United and U.S. Bancorp again met to discuss the proposed transaction, and discuss integration of the
two companies including retention of Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt if an agreement could be reached. On October 23, 2006, Lindquist & Vennum
delivered to U.S. Bancorp and its counsel at Wachtell Lipton revised versions of the merger agreement and support agreement. On October 24,
Mr. Weise updated the directors on the status of the negotiations with
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U.S. Bancorp, the exchange ratio, the treatment of options, the scope of the representations and warranties, the covenants between signing and
closing, termination provisions and the amount and grounds for payment of the break-up fee.

        For the next several days, United and its counsel continued to work on disclosure schedules to the merger agreement. On October 26,
U.S. Bancorp's counsel at Wachtell Lipton delivered a revised draft of the merger agreement and support agreement to United that was
distributed to the board of directors. On October 30, 2006, Wachtell Lipton delivered a revised draft of the merger agreement that was delivered
to the directors together with draft disclosure schedules. On October 31, Lindquist & Vennum delivered a draft of United's disclosure schedules
to U.S. Bancorp and Wachtell Lipton. Between November 1�3, United continued to revise the disclosure schedules. On November 2, United
received a revised draft of the merger agreement and support agreement from Wachtell Lipton that the parties believed to be near final, and
United finalized the disclosure schedules.

        On November 2, the special committee met with representatives of Lindquist & Vennum present, and discussed the status of the
negotiations, reviewed the draft merger agreement, support agreement and disclosure schedules. The special committee discussed, among other
things, the exchange ratio, the representations and warranties, the treatment of options, covenants between signing and closing, receipt of a
fairness opinion, termination provisions and the break-up fee, and retention agreements for Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt and other employee benefits
matters. The special committee also discussed timing and the possibility of reaching a definitive agreement. The special committee agreed to
schedule a full board meeting on November 6 for the entire board to consider approving the transaction and definitive agreements.

        On November 2�3, the parties worked on finalizing the merger agreement and disclosure schedules. On November 2, the directors received a
draft book containing Howe Barnes financial analyses underlying its view concerning the fairness of the consideration to United's shareholders
from a financial point of view. On November 3, the board of directors received revised drafts of the merger agreement, disclosure schedules,
support agreement, draft resolutions and a memorandum from Lindquist & Vennum providing a summary of the merger agreement. On
November 3, Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt agreed to retention and non-competition agreements with United in connection with a possible business
combination with U.S. Bancorp that would provide for aggregate compensation of $130,000 and $125,000 respectively to these executives in the
two-year period following the closing of the merger.

        On November 6, the board of directors met to consider the transaction and receive the opinion and analysis from Howe Barnes.
Representatives of Lindquist & Vennum, certain of United's executive officers and representatives of Howe Barnes and Mr. Morrison were
present. The board of directors received an updated report from Mr. Weise on United's prospects as a stand-alone company. Howe Barnes
reviewed and analyzed for the board of directors, among other matters, the financial aspects of the proposal from U.S. Bancorp and its financial
analyses of the valuation parameters of United. Howe Barnes reviewed with the board of directors its financial analysis of the consideration
payable in the merger and rendered to the board its opinion dated November 6, 2006 that the consideration to be received by holders of United
common stock in the merger is fair from a financial point of view to the holders of United common stock. Management and representatives of
Lindquist & Vennum and Howe Barnes responded to numerous questions from the board of directors.

        After conducting their presentation, representatives of Howe Barnes left the meeting and the board continued to discuss the transaction. The
board of directors discussed, among other matters, the risks and benefits of the proposed transaction and reviewed the proposed transaction, as to
both quantitative and qualitative terms, taking into account the information and analyses provided to the board. The board also reviewed
alternatives to the proposed transaction, including United's prospects as an independent company. Representatives of Lindquist & Vennum
reviewed for the board of
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directors its fiduciary and other legal duties and also reviewed with the board of directors in detail the terms of the merger agreement and other
legal aspects of the proposal by U.S. Bancorp. The board also discussed the support agreement that U.S. Bancorp requested from Mr. Morrison
in connection with the merger agreement. The board discussed these matters with management and then the independent directors of the board
met separately to discuss the proposed transaction. After further deliberation, the board of directors unanimously determined, in light of its
anticipated determination to authorize entry into the proposed merger agreement, to establish a special committee of disinterested directors
consisting of Mr. Murray, Mr. Bloemendahl and Mr. Madison to render certain anti-takeover provisions of Minnesota law inapplicable to the
transaction and to U.S. Bancorp. The special committee of disinterested directors and the full board determined that the merger with
U.S. Bancorp is advisable, fair to and in the best interests of United and its shareholders, and unanimously approved the merger, the merger
agreement and support agreement. Additionally, the board unanimously resolved to recommend that United's shareholders approve and adopt the
merger agreement. The board of directors also unanimously approved amendments to the stock option plan to give effect to certain provisions of
the merger agreement.

        In the afternoon of November 6, United and U.S. Bancorp executed the merger agreement. In connection with the execution of the merger
agreement, John Morrison also entered into a support agreement requiring him, among other things, to vote his United shares in favor of the
merger. In the late afternoon of November 6, 2006, U.S. Bancorp and United issued press releases announcing the merger.

United's Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of United's Board of Directors

        United's board of directors has unanimously determined that the terms of the merger agreement are advisable, fair to and in the best
interests of United and its shareholders and has unanimously approved the merger agreement. Accordingly, our board unanimously
recommends that you vote FOR approval and adoption of the merger agreement.

        In reaching its decision to approve the merger agreement and to recommend that you vote to approve and adopt the merger agreement,
United's board considered a number of factors, including the following:

�
knowledge of, and presentations by management and financial advisors regarding, United's business, operations, financial
condition, earnings and business prospects (as well as the risks involved in achieving those prospects);

�
the challenges facing United in growing its business in its markets while preserving its asset quality and paying dividends;

�
the costs and risks of remaining a public company, United's relatively small shareholder base and relatively infrequent
trading of United's common stock such that shareholders reportedly had difficulty selling or buying more shares of common
stock;

�
the reputation and performance of U.S. Bancorp, the liquidity of its common stock, U.S. Bancorp's dividend payment history
and United board's belief that there was a greater possibility in share price appreciation in U.S. Bancorp common stock
compared to United common stock;

�
increased accounting, legal and regulatory expenses related to United's public reporting obligations, including those arising
out of compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which given United's size and relatively small
executive staff, was becoming a larger burden combined with the fact that United and its shareholders were not enjoying the
advantages of being a public company because United is not large enough to cost-effectively use the public markets to raise
capital;
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�
the fact that under the merger agreement United may continue to declare regular quarterly dividends provided that United
shareholders will not receive more than one regular dividend payment for any single quarter (inclusive of any dividends paid
by U.S. Bancorp after the completion of the merger), a special $0.50 per share dividend prior to the completion of the
merger, and possibly an additional dividend related to documented savings on particular merger-related expenses as agreed
to with U.S. Bancorp;

�
the presentation and opinion of Howe Barnes on November 6, 2006, delivered to United's board to the effect that, as of
November 6, 2006, and based upon and subject to assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered, and
limitations on the review undertaken in connection with the opinion as set forth therein, that the consideration to be received
by holders of United common stock in the merger is fair from a financial point of view to such holders (see "The
Merger�Opinion of the United's Financial Advisor");

�
the financial terms of the merger, including the fact that the merger consideration, based on data as of November 1, 2006 and
including the special dividend of $.50 per share represents:

�
a 217.9% premium of United's price to book value per share;

�
a 227.6% premium of United's price to tangible book value per share;

�
a multiple of 17.2 times United's latest 12-month earnings per share; and

�
a multiple of 15.8 times United's earnings per share for the quarter September 30, 2006 annualized.

�
United's right to terminate the merger agreement if the price of U.S. Bancorp's common stock drops by more than 25% in the
period between signing and closing and the price decline of U.S. Bancorp common stock is also 20 percentage points greater
than any decline of the PHLX/KBW Bank Index, subject to U.S. Bancorp's option to increase the exchange ratio based on a
predetermined formula to restore sufficient value to bring the value to United shareholders to within this threshold;

�
the fact that the merger is expected to qualify as a tax-free exchange of United common stock for U.S. Bancorp common
stock for United shareholders not including fractional shares or dividends;

�
the potential shareholder value from other alternatives available, including the alternative of remaining a stand-alone,
independent company, as well as the risks and uncertainties associated with those alternatives;

�
the terms of the merger agreement, as reviewed by our board with our legal advisors, including consideration of several
specific provisions of the merger agreement, such as (a) the relative treatment of outstanding United shares and options to
purchase United common stock and the risks associated with a fixed exchange ratio given potential fluctuations in U.S.
Bancorp's stock, United's price-based termination right and U.S. Bancorp's fill right in certain circumstances; (b) the limited
conditions to U.S. Bancorp's obligation to complete the merger; (c) the ability of United's board to terminate the merger
agreement in the exercise of fiduciary duties under specified circumstances and upon payment of a termination fee
(recognizing the possible effect that a termination fee has on competing transactions, but believing that U.S. Bancorp would
not have entered into the merger agreement without such a fee provision and that the fee is reasonable for this size of a
transaction); (d) the limited ability of U.S. Bancorp to terminate the agreement; and (e) the provisions related to employee
benefits in the merger agreement; and

�
the likelihood of the merger being approved by the appropriate regulatory authorities.

20

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

34



        After considering these factors, United's board concluded that the right to receive 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock for every
share of United common stock was an attractive price for United shareholders in comparison to the values that United might reasonably achieve
in the foreseeable future as a stand-alone, independent company. United's board believed that this was particularly true in light of the risks and
uncertainties involved in connection with the results that it could expect to achieve on its own. United's board also considered potential
drawbacks or risks relating to the merger, including the following risks and factors:

�
the fact that the fixed exchange ratio and the attendant risk of U.S. Bancorp stock price fluctuation could cause United
shareholders to receive less consideration if U.S. Bancorp's stock price declines in the period between signing and closing;

�
the fact that United has not actively solicited other offers and is prevented from soliciting other offers under the merger
agreement, and the possibility that the $2,800,000 termination fee payable to U.S. Bancorp under specified circumstances
may discourage a competing acquisition proposal;

�
the risks and costs to United if the merger does not close, including possible stock price decline, the diversion of
management and employee attention, potential employee attrition and the potential effect on business and customer
relationships;

�
the fact that United officers and directors have certain interests in the merger that are in addition to their interests as
shareholders of United, which had the potential to influence their views and actions in connection with the merger proposal,
including generally, the retention and non-competition agreements with two of United's executive officers and existing
agreements with Heritage Bank executives; and

�
the restrictions on the conduct of United's business prior to the consummation of the merger, requiring United to conduct its
business subject to specific limitations, which may delay or prevent United from undertaking business opportunities that
may arise pending completion of the merger.

        United's board concluded, however, that these potential drawbacks and risks did not outweigh the benefits of the merger to United
shareholders.

        The foregoing discussion of the information and factors that United's board of directors reviewed in its consideration of the merger is not
intended to be exhaustive, but is believed to include all of the material factors that United's board considered. In view of the variety of factors
and the amount of information considered, United's board did not find it practicable to, and did not make specific assessments of, quantify or
otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors considered in reaching its determination. Although individual members of United's board
may have assigned different weights to different factors, United's board made its determination after considering all of the factors as a whole
and, overall, considered them to be favorable to, and to support its determination.

Opinion of United's Financial Advisor

        United's board of directors engaged Howe Barnes to act as its financial advisor in connection with the merger with U.S. Bancorp. On
November 6, 2006, Howe Barnes delivered its oral opinion to United's board of directors, subsequently confirmed in its written opinion as of
that date, and based upon and subject to the assumptions made, matters considered and qualifications and limitations set forth in the written
opinion, that the merger consideration to be paid by U.S. Bancorp pursuant to the merger agreement was fair from a financial point of view to
holders of United common stock.

        The full text of the written opinion of Howe Barnes dated November 6, 2006, which sets forth the assumptions made, matters considered
and qualifications and limitations on the review undertaken by
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Howe Barnes', is attached as Annex C to this document and is incorporated into this document by reference. The following summary of Howe
Barnes' opinion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the opinion. Shareholders of United are urged to read and should read
the entire opinion carefully. Howe Barnes has consented to the inclusion in this document of its opinion dated November 6, 2006 and of the
summary of that opinion set forth below.

        In preparing its opinion to United's board of directors, Howe Barnes performed various financial and comparative analyses, including those
described below. The summary set forth below does not purport to be a complete description of the analyses underlying Howe Barnes opinion or
the presentation made by Howe Barnes to United's board of directors. The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex analytic process
involving various determinations as to the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial analysis and the application of those methods to
the particular circumstances and, therefore, a fairness opinion is not readily susceptible to partial analysis or summary description. In arriving at
its opinion, Howe Barnes did not attribute any particular weight to any analysis or factor considered by it, but rather made its determination as to
fairness on the basis of its experience and professional judgment after considering the results of all of its analyses. Accordingly, Howe Barnes
believes that its analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of its analyses and factors, or focusing on information
presented in tabular format, without considering all of the analyses and factors or the narrative description of the analyses, would create a
misleading or incomplete view of the process underlying its opinion.

        In performing its analyses, Howe Barnes made numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business, economic,
market and financial conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the control of Howe Barnes. Any estimates contained in the
analyses performed by Howe Barnes are not necessarily indicative of actual values or future results, which may be significantly more or less
favorable than those suggested by such analyses. Additionally, estimates of the value of businesses or securities do not purport to be appraisals
or to reflect the prices at which such businesses or securities might actually be sold. Accordingly, these analyses and estimates are inherently
subject to substantial uncertainty. In addition, as described above, the opinion of Howe Barnes was one of several factors taken into
consideration by United's board of directors in making its determination to approve the merger and receive shares of U.S. Bancorp common
stock in the merger. Consequently, Howe Barnes analyses as described below should not be viewed as determinative of the decision of United's
board of directors with respect to the fairness from a financial point of view of the merger consideration to be paid by U.S. Bancorp to holders of
United common stock.

        In arriving at its opinion, Howe Barnes, among other things:

�
participated in discussions with representatives of United concerning United's financial condition, businesses, assets,
earnings, prospects and regulatory relationships, including discussions with senior management as to its views regarding
future financial performance;

�
reviewed the terms of the merger agreement;

�
reviewed certain publicly available financial statements, both audited (where available) and unaudited, and related financial
information of United as well as other internally generated reports relating to asset/liability management, asset quality, and
similar documents;

�
reviewed certain publicly available financial statements, both audited (where available) and unaudited, and related financial
information of U.S. Bancorp;

�
reviewed certain financial forecasts and projections of United prepared by its management team;

�
reviewed consensus earnings per share estimates for U.S. Bancorp for the years ended December 31, 2006, December 31,
2007 and December 31, 2008 as published by Institutional Brokers Estimates System ("I/B/E/S");
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�
reviewed the publicly available historical price and trading activity for United's and U.S. Bancorp's common stock, including
a comparison of certain financial and stock market information for United and U.S. Bancorp with similar publicly available
information for certain other companies the common stock of which are publicly traded;

�
compared the proposed financial terms of the merger with the financial terms of certain other transactions that it deemed to
be relevant;

�
reviewed the potential pro forma impact of the merger; and

�
reviewed such other information and performed such other studies and analyses as it considered relevant.

        In preparing its opinion, Howe Barnes assumed and relied on the accuracy and completeness of all information supplied or otherwise made
available to it, discussed with or reviewed by or for it, or that was publicly available. Howe Barnes did not assume any responsibility for
independently verifying such information and did not undertake any independent evaluation or appraisal of any of the assets or liabilities of
U.S. Bancorp or United and it was not furnished with any such evaluation or appraisal, nor did it evaluate the solvency or fair value of
U.S. Bancorp or United under any state or federal laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or similar matters. In addition, Howe Barnes did not
assume any obligation to conduct any physical inspection of the properties or facilities of U.S. Bancorp or United. With respect to the financial
forecast information discussed with Howe Barnes by United, Howe Barnes assumed that they had been reasonably prepared and reflected the
best currently available estimates and judgment of the management of United as to the expected future financial performance of United. Howe
Barnes also assumed that the final form of the merger agreement and the support agreement would be substantially similar to the last draft
reviewed by it.

        Howe Barnes' opinion is necessarily based upon market, economic and other conditions as they existed and could be evaluated on, and on
the information made available to Howe Barnes, as of November 1, 2006. Howe Barnes further assumed that in the course of obtaining the
necessary regulatory or other consents or approvals (contractual or otherwise) for the merger, no restrictions, including any divestiture
requirements or amendments or modifications, would be imposed that will have a material adverse effect on the contemplated benefits of the
merger.

        In connection with the preparation of its opinion, Howe Barnes was not authorized by United or the board of directors of United to solicit,
nor did Howe Barnes solicit, third party indications of interest for the acquisition of all or any part of United.

        Pursuant to a letter agreement between United and Howe Barnes, dated as of October 6, 2006, United agreed to pay Howe Barnes a fee of
$125,000 for financial advisory services upon delivery of its opinion. United also agreed to indemnify Howe Barnes and certain related persons
and entities for certain liabilities, including liabilities under the U.S. federal securities laws, related to or arising out of its engagement.

        Howe Barnes has not in the past provided financial advisory and financing services to U.S. Bancorp or United, but may do so in the future.
Howe Barnes may receive fees for the rendering of such services. In addition, in the ordinary course of its business, Howe Barnes may actively
trade the common stock and other securities of U.S. Bancorp and other securities of U.S. Bancorp, for its own account and for the accounts of its
customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a long or short position in such securities.

        Howe Barnes' opinion is addressed to United's board of directors and addresses only the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the
merger consideration to be paid by U.S. Bancorp pursuant to the merger to holders of United common stock. The opinion does not address the
merits of the underlying decision of United to engage in the merger and does not constitute, nor should it be construed as, a
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recommendation to any shareholder of United as to how that shareholder should vote with respect to the merger or any matter related thereto. In
addition, the opinion of Howe Barnes does not address, and Howe Barnes was not asked to address, the fairness to, or any other consideration of,
the holders of any class of securities other than common stock, creditors or other constituencies of United. Howe Barnes did not express any
opinion as to the prices at which the common stock of U.S. Bancorp will trade following the announcement or consummation of the merger.

Howe Barnes Hoefer & Arnett's Financial Analysis

        The following is a summary of the material financial analyses that Howe Barnes performed in connection with its opinion to United's board
of directors dated November 6, 2006. The financial analyses summarized below include information presented in tabular format. In order to
understand fully the financial analyses performed by Howe Barnes, the tables must be read together with the accompanying text of each
summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the financial analyses, and if viewed in isolation could create a misleading
or incomplete view of the financial analyses performed by Howe Barnes. To the extent the following quantitative information reflects market
data, except as otherwise indicated, Howe Barnes based this information on market data as they existed as of November 1, 2006. This
information, therefore, does not necessarily reflect current or future market conditions.

        Calculation of Transaction Value.    Howe Barnes reviewed the terms of the merger. The terms of the merger agreement state that United
shareholders will receive the equivalent of 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock for each share of United common stock. Additionally,
United shareholders will also receive a special dividend of $0.50 per share prior to completion of the transaction. Based on U.S. Bancorp's
closing stock price as of November 6, 2006, Howe Barnes calculated implied merger consideration of $23.51 per share of United common stock.
Howe Barnes also noted that the transaction had an implied aggregate total value of approximately $74.5 million as of November 6, 2006.

        Comparable Companies Analysis.    Howe Barnes reviewed and compared selected financial information of United to publicly available
data for eight publicly traded banks in the Northwest regional area, which includes the following companies:

� Idaho Independent Bank � EvergreenBancorp, Inc.
� Pacific Financial Corporation � Siuslaw Financial Group, Inc.
� Cowlitz Bancorporation � Merchants Bancorp
� Baker Boyer Bancorp � Northwest Bancorporation, Inc.

        The following table compares selected financial information of United with corresponding median data for the above listed comparable
companies. Financial data is as of or for the trailing twelve-month period ending September 30, 2006.

Total
Assets

Return
on

Average
Assets

Return
on

Average
Equity

Equity /
Assets

Tangible
Equity /
Tangible
Assets

($MM) (%) (%) (%) (%)

United Financial Corp. 418 1.07 13.40 7.94 7.62
Comparable Median 340 1.18 12.68 9.20 8.67
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        The following table shows the pricing characteristics of the above-listed comparable companies, which data is based on financial
information as of November 1, 2006.

Price/

Book
Value

Tangible
Book
Value Assets

Trailing Twelve
Month Earnings

(%) (%) (%) (×)

United Financial Corp. 190.0 198.5 15.1 15.0
Comparable Median 215.3 226.3 19.5 17.8

        No company used in the comparable company analyses described above is identical to United, or the pro forma combined company, as the
case may be. Accordingly, an analysis of the results of the foregoing necessarily involves complex considerations and judgments concerning
financial and operating characteristics and other factors that could affect the merger, public trading or other values of the companies to which
they are being compared. Mathematical analyses, such as determining the median values, are not of themselves meaningful methods of using
comparable company data.

        Comparable Merger and Acquisition Transactions and Implied Transaction Pricing Multiples.    Howe Barnes also reviewed the implied
transaction pricing multiples of selected merger and acquisition transactions in three different comparable groups. The selected merger and
acquisition groups included:

�
National bank sellers (located in low growth and less populated markets) since January 1, 2005 that had between
$250 million and $750 million in assets at the time of announcement;

�
Northwest regional (MT, ID, WY, WA, OR) bank sellers since January 1, 2000 that had between $250 million and
$750 million in assets at the time of announcement; and

�
Montana bank sellers since January 1, 2000.

        For these selected merger and acquisition transactions, Howe Barnes used publicly available information to determine:

�
the multiples of the transaction price to both the book value and the tangible book value using the acquired companies' most
recent financial reports at the time of announcement of the transactions;

�
the multiple of the transaction price to the last twelve months earnings at the time of announcement;

�
the multiple of transaction price to total assets; and

�
the implied premium to core deposits.

        The median values of these multiples and premiums were then compared to those calculated for the merger. Howe Barnes considered these
selected merger and acquisition transactions to be reasonably similar, but not identical, to the merger. A complete analysis involves complex
considerations and judgment concerning differences in the selected merger and acquisition transactions and other factors that could affect the
premiums paid in such comparable transactions to which the merger is being compared. Mathematical analysis, such as using the median values,
is not by itself a meaningful method of using selected merger and acquisition transaction data.
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         The following table compares the foregoing calculations for the merger and the median of the foregoing calculations for the selected
merger and acquisition transactions.

Implied Transaction Value as a Multiple of:

U.S. Bancorp /
United
Financial
Corp.(1)

Comparable
Transactions:
National Sellers

Comparable
Transactions:

Northwest Sellers

Comparable
Transactions:
Montana Sellers

Price to book value 217.9% 213.0% 205.4% 176.0%
Price to tangible book value 227.6% 241.8% 205.4% 183.0%
Price to LTM earnings 17.2x 20.5x 21.7x 13.5x
Price to assets 17.8% 19.2% 17.9% 17.7%
Premium to core deposits 16.0% 18.2% 19.1% 11.8%

(1)
Based on financial data as of September 30, 2006.

        Review of U.S. Bancorp's Common Stock Trading Activity.    Howe Barnes reviewed the common stock trading history of U.S. Bancorp
and:

�
Compared its price movement to movements in certain stock indices as well as the average performance of its Super
Regional peer group;1

1

The Super Regional peer group includes: BB&T Corporation, Fifth Third Bancorp, KeyCorp, National City Corporation, PNC
Financial Services Group, Inc., Regions Financial Corporation, SunTrust Banks, Inc., Wachovia Corporation, and Wells Fargo &
Company.

�
Reviewed U.S. Bancorp's stock price movements on a weekly basis over the last twelve months;

�
Compared certain trading multiples of U.S. Bancorp's stock to the average and median multiples of its Super Regional peer
group over the last five years; and

�
Compared the recommendations of equity research analysts covering U.S. Bancorp's common stock to the recommendations
of analysts publishing research on the institutions in the Super Regional peer group.

        The following table compares U.S. Bancorp's price movement to movements in certain stock indices as well as the average performance of
its Super Regional peer group.

One Year(2) Three Year(3) Five Year(4)

Stock Price Performance
Initial
Value

Ending
Value

Initial
Value

Ending
Value

Initial
Value

Ending
Value

U.S. Bancorp 100.0% 114.0% 100.0% 123.8% 100.0% 189.6%
Super Regional peer group 100.0% 112.2% 100.0% 116.6% 100.0% 135.6%
PHLX/KBW Bank Index 100.0% 113.6% 100.0% 120.0% 100.0% 145.8%
S&P 500 Index 100.0% 113.3% 100.0% 130.2% 100.0% 129.1%
NASDAQ Bank Index 100.0% 106.5% 100.0% 118.0% 100.0% 165.6%

(2)
Represents price performance for the one year period ending November 1, 2006.
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(3)
Represents price performance for the three year period ending November 1, 2006.

(4)
Represents price performance for the five year period ending November 1, 2006.
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        The following table compares selected financial information of U.S. Bancorp with corresponding median data for the above listed Super
Regional peer group. Financial data is as of or for the trailing twelve month period ending September 30, 2006.

Total
Assets

Return on
Average
Assets

Return on
Average Equity

Equity /
Assets

Tangible Equity /
Tangible Assets

($MM) (%) (%) (%) (%)

U.S. Bancorp 216,855 2.23 23.01 9.65 5.59
Super Regional peer group 118,524 1.38 15.08 9.47 6.81

        The following table shows the pricing characteristics of the above listed comparable companies, which data is based on financial
information as of November 1, 2006.

Price/

Book
Value

Tangible
Book
Value Assets

Trailing Twelve-Month
Earnings

(%) (%) (%) (x)

U.S. Bancorp 298.3 527.5 27.5 13.1
Super Regional peer group 188.8 288.6 19.8 13.5

        No company used in the comparable company analyses described above is identical to U.S. Bancorp, or the pro forma combined company,
as the case may be. Accordingly, an analysis of the results of the foregoing necessarily involves complex considerations and judgments
concerning financial and operating characteristics and other factors that could affect the merger, public trading or other values of the companies
to which they are being compared. Mathematical analyses, such as determining the median values, are not of themselves meaningful methods of
using comparable company data.

        Discounted Cash Flow Analysis.    Howe Barnes performed a discounted cash flow analysis to estimate a range of present values per share
of United common stock assuming that United performed in accordance with the earnings projections provided by, and reviewed with,
management. The valuation range was determined by adding: (i) the present value of United's free equity cash flows, representing an estimate of
future dividends plus what United could additionally pay out to the shareholders while maintaining a target tangible equity/tangible assets ratio
of 7.50% through December 31, 2011; and (ii) the present value of the terminal value of United common stock. In calculating the terminal value
of United common stock, Howe Barnes applied multiples ranging from 15.0x to 19.0x to forecasted earnings for the year ended December 31,
2011. The equity cash flows and terminal value were then discounted back to present values using discount rates ranging from 10.0% to 14.0%,
which are rates Howe Barnes viewed as the appropriate range to reflect different assumptions regarding the cost of United's equity capital.

        In performing this analysis, Howe Barnes annualized United's net income for 2006. For subsequent years, earnings per share were assumed
to increase annually by 10%, 10%, 5%, 6% and 5% for 2007 through 2011, respectively. The analysis assumed annual balance sheet growth
rates of 6%, 5%, 5%, 6% and 7% for 2007 through 2011 and annual loan growth rates of 10% for United.

        Based on the foregoing criteria and assumptions, Howe Barnes determined that the implied present value of the United common stock
ranged from $20.09 to $28.52 per share.

        Pro Forma Financial Impact.    Based on the equivalent merger consideration of 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock for each
share of United common stock, Howe Barnes analyzed the pro forma per share financial impact of the merger on United's GAAP earnings per
share. This analysis was based on the I/B/E/S consensus earnings per share estimates for U.S. Bancorp for 2006, 2007 and 2008. I/B/E/S is a
recognized data service that monitors and publishes compilations of earnings estimates by selected research analysts regarding companies of
interest to institutional investors. Subsequent to 2008, earnings per share were assumed to increase 10% annually for U.S. Bancorp.
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Howe Barnes annualized United's net income for 2006. Subsequent to 2006, earnings per share were assumed to increase annually by 10%, 10%,
5%, 6% and 5% for 2007 through 2011, respectively. Howe Barnes also made certain assumptions related to purchase accounting adjustments,
cost savings, and transaction costs.

        Based on these assumptions, the merger would be accretive to United's earnings per share by 27.98% in 2007, 27.59% in 2008, 33.03% in
2009, 37.70% in 2010, and 43.86% in 2011.

General

        In conducting its analyses and arriving at its opinions, Howe Barnes utilized a variety of generally accepted valuation methods. The
analyses were prepared for the purpose of enabling Howe Barnes to provide its opinion to the United board of directors as to the fairness, from a
financial point of view of the merger consideration to be paid by U.S. Bancorp pursuant to the merger to holders of United common stock and do
not purport to be appraisals or necessarily to reflect the prices at which businesses or securities actually may be sold, which are inherently
subject to uncertainty. In connection with its analyses, Howe Barnes made, and was provided by the management of United with, numerous
assumptions with respect to industry performance, general business and economic conditions and other matters, many of which are beyond the
control of Howe Barnes, U.S. Bancorp or United. Analyses based on estimates or forecasts of future results are not necessarily indicative of
actual past or future values or results, which may be significantly more or less favorable than suggested by such analyses. Because such analyses
are inherently subject to uncertainty, being based upon numerous factors or events beyond the control of U.S. Bancorp, United or their
respective advisors, neither United nor Howe Barnes nor any other person assumes responsibility if future results or actual values are materially
different from these forecasts or assumptions.

        United retained Howe Barnes based upon Howe Barnes' experience and expertise. Howe Barnes is a nationally recognized investment
banking and advisory firm. Howe Barnes, as part of its investment banking business, is regularly engaged in the valuation of banks and bank
holding companies, thrifts and thrift holding companies, and various other financial services companies in connection with mergers and
acquisitions, negotiated underwritings, competitive biddings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities, private placements and
valuations for corporate and other purposes.

        The terms of the merger were determined through negotiations between U.S. Bancorp and United and were approved by the board of
directors of United. Although Howe Barnes provided its opinion to United's board of directors regarding the fairness, from a financial point of
view, of the merger consideration to be paid to holders of United common stock, the decision to enter into the merger was solely that of United's
board of directors. As described above, the opinion and presentation of Howe Barnes to United's board of directors was only one of a number of
factors taken into consideration by United's board of directors in making its determination to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the
transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, including the merger. Howe Barnes' opinion was provided to United's board of directors to
assist it in connection with its consideration of the merger and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder as to how to vote or take
any other action with respect to the merger. Howe Barnes' opinion does not in any manner address the prices at which shares of U.S. Bancorp's
common stock will trade after the announcement or merger completion.

U.S. Bancorp's Reasons for the Merger

        U.S. Bancorp believes that:

�
the acquisition will strengthen U.S. Bancorp's franchise in Montana, both by enhancing its existing market presence in
certain regions of Montana and expanding into new regions of Montana;
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�
the acquisition offers the potential for U.S. Bancorp to utilize its strategy of bringing the sophisticated resources that a larger
company such as U.S. Bancorp can provide (e.g., Internet banking, asset management, capital markets and treasury
management) to leverage United's existing business; and

�
the merger will be accretive to U.S. Bancorp's GAAP earnings in the first year exclusive of merger-related charges.

Certain Executive Officers and Directors Have Financial Interests in the Merger

        In considering the recommendation of United's board of directors with respect to the merger agreement, you should be aware that United's
executive officers and directors have interests in the merger and have arrangements that are different from, or in addition to, those of United
shareholders generally. United's board of directors was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in reaching its
decisions to approve the merger agreement and to recommend that United shareholders vote in favor of the merger agreement.

Stock Options and Other Incentive Compensation

        The merger agreement provides that following approval of the merger by United's shareholders, United may accelerate and make all
options to purchase United common stock fully vested and exercisable immediately prior to the effective time of the merger. To the extent not
exercised immediately prior to the effective time, each outstanding option to purchase United common stock will be cancelled and converted
into the right to receive a cash amount equal to the excess, if any, of the cash value of the merger consideration over the exercise price for such
option.

        Based upon anticipated holdings as of the date of this document, United directors and executive officers held options to acquire a total of
129,025.50 shares of United common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $11.08. Based on a merger exchange ratio of 0.6825, and
assuming all option holders exercise their options in full prior to the effective time of the merger, these options would convert to 88,059.90
shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock. Options for all but 15,156.25 shares were fully vested as of the date of this document. If United declares
any special dividends prior to the completion of the merger, United expects to permit executive officers and directors to exercise options before
the effective time of the merger but prior to the declaration of the special dividend to permit the executive officers and directors to receive any
such dividends prior to the effective time. The number of unvested options to acquire shares of United common stock held by each of
Messrs. Feurt and Clark, that will become vested and exercisable in connection with the merger is 2,984 and 2,984, respectively, and the number
of unvested options to acquire shares of United common stock held by each of directors Kurt Weise, J. William Bloemendaal, William Madison
and Kenneth Murray is 3,984, 1,109, 1,109 and 1,500, respectively.

        United has a bonus plan for its executive officers and other management personnel. Bonuses payable under the plan are based on return on
assets, asset quality and the overall growth and performance of Heritage Bank. Bonuses have historically been paid in January following the end
of the fiscal year. Under the merger agreement, United is permitted to pay regular bonuses to its executives under this plan, but such amounts
cannot exceed $400,000 in the aggregate. In January 2006, the compensation committee approved bonuses based on 2005 performance for
Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt of $41,800 and $41,100, respectively.

Retention and Noncompetition Agreements

        As part of the merger, U.S. Bancorp has entered into retention and noncompetition agreements with each of Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt. Each
agreement runs for a two-year period commencing on November 6, 2006, and provides, in Mr. Clark's case, an aggregate cash payment of
$130,000, and in
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Mr. Feurt's case, an aggregate cash payment of $125,000, subject to continued employment with U.S. Bancorp. Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt will
receive one-half of their respective aggregate retention payments on the regular pay day that is immediately following November 6, 2007, and
the second half of the aggregate retention payment on the regular pay day that is immediately following November 6, 2008. If prior to the
expiration of the two-year period Mr. Clark's or Mr. Feurt's employment is terminated other than for cause, then the unpaid portion of the
retention amount vests and will be paid on the same dates as set forth above. If either Mr. Clark or Mr. Feurt terminate employment by reason of
disability or death, such employee's estate or beneficiary, as applicable, will be paid a lump-sum equal to the amount that would have vested and
been paid on the next payment date. U.S. Bancorp will also continue to pay to such employee his base salary from the date of termination
through November 6, 2008. In addition, in the event of termination without cause, Messrs. Feurt and Clark would be entitled to continue to
receive their base salary through the second anniversary of the completion of the merger. If Mr. Feurt was terminated without cause immediately
following the completion of the merger, he would be entitled to aggregate payments of $125,000 under the retention and noncompetition
agreements. If Mr. Clark was terminated without cause immediately following the completion of the merger, he would be entitled to aggregate
payments of $130,000 under the retention and noncompetition agreements.

        Throughout the two-year period commencing on November 6, 2006, Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt have agreed not to engage in or become
associated with any business or endeavor, in any county in Montana, that is engaged in the banking business, whether through a bank, a savings
and loan, a savings bank, a credit union, a mortgage company, bank holding company, savings and loan holding company or other depositary
institution holding company. Mr. Clark and Mr. Feurt have also agreed not to disclose confidential information and to certain non-solicitation
provisions. In the event that the executives breach their obligations under the retention and noncompetition agreements, they will no longer be
entitled to the retention and/or severance payments described above.

Indemnification

        The merger agreement provides that the surviving corporation in the merger will indemnify and hold harmless, and provide advancement of
expenses to each person who is now an officer or director of United or any of its subsidiaries against all losses, claims, damages, costs, expenses,
liabilities or judgments or amounts that are paid in settlement of or in connection with any claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation based
in whole or in part on or arising in whole or in part out of the fact that such person is now or was a director or officer of United or any subsidiary
of United to the same extent as such persons are indemnified by United pursuant to United's articles of incorporation, bylaws and
indemnification agreements, if any.

        The merger agreement also provides that for a period of six years after merger completion, U.S. Bancorp will provide directors' and
officers' liability insurance for the present and former officers and directors of United with respect to claims arising from facts or events
occurring before the merger is completed, provided that U.S. Bancorp will not be obligated to make annual premium payments for such
coverage to the extent such premiums exceed 200% of the premiums paid by United as of the date of the merger agreement.

Existing Agreements with Executive Officers

        United's wholly owned subsidiary, Heritage Bank, has compensation agreements with each of Kevin P. Clark, Steve L. Feurt and Jeffrey C.
Mortensen that are expected to be continued following the merger. The merger will not trigger payments under these agreements.
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Salary Continuation Agreement with Kevin P. Clark

        Heritage Bank has a salary continuation agreement with Kevin P. Clark that provides for pre-determined periodic payments over 15 years
upon a change in control of Heritage Bank or Mr. Clark's retirement or death. In the event of a change in control of Heritage Bank or Mr. Clark's
disability or retirement before age 62, the pre-determined payments are based on years of service. At any time, Mr. Clark is 100% vested in the
amount accrued to date. At December 31, 2005, Mr. Clark's accrued benefit under the plan totaled $64,690. If there is a change in control of
Heritage Bank or Mr. Clark retires or becomes disabled on January 1, 2007, he would receive a lump-sum payment of $77,329 payable after six
months. Assuming Mr. Clark retires at the age of 62, the projected annual benefit is $67,476 for a total payment of $1,012,140 over the 15-year
period.

Supplemental Retirement Agreement with Steve L. Feurt

        In October 1999, Heritage Bank entered into a supplemental retirement agreement with Steve L. Feurt that provides for the accrual of and
payment of benefits upon retirement at age 65, early retirement, a change in control of Heritage Bank or Mr. Feurt's disability or death. Mr. Feurt
vests 10% of plan benefits every year he is employed and will be fully vested on January 1, 2007. If Mr. Feurt terminates employment at age 65
for reasons other than death, he is entitled to a lump-sum payment of $314,988, or at his election, an annuity with a term acceptable to Mr. Feurt
can be purchased using all available accrued amounts under the agreement. If he retires after age 65, he continues to accrue annual benefits up to
retirement. If Mr. Feurt terminates employment before age 65 for any reason other than death, disability or a change in control, he is entitled to
the benefits accrued as of the date of termination. If Mr. Feurt terminates employment due to disability prior to age 65, he is entitled to the
amount accrued on the date of determination of full or partial disability. Upon a change in control of Heritage Bank, Mr. Feurt is entitled to the
amount of benefits accrued as of the date of the change in control in lieu of any other benefit under the agreement. If Mr. Feurt dies while
employed by Heritage Bank, his beneficiary will receive the accrued amount as of the date of his death. If Mr. Feurt retires, becomes disabled,
dies or there is a change in control at Heritage Bank on January 1, 2007, Mr. Feurt would be entitled to $51,640, payable in a lump sum after six
months.

Supplemental Retirement Agreement with Jeffrey C. Mortensen

        In January 2006, Heritage Bank entered into a supplemental retirement agreement with Jeffrey C. Mortensen that provides for the accrual of
and payment of benefits upon retirement at age 65, early retirement, a change in control of Heritage Bank or Mr. Mortensen's disability or death.
Mr. Mortensen vests 10% of plan benefits every year he is employed after January 1, 2009, and is fully vested after 10 years. If Mr. Mortensen
terminates employment at age 65 for reasons other than death, he is entitled to a lump-sum payment of $203,187, or at his election, an annuity
with a term acceptable to Mr. Mortensen can be purchased using all available accrued amounts under the agreement. If he retires after age 65, he
continues to accrue annual benefits up to retirement. If Mr. Mortensen terminates employment before age 65 for any reason other than death,
disability or a change in control, he is entitled to the benefits accrued as of the date of termination. If Mr. Mortensen terminates employment due
to disability prior to age 65, he is entitled to the amount accrued on the date of determination of full or partial disability. Upon a change in
control of Heritage Bank, Mr. Mortensen is entitled to the amount of benefits accrued as of the date of the change in control in lieu of any other
benefit under the agreement. If Mr. Mortensen dies while employed by Heritage Bank, his beneficiary will receive the accrued amount as of the
date of his death. If Mr. Mortensen retires, becomes disabled, dies or there is a change in control at Heritage Bank on January 1, 2007,
Mr. Mortensen is entitled to $8,391, payable in a lump sum after six months.
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Regulatory Matters

        We have agreed to use our reasonable best efforts to obtain all regulatory approvals required to complete the transactions contemplated by
the merger agreement. These approvals include approval of the Federal Reserve or a waiver from the application requirement. U.S. Bancorp and
United have completed, or will complete, the filing of applications and notifications to obtain the required regulatory approvals and/or waivers
therefrom.

        Federal Reserve Board.    The merger is subject to approval by the Federal Reserve Board pursuant to Section 3 of the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended. The Federal Reserve Board is prohibited from approving any transaction under the applicable statutes that
(1) would result in a monopoly, (2) would be in furtherance of any combination or conspiracy to monopolize or to attempt to monopolize the
business of banking in any part of the United States, or (3) may have the effect in any section of the United States of substantially lessening
competition, tending to create a monopoly or resulting in a restraint of trade, unless the Federal Reserve Board finds that the anti-competitive
effects of the transaction are clearly outweighed in the public interest by the probable effect of the transaction in meeting the convenience and
needs of the communities to be served.

        In addition, in reviewing a transaction under the applicable statutes, the Federal Reserve Board will consider the financial and managerial
resources of the companies and their subsidiary banks and the convenience and needs of the communities to be served as well as the companies'
effectiveness in combating money-laundering activities. In connection with its review, the Federal Reserve Board will provide an opportunity for
public comment on the application for the merger.

        Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, which we refer to as the CRA, the Federal Reserve Board must take into account the
record of performance of each of U.S. Bancorp and United in meeting the credit needs of the entire community, including low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods, served by each company and their subsidiaries. U.S. Bancorp's and United's subsidiary depository institutions
that are subject to the CRA have CRA ratings of "Outstanding" or "Satisfactory" with the applicable federal regulator.

        Under Section 225.12(d)(2) of the Federal Reserve Board's regulations (12 C.F.R. 225.12(d)(2)), the prior approval of the Federal Reserve
Board is not required in connection with the acquisition by a bank holding company of another bank holding company if the subsidiary banks of
both bank holding companies are merged with each other simultaneously with the holding company acquisition. In addition, the bank to be
acquired may not be operated by the acquiring bank holding company as a separate entity. The transaction must also satisfy certain other
requirements, including that the bank merger require the prior approval of a federal supervisory agency under the Bank Merger Act. We believe
that the transaction satisfies the requirements of Section 225.12(d)(2).

        Other Requisite Approvals, Notices and Consents.    An application is also being filed with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
under the Bank Merger Act for permission to merge Heritage Bank, a Montana state chartered bank, into U.S. Bank National Association, a
nationally banking association. Prior notices to, or approvals from, various state regulatory authorities will also be required in connection with
the acquisition. All required notifications and/or applications are being made to the appropriate state and other regulatory authorities.

        We are not aware of any material governmental approvals or actions that are required for completion of the merger other than those
described above. It is presently contemplated that if any such additional government approvals or actions are required, those approvals or actions
will be sought.

        Timing.    A transaction approved pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act or the Bank Merger Act may not be completed until 30 days
after approval is received, during which time the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice may challenge the merger. The
commencement of an
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antitrust action would stay the effectiveness of an approval unless a court specifically ordered otherwise. With the approval of the Federal
Reserve Board or the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, as applicable, and the concurrence of the Antitrust Division, the waiting period
may be reduced to no less than 15 days.

        U.S. Bancorp and United believe that the merger does not raise significant regulatory concerns and that they will be able to obtain all
requisite regulatory approvals on a timely basis without the imposition of any condition that could reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on United or U.S. Bancorp. However, we cannot assure you that all of the regulatory approvals described above will be obtained,
and, if obtained, we cannot assure you as to the date of any approvals or the absence of any litigation challenging such approvals. Likewise, we
cannot assure you that the Antitrust Division, the FTC or any state attorney general will not attempt to challenge the merger on antitrust grounds,
and, if such a challenge is made, we cannot assure you as to its result.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger

        The following is a summary of the material anticipated U.S. federal income tax consequences generally applicable to a U.S. Holder (as
defined below) of United common stock with respect to the exchange of United common stock for U.S. Bancorp common stock pursuant to the
merger. This discussion assumes that U.S. Holders hold their United common stock as capital assets within the meaning of section 1221 of the
Code. This summary is based on the Code, administrative pronouncements, judicial decisions and Treasury Regulations, each as in effect as of
the date of this proxy statement/prospectus. All of the foregoing are subject to change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect, and all are
subject to differing interpretation. No advance ruling has been sought or obtained from the Internal Revenue Service (or the IRS), regarding the
U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger. As a result, no assurance can be given that the IRS would not assert, or that a court would
not sustain, a position contrary to any of the tax consequences set forth below.

        This summary does not address any tax consequences arising under U.S. federal tax laws other than U.S. federal income tax laws, nor does
it address the laws of any state, local, foreign or other taxing jurisdiction. In addition, this summary does not address all aspects of U.S. federal
income taxation that may apply to U.S. Holders of United common stock in light of their particular circumstances or U.S. Holders that are
subject to special rules under the Code, such as holders of United common stock that are not U.S. Holders, holders that are partnerships or other
pass-through entities (and persons holding their United common stock through a partnership or other pass-through entity), persons who acquired
shares of United common stock as a result of the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as compensation or through a tax-qualified
retirement plan, persons subject to the alternative minimum tax, tax-exempt organizations, expatriates and former long-term residents of the
United States, financial institutions, broker-dealers, traders in securities that have elected to apply a mark-to-market method of accounting,
insurance companies, persons having a "functional currency" other than the U.S. dollar and persons holding their United common stock as part
of a straddle, hedging, constructive sale or conversion transaction.

You are strongly urged to consult with your tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences to you of the merger in light of your
own particular circumstances, including the tax consequences under state, local, foreign and other tax laws and the possible effects of
changes in the United States federal or other tax laws.

        For purposes of this summary, a "U.S. Holder" is a beneficial owner of United common stock that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

-->
a United States citizen or resident alien;
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-->
a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized under the laws of the
United States or any state therein or the District of Columbia;

-->
an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; and

-->
a trust if (1) it is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more United States persons have the
authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust, or (2) it was in existence on August 20, 1996 and has a valid election in effect
under applicable Treasury Regulations to be treated as a United States person.

        If a partnership (including any other entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds United common stock, the
tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Such a partner should consult its
tax advisor.

The Merger

        The merger is intended to qualify as a reorganization under section 368(a) of the Code. It is a condition to the completion of the merger that
each of U.S. Bancorp and United receive an opinion dated the closing date from Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz and Lindquist & Vennum
PLLP, respectively, dated as of the completion date of the merger and rendered on the basis of facts, representations and assumptions set forth or
referred to in the opinion, all of which are consistent with the facts existing as of the effective time of the merger, to the effect that the merger
will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of section 368(a) of the Code. These opinions will be based in part on representation letters
provided by United and U.S. Bancorp and on customary factual assumptions. If any of the facts, representations or assumptions upon which the
opinions are based are inconsistent with the actual facts, the tax consequences of the merger could be adversely affected, the opinions and this
summary may not accurately describe the U.S. federal income tax treatment of the merger, and the tax consequences of the merger to U.S.
Holders may be materially different from those described in this summary.

        Assuming the merger qualifies as a reorganization within the meaning of section 368(a) of the Code, United and U.S. Bancorp will not
recognize any gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a result of the merger, and the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the
merger to U.S. Holders of United common stock will be, in general, as follows:

-->
a U.S. Holder that receives U.S. Bancorp common stock in exchange for its shares of United common stock in the merger will not
recognize gain or loss on the exchange, except with respect to cash received instead of a fractional share interest in U.S. Bancorp
common stock;

-->
the aggregate tax basis of the shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock received in the merger (including any fractional shares deemed
received and redeemed for cash as described below) will be equal to the aggregate tax basis in the shares of United common stock
surrendered in exchange for the U.S. Bancorp common stock; and

-->
an exchanging U.S. Holder's holding period in the U.S. Bancorp common stock received in the merger (including any fractional shares
deemed received and redeemed for cash as described below) will include the holding period of the United common stock surrendered
in exchange for U.S. Bancorp common stock.

Cash Instead of Fractional Shares

        A U.S. Holder that receives cash instead of a fractional share will be treated as if such U.S. Holder had received a fractional share of U.S.
Bancorp common stock and then exchanged such

34

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

49



fractional share for cash in a redemption by U.S. Bancorp. Assuming that the deemed redemption of a fractional share of U.S. Bancorp common
stock is treated as a sale or exchange, and not as a dividend, a U.S. Holder will generally recognize capital gain or loss on such deemed
redemption of the fractional share in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash received instead of the fractional share and
the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the fractional share of U.S. Bancorp common stock. Such capital gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss
if the United common stock exchanged was held for more than one year at the effective time of the merger.

Special Dividend

        Subject to the limitations and qualifications described herein, if a special dividend is paid by United, we expect that it should qualify as a
distribution within the meaning of Section 301 of the Code.

        Assuming the IRS respects this characterization, a special dividend paid by United will be treated as a dividend for U.S. federal income tax
purposes to the extent paid out of current or accumulated earnings and profits of United. To the extent that the amount of a special dividend
exceeds United's current and accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will first be treated as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of the
adjusted basis in the U.S. Holder's common stock (and will reduce such adjusted basis) and thereafter will be treated as capital gain from the sale
or exchange of the United common stock. A U.S. Holder who is an individual and who meets applicable holding period requirements under the
Code for "qualified dividend income" would generally be taxed on the portion of the special dividend that is treated as a dividend at a maximum
federal income tax rate of 15%. Corporate holders may be eligible for the dividends-received deduction, which is subject to certain limitations,
with respect to that portion of the special dividend treated as a dividend.

        It is possible that the IRS could seek to treat the special dividend paid by United as additional merger consideration paid by U.S. Bancorp in
exchange for a portion of a holder's shares of United common stock. To the extent the IRS were to prevail, a U.S. Holder of United common
stock generally would recognize gain (but not loss) in an amount equal to the lesser of (1) the sum of the special dividend and the fair market
value of the U.S. Bancorp common stock received, minus the adjusted tax basis of the United common stock surrendered and (2) the amount of
the special dividend. Any such gain would be treated as capital gain unless the receipt of cash has the effect of the distribution of a dividend for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, in which case the gain would be treated as a dividend to the extent of a U.S. Holder's ratable share of United's
accumulated earnings and profits.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

        A non-corporate U.S. Holder of United common stock may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding on any cash
payments it receives instead of fractional share interests in U.S. Bancorp common stock and on the special dividend. Backup withholding will
not apply, however, if such U.S. Holder (a) furnishes a correct taxpayer identification number and properly certifies that it is not subject to
backup withholding (generally on a substitute Form W-9) and otherwise complies with the applicable requirements under the backup
withholding rules or (b) otherwise establishes an exemption from backup withholding.

        Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be allowed as a refund or credit against the U.S. Holder's U.S. federal
income tax liability, provided such U.S. Holder properly furnishes the required information to the IRS. U.S. Holders should consult their tax
advisors as to their qualifications for an exemption from backup withholding and the procedure for establishing an exemption.

35

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

50



Reporting Requirements

        A U.S. Holder that receives U.S. Bancorp common stock as a result of the merger will be required to retain records pertaining to the merger
and will be required to file with its U.S. federal income tax return for the year in which the merger takes place a statement setting forth certain
facts relating to the merger.

Accounting Treatment

        The merger will be accounted for as a "purchase" by U.S. Bancorp of United, as that term is used under U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, which we refer to as GAAP, for accounting and financial reporting purposes. As a result, the historical financial
statements of U.S. Bancorp will continue to be the historical financial statements of U.S. Bancorp following the completion of the merger. The
assets (including identifiable intangible assets) and liabilities (including executory contracts and other commitments) of United as of the
effective time of the merger will be recorded at their respective fair values and added to those of U.S. Bancorp. Any excess of purchase price
over the net fair values of United assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill (excess purchase price). Financial statements of U.S. Bancorp
issued after the merger will reflect such fair values and will not be restated retroactively to reflect the historical financial position or results of
operations of United. The results of operations of United will be included in the results of operations of U.S. Bancorp beginning on the effective
date of the merger.

Board of Directors and Management of U.S. Bancorp Following Completion of the Merger

        The composition of U.S. Bancorp's board of directors and its senior management will not be changed as a result of the merger. Information
about the current U.S. Bancorp directors and executive officers can be found in U.S. Bancorp's proxy statement filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 22, 2006. See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 150.

Exchange of Certificates in the Merger

        At or prior to the completion of the merger, U.S. Bancorp will cause to be deposited with the exchange agent certificates representing
shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock for the benefit of the holders of certificates representing shares of United common stock and cash instead
of any fractional shares that would otherwise be issued to United shareholders in the merger.

        Promptly after the completion of the merger, U.S. Bancorp will cause the exchange agent to send transmittal materials to each holder of a
United stock certificate for use in exchanging United stock certificates for certificates representing shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock and
cash instead of fractional shares, if applicable. The exchange agent will deliver certificates for U.S. Bancorp common stock and/or a check
instead of any fractional shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock once it receives the properly completed transmittal materials together with
certificates representing a holder's shares of United common stock.

        United stock certificates may be exchanged for U.S. Bancorp stock certificates with the exchange agent for up to six months after the
completion of the merger. At the end of that period, any U.S. Bancorp stock certificates and cash will be returned to U.S. Bancorp. Any holders
of United stock certificates who have not exchanged their certificates will be entitled to look only to U.S. Bancorp, and only as general creditors
of U.S. Bancorp, for U.S. Bancorp stock certificates and any cash to be received instead of fractional shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock.

        If your United stock certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed you may receive a U.S. Bancorp stock certificate upon the making of an
affidavit of that fact. U.S. Bancorp may require you to post a bond in a reasonable amount as an indemnity against any claim that may be made
against U.S. Bancorp with respect to the lost, stolen or destroyed United stock certificate.
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        Neither U.S. Bancorp nor United, nor any other person, will be liable to any former holder of United common stock for any amount
properly delivered to a public official pursuant to applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar laws.

Treatment of United Options

        Upon approval and adoption of the merger agreement by holders of a majority of shares of United common stock, United may, at its option,
cause all outstanding options to acquire United common stock, whether or not vested or exercisable, to become fully vested and exercisable. At
the completion of the merger, each outstanding and unexercised option to acquire shares of United common stock will be cancelled and
converted into the right to receive a cash payment equal to the excess, if any, of the cash value at the closing of the merger of 0.6825 shares of
U.S. Bancorp common stock over the exercise price of such stock option.

Fractional Shares

        U.S. Bancorp will not issue any fractional shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock. Instead, a United shareholder who would otherwise have
received a fraction of a share of U.S. Bancorp common stock will receive an amount of cash equal to the fraction of a share of U.S. Bancorp
common stock to which such holder would otherwise be entitled multiplied by the average closing sale price per share of U.S. Bancorp common
stock on the five NYSE trading days immediately preceding date of completion of the merger.

Resales of U.S. Bancorp Stock by Affiliates

        Shareholders of United who may be deemed to be affiliates of U.S. Bancorp and United, as defined under Rule 145 under the Securities
Act, generally may not sell their shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock acquired in the merger except pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, including Rules 144 and
145 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Act. Affiliates include directors, executive officers, and beneficial owners of 10% or more of
any class of capital stock.

        United agreed in the merger agreement to deliver a letter of agreement from each person it reasonably believes to be an "affiliate" by which
that person will agree, among other things, not to offer to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any of the shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock
distributed to him or her pursuant to the merger except in compliance with Rule 144 and Rule 145 under the Securities Act, in a transaction that
is otherwise exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, or in an offering registered under the Securities Act. U.S. Bancorp
may place restrictive legends on its common stock certificates that are issued to persons who are deemed to be affiliates under the Securities Act.
This document does not cover any resales of U.S. Bancorp common stock received in the merger by any person who may be deemed an affiliate
of U.S. Bancorp or United.

Public Trading Markets

        United common stock is reported on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol "UBMT." Upon completion of the merger, United
common stock will be delisted from the Nasdaq Global Market and deregistered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. U.S.
Bancorp common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and trades under the symbol "USB."

        The shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock to be issued in connection with the merger will be freely transferable under the applicable
securities laws, except for shares issued to any shareholder who may be deemed to be an affiliate of U.S. Bancorp or United, as discussed in
"�Resales of United Stock by Affiliates."

Appraisal Rights

        Under Minnesota law, United shareholders are not entitled to appraisal rights in connection with the merger.
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THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following describes material provisions of the merger agreement and support agreement, which are attached as Annex A and Annex
B, respectively, to this document and which are incorporated by reference into this document. The rights and obligations of the parties are
governed by the express terms and conditions of the merger agreement and support agreement and not by this summary or any other
information contained in this document. We urge you to read the merger agreement and support agreement carefully and in their entirety.

The Merger

        A wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp created for purposes of the merger will merge with and into United. United will be the
surviving corporation and will continue its corporate existence as a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp, and the separate corporate
existence of merger subsidiary will cease as of the completion of the merger. Upon the completion of the merger, each share of United common
stock outstanding, other than shares of United common stock held by either U.S. Bancorp, United or merger subsidiary, will be automatically
converted into the right to receive 0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock. All shares of United common stock converted into shares of
U.S. Bancorp common stock will automatically be cancelled and retired at the completion of the merger. In addition, any shares of United
common stock held by either United, U.S. Bancorp or merger subsidiary will be cancelled and retired at the completion of the merger, and no
merger consideration will be received for these shares.

Completion of the Merger

        Unless the parties agree otherwise and subject to the next sentence, the completion of the merger will take place at a time and place to be
agreed by the parties, but no later than the fifth business day after all closing conditions have been satisfied or waived. In addition, U.S. Bancorp
has the right, in its sole discretion, to set the date of completion of the merger to the last business day of, or the first business day of the month
immediately following, the month in which all closing conditions have been satisfied or waived.

        The merger will be completed when U.S. Bancorp files articles of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Minnesota, unless U.S.
Bancorp and United agree to a later time for the completion of the merger and specify that time in the articles of merger. We currently expect to
complete the merger in the first quarter of 2007, subject to receipt of required shareholder and regulatory approvals.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger

        United's and U.S. Bancorp's respective obligations to complete the merger are subject to the fulfillment or waiver of certain conditions,
including:

�
the approval and adoption of the merger agreement by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of United common
stock;

�
receipt of governmental and regulatory approvals required to complete the merger;

�
receipt of all other notices, consents and waivers from third parties, except as would not reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on either of United or U.S. Bancorp;

�
the absence of any judgment, order, decree, statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation, entered, enacted, promulgated,
enforced or issued by any court or any governmental entity or other legal restraint that prohibits, restrains or makes illegal
the completion of the merger;
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�
the effectiveness of the registration statement with respect to the U.S. Bancorp common stock to be issued in connection
with the merger, the absence of any stop orders suspending the effectiveness of the registration statement or proceeding
instituted by the SEC seeking the foregoing, and the receipt of all approvals required under state securities laws with respect
to the merger;

�
the authorization for listing by the NYSE of the shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock to be issued to the holders of shares
of United common stock upon completion of the merger, subject to official notice of issuance;

�
the truth and correctness of the other party's representations and warranties as of the date of the merger agreement and the
date of the completion of the merger (with the exception of those representations and warranties that by their terms speak
specifically as of the date of the merger agreement or some other date, which representations and warranties shall be true and
correct as of such date), subject to the material adverse effect standard in the merger agreement;

�
the other party's due performance in all material respects of all the obligations required to be performed by it under the
merger agreement; and

�
the receipt by each party from its legal advisor of a written legal opinion, dated as of the completion date of the merger, and
rendered on the basis of facts, representations and assumptions set forth or referred to in such opinion, all of which are
consistent with the facts existing as of the effective time of the merger, to the effect that the merger will qualify as a
reorganization within the meaning of section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which we refer to as
the "Code."

        U.S. Bancorp's obligation to complete the merger is subject to the following additional conditions:

�
the absence of any regulatory term or condition that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the
business, operations, financial condition or results of operations of United or U.S. Bancorp, in either case as measured on a
scale relative to United; and

�
the continued employment of certain senior executives of United at the time the merger is completed, and the absence of any
notice of termination from these executives prior to the completion of the merger.

No Solicitation

        United has agreed that it will not, and will cause its subsidiaries and United's and its subsidiaries' officers, directors, agents, representatives
and affiliates not to:

�
solicit, initiate, encourage or take any action to facilitate any inquiries or proposals with respect to any "company takeover
proposal" (as defined below); or

�
participate in any discussions or negotiations regarding any company takeover proposal, enter into any agreement regarding
a company takeover proposal or that could reasonably be expected to lead to any company takeover proposal or make or
authorize any public statement, recommendation, or solicitation in support of any company takeover proposal.

        However, prior to the special meeting of United shareholders, United may consider and participate in discussions and negotiations with
respect to an unsolicited bona fide company takeover proposal, furnish information regarding United to a person proposing a company takeover
proposal, and withdraw or modify its recommendation to its shareholders that they approve and adopt the merger agreement, but only if: (1) the
United board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with outside counsel, that it is necessary to do so in order to comply with
its fiduciary duties (after taking into account any changes in the terms of the merger agreement that U.S. Bancorp may have

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

54



39

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

55



proposed in its sole discretion); (2) the company takeover proposal did not result from any breach by United of its obligations under the merger
agreement relating to non-solicitation; (3) United first enters into a confidentiality agreement with the party proposing the company takeover
proposal on terms that are no less favorable to United than those of its confidentiality agreement with U.S. Bancorp; and (4) United provides
prior written notice to U.S. Bancorp of its decision to take such action.

        United has also agreed:

�
to notify U.S. Bancorp promptly (and in any event within 24 hours) of any request for information relating to a company
takeover proposal, or of any company takeover proposal, and to provide U.S. Bancorp with relevant information regarding
the company takeover proposal or request, including a copy of such company takeover proposal or request;

�
to keep U.S. Bancorp fully informed, on a current basis, of the status, terms and details (including amendments or proposed
amendments) of any such company takeover proposal;

�
to ensure that United's officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives are aware of and understand the restrictions
on solicitation of company takeover proposals, and to be responsible for any breach by such persons of the solicitation
restrictions in the merger agreement if United had knowledge of or consented to such breach; and

�
to cease immediately and cause to be terminated any existing discussions or negotiations with any persons regarding a
company takeover proposal, and to use reasonable efforts to cause all persons other than U.S. Bancorp who have been
furnished confidential information regarding United in connection with any discussions or negotiations regarding a company
takeover proposal within the 12 months prior to the date of the merger agreement to return or destroy such information.

        As used in the merger agreement, "company takeover proposal" means a proposal or offer from any person (other than U.S. Bancorp or its
affiliates) relating to:

�
any direct or indirect acquisition or purchase of (i) assets of United and its subsidiaries that generate 20% or more of the net
revenues or net income, or that represent 20% or more of the total assets, of United and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or
(ii) 20% or more of any class of equity securities of United;

�
any tender offer or exchange offer that if consummated would result in any person owning 20% or more of any class of
equity securities of United; or

�
any merger, consolidation, business combination, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving
United (or any one or more subsidiaries of United whose business constitutes, individually or taken together, 20% or more of
the net revenues, net income or total assets of United and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole), other than the transactions
contemplated by the merger agreement.

Termination

        The merger agreement may be terminated, and the merger abandoned, by either United or U.S. Bancorp at any time before the merger is
completed if each of the boards of directors of United and U.S. Bancorp votes to do so. In addition, the merger agreement may be terminated,
and the merger abandoned, by either United or U.S. Bancorp if:

�
any regulatory consent required to complete the merger is denied, and the denial is final and nonappealable, or any
governmental entity issues a final and nonappealable order permanently enjoining or prohibiting the merger;
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�
the merger has not been completed by June 30, 2007, unless the failure to complete the merger by such time is caused by a
breach of the merger agreement by the terminating party;

�
the shareholders of United fail to approve and adopt the merger agreement at a duly convened special meeting; or

�
the other party breaches the merger agreement and that breach would cause the failure of the closing conditions described
above, unless the breach is cured within 30 days of notice of the breach.

        In addition, U.S. Bancorp can terminate the merger agreement if the United board of directors fails to recommend to United shareholders
the approval and adoption of the merger agreement, modifies or qualifies its recommendation in any manner adverse to U.S. Bancorp,
recommends a company takeover proposal, or if United violates its non-solicitation obligation described above or its obligation to convene a
meeting of its shareholders for the purpose of adopting the merger agreement.

        United may terminate the merger agreement if:

�
the average closing price of the U.S. Bancorp common stock for the five consecutive NYSE trading days prior to receipt of
the last regulatory approval is less than $25.18, which is 75% of the U.S. Bancorp closing share price on November 3, 2006;
and

�
(1) the number obtained by dividing the U.S. Bancorp average closing price determined as described in the first bullet by
$33.57 is less than (2) the number obtained by (x) dividing the average daily closing value of the PHLX/KBW Bank Sector
Index for the five consecutive NYSE trading days prior to the receipt of the last regulatory approval by $112.22 (the closing
value of the index on November 3, 2006) and (y) subtracting 0.20.

        If United elects to exercise its right to terminate the agreement because of a decline in U.S. Bancorp's share price as set forth above, U.S.
Bancorp may, at its option, adjust the exchange ratio to the lesser of the exchange ratio necessary to provide each common share of United with
U.S. Bancorp common stock with a trading value of $25.18 at the time of the adjustment or the existing exchange ratio multiplied by the
percentage decline in the PHLX/KBW Bank Sector Index divided by the percentage decline of the share price of U.S. Bancorp common stock. If
U.S. Bancorp so adjusts the exchange ratio, United may not terminate the merger agreement on account of the decline in U.S. Bancorp's stock
price.

Termination Fee

        If the merger agreement is terminated and abandoned, it will become void and there will be no liability on the part of U.S. Bancorp or
United or their respective subsidiaries, directors or officers, except that designated provisions of the merger agreement will survive the
termination, including provisions relating to the payment of a termination fee in the circumstances described below and confidential treatment of
information.

        United must pay to U.S. Bancorp a termination fee of $2,800,000 in cash if the merger agreement is terminated:

�
by either United or U.S. Bancorp, in the event that shareholders of United fail to approve and adopt the merger agreement at
a duly convened special meeting prior to which a bona fide company takeover proposal was made to United or its
shareholders, and within 12 months of the termination of the merger agreement United enters into an agreement or letter of
intent in connection with, or consummates, a company takeover proposal;
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�
by U.S. Bancorp, in the event of a willful material breach by United that would cause a condition of U.S. Bancorp's
obligation to close the merger not to be satisfied, which breach is not cured within 30 days of receiving notice from U.S.
Bancorp;

�
by U.S. Bancorp, in the event that the United board of directors fails to recommend to shareholders the approval and
adoption of the merger agreement, modifies or qualifies its recommendation in any manner adverse to U.S. Bancorp,
recommends a company takeover proposal, or if United violates its non-solicitation obligation described above or its
obligation to convene a meeting of its shareholders for the purpose of adopting the merger agreement; or

�
by either United or U.S. Bancorp, in the event the closing has not occurred by June 30, 2007 and the special meeting of
shareholders of United to approve and adopt the merger did not occur, or by U.S. Bancorp, in the event of a material breach
by United that would cause a condition of U.S. Bancorp's obligation to close the merger not to be satisfied and which is not
cured within 30 days of receiving notice from U.S. Bancorp, in each case provided that: (a) at any time from November 6,
2006 to the date of termination of the merger agreement a company takeover proposal was communicated to the senior
management or board of directors of United and (b) within 12 months of the date of termination of the merger agreement,
United enters into an agreement or letter of intent in connection with, or consummates, a company takeover proposal.

        If United is obligated to pay the termination fee under the first or fourth bullet above, it must pay the fee at the earlier of the time it enters
into an agreement or letter of intent with respect to the company takeover proposal or the time the company takeover proposal is consummated.
If United is obligated to pay the termination fee under the second or third bullet above, it must pay the fee within two business days of
termination of the merger agreement.

Dividends

        United has agreed that, until the merger is completed, it will not pay dividends other than regular quarterly cash dividends not in excess of
$0.23 per share of United common stock, one cash dividend of $0.50 per share of United common stock and a possible further cash dividend
relating to the documented achievement of the reduction of specified potential expenses of United related to the merger. United has also agreed
to coordinate the declaration of dividends so that holders of shares of United common stock will not receive two quarterly dividends for any
quarter with respect to their shares of United common stock and any shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock received in the merger. Payment of
dividends by United to its shareholders are largely dependent on the amount of dividends received from its bank subsidiaries, which may be
limited or restricted by banking regulations.

Transition

        United and U.S. Bancorp agreed to use their reasonable best efforts to facilitate the integration of United and its various subsidiaries with
the businesses of U.S. Bancorp. United agreed to cause its employees and officers to use their reasonable best efforts to provide support,
including support from its outside contractors, and to assist U.S. Bancorp in performing all tasks, including equipment installation, reasonably
required to result in successful integration at the completion of the merger or such later date as may be determined by U.S. Bancorp.

        U.S. Bancorp and United agree to consult with each other with respect to their loan, litigation and real estate valuation policies and
practices and United agreed to make such modifications or changes to its policies as U.S. Bancorp reasonably requests. U.S. Bancorp and United
also agreed to consult with each other with respect to the character, amount and timing of restructuring charges to be taken by each of them in
connection with the merger.
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Other Covenants and Agreements

        United has undertaken customary covenants that place restrictions on it and its subsidiaries until the completion of the merger. In general,
United has agreed to conduct its business in the usual, regular and ordinary course consistent with past practice, and use all commercially
reasonable efforts to preserve intact its business organization, employees and advantageous business relationships (including retaining the
services of key officers and employees). United further agreed that, except with U.S. Bancorp's prior written consent, United will not, among
other things, undertake the following extraordinary actions:

�
make, declare or pay any dividends or other distribution on any shares of its capital stock, other than as described above
under "Dividends";

�
adjust, split, combine, reclassify, purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any of its capital stock;

�
issue any additional shares of capital stock or grant, award or authorize any stock options, restricted shares or other
equity-based awards;

�
amend its articles of incorporation or bylaws;

�
acquire any business or assets except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, open or close any
banking or other offices or enter into any new line of business;

�
sell, lease, mortgage, encumber or otherwise dispose of any assets or properties other than securitizations or other
transactions in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

�
other than certain short-term borrowings incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and for
other agreed upon borrowings, incur any indebtedness for borrowed money or issue any debt securities or assume or
otherwise become responsible for the obligations of any other person, or, other than in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice, make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any other person;

�
change in any material respect its accounting methods, except as required by changes in GAAP or regulatory accounting
principles or change any of its methods for reporting income or deductions for federal income tax purposes, except as
required by change in law or regulation;

�
change in any material respects its investment or risk management policies;

�
make, change or revoke any tax election, file any amended tax return, enter into any tax closing agreement, settle or
compromise any liability with respect to taxes (other than in amounts of $100,000 or less, in the aggregate), agree to any
adjustment of any tax attribute, file a claim for a refund of taxes, or consent to any extension or waiver of the limitation
period applicable in any tax claim or assessment;

�
other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, terminate, amend, waive, modify, create, enter
into or fail fully to enforce any material contract or lease, or knowingly violate the terms of any material contract or lease;

�
incur any capital expenditures in excess of $50,000 individually or $200,000 in the aggregate, other than certain budgeted
capital expenditures disclosed to U.S. Bancorp and other than pursuant to binding commitments and expenditures necessary
to maintain existing assets in good repair or to pay applicable taxes, or enter into any agreement obligating United to spend
more than $50,000 individually or $200,000 in the aggregate;
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�
alter in any material respect any interest in any entity in which United holds any equity or ownership interest;
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�
(1) grant any increase in compensation or benefits except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and
not to exceed 4% in the case of officers, or as required by the terms of plans or employment agreements existing on
November 6, 2006; (2) increase any severance or termination pay; (3) establish, amend, or take any action to clarify any
provision of any benefit plan or employment or employment-related agreement; (4) modify any United stock option;
(5) make any discretionary contributions to any pension plan; (6) hire any new officer or director, or employee with annual
compensation in excess of $60,000; (7) hire or promote any employee having a title of vice president or other more senior
rank; or (8) accelerate the payment or vesting of any benefit;

�
make any new loans or modify the terms of existing loans to any person affiliated with United, other than on terms generally
available to the public;

�
agree to any material modifications of existing agreements with any governmental entity;

�
pay or settle any claim other than claims that involve solely money damages in an amount not in excess of $50,000
individually or $200,000 in the aggregate;

�
incur deposit liabilities, other than deposit liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice
that do not materially change the risk profile of United;

�
make any equity investment or commitment in real estate or any real estate development project other than in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice;

�
originate (1) any loans except in accordance with existing lending policies, (2) residential mortgage loans in excess of
$250,000, (3) 30-year residential mortgage loans whose material terms do not make them immediately available for sale in
the secondary market, (4) unsecured consumer loans in excess of $10,000, (5) commercial business loans in excess of
$500,000 or modifications or extensions thereof, or (6) commercial real estate first mortgage loans in excess of $500,000 or
modifications or extensions thereof;

�
purchase or sell any loans or mortgage loan servicing rights other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice;

�
issue any broadly distributed communication of a general nature to employees or customers, subject to certain exceptions;

�
create, renew, amend or permit to lapse or terminate any insurance policies;

�
knowingly take or fail to take any action that would reasonably be expected to result in any of the conditions to the merger
not being satisfied;

�
knowingly take or cause to be taken any action or fail to take any action that, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to prevent the merger from qualifying as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of
the Code; and

�
authorize, or commit or agree to take any of the foregoing actions.

        U.S. Bancorp agrees that, except with United's prior written consent or required by applicable law or regulation, U.S. Bancorp will not,
among other things, undertake the following extraordinary actions:

�
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amend its certificate of incorporation or bylaws in any manner that would adversely affect the economic benefits of the
merger to holders of United common stock, other than to issue preferred stock;

�
knowingly take or fail to take any action that would reasonably be expected to result in any of the conditions to the merger
not being satisfied;
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�
knowingly take or cause to be taken any action or fail to take any action that, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to prevent the merger from qualifying as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of
the Code; and

�
authorize, or commit or agree to take any of the foregoing actions or any other action that would be reasonably likely to
prevent U.S. Bancorp from performing its obligations under the merger agreement in all material respects.

Representations and Warranties

        The merger agreement contains representations and warranties by each of United and U.S. Bancorp. Among others, United's representations
and warranties to U.S. Bancorp cover the following:

�
corporate matters, including organization, standing and power;

�
capitalization;

�
subsidiaries;

�
authority relative to execution and delivery of the merger agreement and the absence of conflicts with, or violations of,
organizational documents or other obligations as a result of the merger;

�
accuracy of public filings and financial statements and absence of liabilities not disclosed therein;

�
material contracts;

�
the absence of certain changes or events since December 31, 2005;

�
licenses and compliance with applicable laws;

�
derivative transactions;

�
investment securities and commodities;

�
administration of accounts;

�
litigation;

�
taxes;

�
employee benefits and labor matters;

�
environmental liability;

�
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intellectual property;

�
insurance matters;

�
the accuracy of information supplied for inclusion in this document;

�
transactions with affiliates;

�
the fact that the approval of holders of a majority of the shares of United common stock entitled to vote for the approval and
adoption of the merger agreement is the only vote required of any holders of United capital stock with respect to the merger
agreement;

�
the opinion of its financial advisor;

�
brokers; and

�
takeover laws.
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        U.S. Bancorp's representations and warranties to United cover the following:

�
corporate matters, including organization, standing and power;

�
capitalization;

�
authority relative to execution and delivery of the merger agreement and the absence of conflicts with, or violations of,
organizational documents or other obligations as a result of the merger;

�
accuracy of public filing, financial statements and absence of liabilities not disclosed therein;

�
the absence of certain changes or events since June 30, 2006;

�
licenses and compliance with applicable laws;

�
litigation;

�
the accuracy of information supplied for inclusion in this document;

�
brokers; and

�
the absence of any action having been taken by U.S. Bancorp that could reasonably be expected to prevent the merger from
qualifying as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

        With the exception of specified representations relating to organization, standing and corporate power, subsidiaries, corporate authority,
noncontravention, brokers and takeover laws that must be true and correct in all material respects, and representations relating to capitalization
which must be true and correct in all respects except for insignificant differences, no representation will be deemed untrue or incorrect as a
consequence of the existence or absence of any fact or event unless that fact or event, individually or taken together with all other facts or
events, has had or is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the company making the representation.

        The representations described above and included in the merger agreement were made for purposes of the merger agreement and are subject
to qualifications and limitations agreed by the respective parties in connection with negotiating the terms of the merger agreement. In addition,
certain representations and warranties were made as of a specific date, may be subject to a contractual standard of materiality different from
what might be viewed as material to shareholders, or may have been used for purposes of allocating risk between the respective parties rather
than establishing matters as facts. This description of the representations and warranties, and their reproduction in the copy of the merger
agreement attached to this document as Annex A, are included solely to provide investors with information regarding the terms of the merger
agreement. Accordingly, the representations and warranties and other provisions of the merger agreement should not be read alone, but instead
should only be read together with the information provided elsewhere in this document and in the documents incorporated by reference into this
document, including the periodic and current reports and statements that U.S. Bancorp and United file with the SEC. See "Where You Can Find
More Information" on page 150.

Employee Benefit Matters

        The merger agreement provides that, from and after completion of the merger, U.S. Bancorp will offer United employees coverage and
participation under employee benefit plans that are comparable, on an aggregate basis, to the plans generally in effect for similarly situated
employees of U.S. Bancorp and that continued coverage under United plans will satisfy this requirement. U.S. Bancorp will generally provide
United employees with service credit for their services with United for purposes of eligibility, vesting and benefit accruals under the U.S.
Bancorp benefit plans. Employees whose employment is terminated within one year following completion of the merger will be entitled to
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severance equal to one week's salary for each year of service, up to a maximum of 24 weeks. Terminated employees eligible for severance will
be paid a lump sum subject to execution of a general release in favor of U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries.

Expenses and Fees

        In general, each party will be responsible for all expenses incurred by it in connection with the negotiation and completion of the
transactions contemplated by the merger agreement. However, U.S. Bancorp will pay the fees and expenses incurred in connection with the
preparation (including printing and filing) of this document.

Amendment or Waivers

        The merger agreement may be amended or modified, in accordance with applicable law, by written agreement of U.S. Bancorp and United,
except that any amendment that would require the approval of either company's shareholders will not be made unless such required approval is
first obtained. The provisions of the merger agreement may be waived by the party benefited by those provisions, except as would be prohibited
under applicable law.

Support Agreement

        John M. Morrison, the largest shareholder of United, entered into a support agreement with United that provides, among other things, that
the shares of United common stock that he beneficially owned as of November 6, 2006, in addition to any shares of United common stock that
he acquires thereafter, which together represent in aggregate approximately 32.5% of the United common stock outstanding as of the record
date, will be voted in favor of approval and adoption of the merger agreement at the United special meeting.

        In the support agreement, Mr. Morrison also agreed that he would not vote the shares subject to the support agreement in favor of any other
merger or acquisition transaction other than the transaction with U.S. Bancorp and that he would not sell or transfer the shares subject to the
support agreement. Mr. Morrison also agreed not to solicit directly or indirectly any proposals or inquiries for an acquisition transaction with
United or its subsidiaries other than the transaction with U.S. Bancorp.

        A copy of the support agreement is attached as Annex B of this document. Shareholders are urged to read the support agreement in its
entirety.
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INFORMATION ABOUT UNITED

Business

        United is a bank holding company headquartered in Great Falls, Montana, with operations in 14 locations in 12 Montana communities.
United was organized as a Minnesota corporation in 1996. United's banking business in Montana is conducted through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Heritage Bank, a Montana corporation established in 1923. United had assets of approximately $389.5 million, deposits of
approximately $303.7 million and stockholders' equity of approximately $32.0 million at December 31, 2005.

        Heritage Bank is a state-chartered commercial bank with locations in Billings, Bozeman, Chester, Fort Benton, Glendive, Great Falls (three
locations), Hamilton, Havre, Kalispell, Missoula, Libby and Shelby, Montana. Heritage Bank is engaged in the community banking business of
attracting deposits from the general public through its branches and using those deposits, together with other available funds, to originate
commercial (including lease financing), commercial real estate, residential, agricultural and consumer loans primarily in its market areas in
Montana. Heritage Bank's banking business is concentrated in the Great Falls area through its two full service branches and one separate
drive-up location. Based on total assets, 49% of United's assets are located at Heritage Bank's Great Falls locations. Heritage Bank also invests
in mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasury obligations, other U.S. Government agency obligations and other interest-earning assets.

        Heritage Bank's financial condition and results of operations, and therefore the financial condition and results of operations of United, are
dependent primarily on net interest income and fee income. Heritage Bank's financial condition and results of operations are also significantly
influenced by local and national economic conditions, changes in market interest rates, governmental policies, tax laws and the actions of
various regulatory agencies.

        United's principal offices are located at 120 First Avenue North, Great Falls, Montana 59401, and its telephone number is (406) 727-6106.

        United makes available all periodic and current reports, free of charge, on its web-site as soon as reasonably practicable after such material
is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Lending Activities

        General.    Lending activities are United's primary source of both interest income and fee income. United's interest income from loans
receivable was approximately $19.7 million, $16.4 million and $15.9 million, or approximately 92%, 90% and 89% of total interest income, for
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. United's principal lending activity has been the origination of real estate loans,
including conventional residential real estate loans (loans which are neither insured nor partially guaranteed by government agencies) and
residential real estate loans insured by the Federal Housing Administration or partially guaranteed by the Veterans Administration. United also
originates commercial and agricultural loans secured by real estate. In addition to loans secured by real estate, United's lending activity includes
the origination of non-mortgage commercial, agricultural and consumer loans.
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        The following table sets forth the composition of United's loans receivable at December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

(Dollars in thousands)

Loans secured by real estate:
1-4 residential $ 42,541 13.5% $ 43,391 16.2% $ 37,401 16.2%
5 or more residential 3,108 1.0 3,012 1.1 3,150 1.4
Commercial 79,036 25.0 51,017 19.0 48,235 20.9
Construction 41,154 13.0 29,083 10.8 17,175 7.4
Agricultural 27,501 8.7 24,837 9.2 20,216 8.7

Total loans secured by real estate 193,340 61.2 151,340 56.3 126,177 54.6
Commercial loans 65,576 20.8 65,108 24.2 56,416 24.5
Agricultural loans 16,577 5.3 15,108 5.6 14,511 6.3
Consumer loans 40,255 12.7 37,163 13.9 33,830 14.6

Total loans receivable 315,748 100.0% 268,719 100.0% 230,934 100.0%

Less:
Allowance for loan losses 3,751 3,708 3,755

Net loans receivable $ 311,997 $ 265,011 $ 227,179

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Amount Percent Amount Percent

(Dollars in thousands)

Loans secured by real estate:
1-4 residential $ 34,288 16.0% $ 35,863 16.5%
5 or more residential 4,693 2.2 5,010 2.3
Commercial 45,355 21.1 45,820 21.1
Construction 15,259 7.1 19,384 8.9
Agricultural 19,039 8.9 18,994 8.7

Total loans secured by real estate 118,634 55.3 125,071 57.5
Commercial loans 51,461 24.0 52,363 24.1
Agricultural loans 14,548 6.8 11,607 5.3
Consumer loans 29,820 13.9 28,442 13.1

Total loans receivable 214,463 100.0% 217,483 100.0%

Less:
Allowance for loan losses 3,113 2,794

Net loans receivable $ 211,350 $ 214,689

        Residential (Non-Construction) Real Estate Lending.    Residential mortgage lending constitutes a significant portion of United's lending
activities. United's residential loan originations are conducted by residential loan production officers in Heritage Bank's banking offices and its
one loan production office. The majority of Heritage Bank's residential loan production is secured by properties located in Montana and are
fixed-rate, long-term mortgage loans which are sold to the secondary market.
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        Under Heritage Bank's residential lending policies, most loans originated conform to Government National Mortgage Association/Federal
National Mortgage Association secondary mortgage market standards and are secured by residential property with an appraised value of not
more than 80% (or 95% if private mortgage insurance is obtained) of the principal amount of the loan. In accordance with
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federal guidelines, an appraisal by an independent licensed or certified appraiser is required for residential loans in excess of $250,000. United
generally also obtains appraisals or valuations on most residential loans under $250,000. The terms of Heritage Bank's conventional real estate
loans provide that the loan can be prepaid without penalty and typically include a due-on-sale clause that provides for acceleration of
indebtedness upon the sale or other disposition of secured property. Evidence of fire, casualty and hazard insurance with a mortgagee clause in
favor of United is required prior to settlement of residential and commercial real estate loans. Title insurance is generally required on properties
securing such loans.

        Most of Heritage Bank's residential loans are originated through personal contacts of loan officers, including contacts with local realtors,
and through referrals from deposit customers. Although the majority of Heritage Bank's loans are fixed rate loan products that are subsequently
sold on the secondary market, Heritage Bank does offer a variety of adjustable rate residential loans, some of which are sold on the secondary
market and some of which are retained in its own portfolio. The interest rates on variable loans vary with the movement of the index upon which
the interest rates are based. If the interest rates change, loan payments, balances or terms may be adjusted. Heritage Bank's primary indexes are
the one, three and five-year constant maturity Treasury indexes. Most of the ARMs currently originated by Heritage Bank have loan terms of 15
to 30 years with rate adjustments generally every one, three or five years during the term of the loan. Generally, interest rate adjustments on
Heritage Bank's ARMs are limited to changes of 2.5%-3.25% per year and 6%-10% for the life of the loan. The average lives of these loans were
9.5 years at December 31, 2005.

        The majority of Heritage Bank's total production of long-term (15- to 30-year maturity) fixed rate residential loans is originated according
to pre-arranged underwriting standards that result in immediate sale to the secondary market, primarily to mortgage bankers and pension funds.
Heritage Bank sold long-term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans to the secondary market in aggregate amounts of approximately
$170.9 million in 2005, $143.3 million in 2004 and $325.9 million in 2003. Heritage Bank also sells long-term fixed-rate loans that are
refinances of existing portfolio loans or permanent financing of completed construction loans. These are sold to the secondary market or State of
Montana housing agencies. The combination of both of these types of secondary market sales resulted in a gain on sale of loans totaling
$3.2 million, $2.8 million and $5.0 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Components of the recognized gain include origination fees,
service release fees or an amount capitalized for retained servicing rights, and premiums or discounts related to the sale. Heritage Bank retains a
limited number of adjustable rate mortgages and fixed rate mortgage loans up to 15-year maturities for its own portfolio.

        Real Estate Construction Loans.    In addition to permanent real estate mortgage loans, Heritage Bank also provides interim financing for
the construction of single-family and multi-unit dwellings, commercial real estate and improvements of real estate. Construction loans are
generally made for periods of approximately nine months, with interest paid at periodic intervals. Such loans may be extended for several
months due to adverse weather conditions or other justifiable delays in construction. Heritage Bank provides financing primarily for a limited
number of registered contractors who have demonstrated an ability to complete projects in residential development and construction, have
operated in Heritage Bank's lending area for a number of years and are deemed to be financially responsible. Heritage Bank also provides
construction loans for customers who have made the decision to construct a new home for their personal use and in that case the Heritage Bank
customer will choose their own contractor who is then approved by Heritage Bank. Heritage Bank requires that permanent financing is in place
prior to entering into a construction loan for an individual customer.

        Commercial and Agricultural Real Estate Loans.    Heritage Bank engages in commercial real estate lending secured by both commercial
and agricultural properties. Occasionally when making such loans, Heritage Bank participates in the U.S. Small Business Administration's
program for guaranteed commercial real estate loans. Heritage Bank's loans on commercial and agricultural real estate are
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primarily first lien loans with 10- to 15-year maturities and adjustable interest rates based on U.S. Treasury indexes for one, three and five years.

        Non-Mortgage Commercial and Agricultural Lending.    In addition to real estate lending, Heritage Bank offers commercial and
agricultural non-mortgage loans. Heritage Bank offers commercial lines of credit, equipment term loans, working capital loans and loans
guaranteed by the Small Business Administration to its business customers. It also offers seasonal lines of credit and term equipment loans to its
agricultural borrowers. Heritage Bank purchases, on a participation basis, loans originated outside its normal market areas. Participation loans
are generally purchased from commercial banks and third party loan production offices. Generally, these purchased participations allow Heritage
Bank to diversify its geographic risk and are purchased with a higher level of underwriting standards since a direct customer relationship does
not exist. At December 31, 2005, Heritage Bank had $65.6 million of non-mortgage commercial loans in its loan portfolio, which included
approximately $32.6 million of purchased participation loans located outside of Montana.

        Consumer Lending.    Heritage Bank's consumer loan portfolio includes home equity, home improvement, line of credit, auto, deposit
account, dealer loans and credit card receivables. Heritage Bank has entered into agreements with certain local merchants to purchase qualifying
conditional sales contracts. Heritage Bank requires fire, hazard and casualty insurance for loans secured by home equity and casualty insurance
for loans secured by autos and recreational vehicles. Heritage Bank also maintains an underlying vendors single interest insurance policy to
protect it in the event a loss is incurred to a non-insured customer vehicle.

Investment Activities

        The investment activities of United are designed to provide an investment alternative for funds not presently required to meet loan demand,
assist in maximizing income, supply collateral to secure public funds and retail repurchase agreements, provide a means for balancing market
and credit risks, and provide consistent income and market value throughout changing economic times.

        Interest income from investment activities was approximately $1.5 million, $1.6 million and $1.7 million, or approximately 6.9%, 8.8% and
9.6% of United's total interest income, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

        United's portfolio consists primarily of obligations of the U.S. government and its agencies, mortgage-backed securities, municipal bonds
and corporate bonds and equity securities. United's investment portfolio does not contain a concentration of investments in any one issuer in
excess of 10% of its total investment portfolio, except for securities of the U.S. government and U.S. government agencies. All of United's
investments are classified as available-for-sale.

        The following table sets forth the carrying values of United's investments at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003:

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2004

December 31,
2003

(Dollars in thousands)

U.S. government and federal agencies $ 6,423 $ 4,029 $ 8,106
Mortgage-backed securities 27,856 34,446 31,574
Municipal bonds 587 474 1,899
Corporate bonds and equity securities 493 � 1,700

$ 35,359 $ 38,949 $ 43,279

        During 2005, United received $11.4 million in mortgage-backed security principal payments and had $1.0 million of calls and maturities of
investment securities. United sold $1.8 million of investment

51

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

72



securities and mortgage-backed securities while purchasing $11.2 million in investment securities and mortgage-backed securities. United
recorded an unrealized loss in market values of its investment portfolio of $0.5 million, and amortization of purchase premium of $0.1 million
during the year. The unrealized loss is the result of the normal market fluctuations on bonds and mortgage-backed securities due to recent
increases in interest rates.

        During 2004, United received $11.9 million in mortgage-backed security principal payments and had $7.1 million of calls and maturities of
investment securities. Sales of investment securities and mortgage-backed securities were $3.5 million in 2004 and purchases totaled
$18.5 million. United experienced a decrease in unrealized gain in market values of its investment portfolio of $0.4 million, from $0.5 million in
2003 to $0.1 million in 2004, before taxes.

Sources of Funds

        The primary sources of funds for United's lending and investment activities are deposits, repurchase agreements, Federal Home Loan Bank
("FHLB") borrowings, loan and mortgage-backed securities repayments, proceeds from loan sales, investment securities, interest payments and
maturities, and net operating revenues.

        Deposit Activities.    Deposits are attracted from within United's market area through the offering of a broad selection of deposit
instruments, including NOW accounts, money market accounts, regular savings accounts, certificates of deposit and retirement savings plans.
Deposit account terms vary, according to the minimum balance required, the time periods the funds must remain on deposit and the interest rate,
among other factors. In determining the terms of its deposit accounts, United considers current market interest rates, profitability to United,
matching deposit and loan products offered by its competition and its customer preferences and concerns. United reviews its deposit mix and
pricing on a regular basis.

        The following table sets forth the composition of United's deposits at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

(Dollars in thousands)

Type:
Non-interest bearing $ 56,642 18.7% $ 47,490 18.4% $ 36,551 16.1%
Interest bearing:
NOW & money market accounts 33,914 11.2 35,974 13.9 33,300 14.6
Savings accounts 51,472 16.9 54,427 21.1 54,897 24.1
Time deposits 161,663 53.2 120,444 46.6 102,766 45.2

Total $ 303,691 100.0% $ 258,335 100.0% $ 227,514 100.0%

        Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

(Dollars in
thousands)

Due within one year $ 112,778
Due within two to three years 39,519
Due within four to five years 9,072
Thereafter 294

Totals $ 161,663
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        Time deposits of $100,000 or more were approximately $40.4 million, $29.1 million and $24.0 million at December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Amounts in excess of $100,000 are not insured by a federal agency.

        The maturity of time deposits of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2005 was as follows:

(Dollars in
thousands)

Less than three months $ 8,869
Three to six months 4,556
Six to twelve months 15,113
Greater than twelve months 11,892

Total $ 40,430

        Early withdrawal from time deposits subjects the depositor to an early withdrawal penalty which is currently equal to six months of simple,
nominal interest when the original maturity is longer than one year, three months of simple, nominal interest when original maturity is 92 days to
one year, and all interest earned when original maturity is 91 days or less.

        Beginning in 2004, United began issuing brokered deposits. Brokered deposits are deposits obtained through a broker who engages in
facilitating the placement of deposits with insured depository institutions for a third party. Heritage Bank's correspondent bank acts as custodian
for these deposits. At December 31, 2005, such brokered deposits totaled $18.3 million.

        Although deposits are not solicited outside of Montana, historically, a small number of the Heritage Bank's depositors have resided outside
Montana. As market demand generally dictates deposit maturities and rates, United intends to continue to offer those types of accounts that it
believes have broad market appeal.

        Borrowings.    Heritage Bank relies to a significant extent on borrowings from the FHLB to finance its short-term, and increasingly its
longer term, financing needs. The FHLB functions as the central reserve bank providing credit for commercial banks and certain other member
financial institutions. Borrowings from the FHLB are available at various maturities, which facilitates the matching of asset and liability
maturity dates.

        As a member of the FHLB, Heritage Bank is required to own capital stock in the FHLB and is authorized to apply for advances on the
security of specified collateral. Advances are made pursuant to several different credit programs. Each credit program has its own interest rate
and range of maturities. Heritage Bank's established available FHLB advance credit line for 2005 was 25% of assets. The FHLB is required to
review its credit limitations and standards at least annually.

        For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, FHLB borrowing information was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

(Dollars in thousands)

Average FHLB advances $ 45.8 $ 42.5 $ 31.6
Maximum advances outstanding 59.7 60.6 36.0
Year-end advances outstanding 42.0 44.8 31.0
Weighted average interest rate 4.01% 3.41% 4.05%

        Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase.    Heritage Bank generates funds through the sale of investment securities under
agreements requiring their repurchase at a premium that represents interest. The securities underlying agreements to repurchase are for the same
securities originally sold and are held in a custody account by a third party.
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        For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, securities sold under agreements to repurchase information was as follows:

2005 2004 2003

(Dollars in thousands)

Average balances $ 6.1 $ 8.2 $ 9.2
Maximum balances outstanding 10.0 13.7 9.9
Year-end balances 4.2 7.5 7.9
Weighted average interest rate 2.68% 1.30% 1.54%

        Subordinated Debentures.    In July 2001, United issued junior subordinated debentures, aggregating $3.1 million to United
Financial-Montana Capital Trust I. This trust issued preferred securities, as part of a pooled issue, with an aggregate liquidation amount of
$3.0 million ($1,000 per capital security) to third-party investors. The junior subordinated debentures and cash are the sole assets of the trust.
The preferred securities are includable as Tier I capital for regulatory capital purposes. The junior subordinated debentures and the preferred
securities pay interest and dividends, respectively, on a semi-annual basis, which are included in interest expense. The variable interest rate
resets on January 25 and July 25 of each year, based upon six-month LIBOR plus 3.75%. The interest rate reset on July 25, 2006 was 9.30%.
The junior subordinated debentures and preferred securities will mature on July 25, 2031. The junior subordinated debentures and preferred
securities can be redeemed contemporaneously, in whole or in part, after five years at decreasing premiums with the permission of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve"). United has provided a full and unconditional guarantee of the obligations of
the trust in the event of the occurrence of an event of default, as defined.

Market Area

        Great Falls, the county seat of Cascade County and a regional trade center, is among the largest cities in Montana. The estimated 2005
Great Falls and Cascade County populations were approximately 57,000 and 80,000, respectively. The economy of Great Falls is largely based
on agriculture, health care and Department of Defense activities. Malmstrom Air Force Base, which employs approximately 4,000 people, is the
largest employer in Great Falls and Cascade County. Any significant reduction in size or closure of Malmstrom Air Force Base would likely
adversely affect United and its results of operations and financial condition. Malmstrom Air Force Base is home to 200 of the nation's 500
land-based intercontinental ballistic missiles.

        The economies of Chester, Fort Benton, Glendive, Havre and Shelby, Montana are dependent to a large extent on agricultural, livestock and
railroad activities. Areas such as Bozeman, Great Falls, Hamilton, Kalispell, Libby and Missoula are supported in part by tourism, higher
education and natural resources. Agriculture and natural resources are among the predominant activities in the State of Montana, and any
adverse trends in either of these two industries could adversely affect United and its results of operations and financial condition.

Competition

        Heritage Bank, like other depository institutions, is operating in a rapidly changing environment and, therefore, faces considerable
competition in the attraction of deposits and the origination of loans. Historically, the most direct competition for deposits has come from
savings banks, credit unions and commercial banks. According to a recent market share report prepared by the FHLB, there are approximately
155 commercial bank branch locations, 38 credit union branch locations and eight savings bank branch locations in Heritage Bank's Montana
market areas. In addition to these entities, United estimates there are approximately 35 mortgage companies directly competing with its real
estate originators in the Montana market area. Non-depository financial service organizations, primarily in the
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securities and insurance industries, have also become competitors for retail savings and investment funds. Heritage Bank's deposit programs
compete with money market mutual funds, government securities and other investment alternatives. Heritage Bank competes for deposits by
offering a variety of deposit accounts at interest rates based upon market conditions, convenient business hours, quality service and convenient
branch locations.

Employees

        At October 31, 2006, Heritage Bank employed 126 full-time employees and 18 part-time employees. Heritage Bank maintains a
comprehensive employee benefit program providing, among other benefits, hospitalization and major medical insurance, paid sick leave,
disability, life insurance and 401K retirement plans. Heritage Bank's employees are not represented by any collective bargaining group. United,
as a parent company, has no paid employees.

Executive Officers of United

        The following table sets forth information with respect to the executive officers of United. All executive officers are elected annually by the
Board of Directors. There are no arrangements or understandings between individual officers and any other person pursuant to which he or she
was elected as an officer.

Name Age Position Held

Kurt R. Weise 50 Chairman of United; Director and Vice President of Heritage Bank

Kevin P. Clark 51 Chief Executive Officer and Director of United; Director, President
and Chief Executive Officer of Heritage Bank

Steve L. Feurt 51 President of United; Director, Executive Vice President and Senior
Lending Officer of Heritage Bank

Paula J. Delaney 46 Chief Financial Officer of United; Director and Vice President of
Heritage Bank

Mr. Weise has served as Chairman of United since 2003. Mr. Weise has served as director of United since 1998, and director and Vice
President of Heritage Bank since 1994. Mr. Weise also serves as President of Central Financial Services, a bank-consulting firm and President of
Central Bancshares, Inc. Central Bancshares is the parent company of Central Bank, located in Stillwater, Minnesota. Central Bancshares and
Central Financial Services are both wholly owned by United's largest shareholder. Central Financial Services provides various management
services to United, including certain accounting and tax services, investment consulting, personnel consulting, asset liability management and
regulatory consulting.

Mr. Clark has served as Chief Executive Officer of United since June of 2005 and as director of United since 1998. Mr. Clark has served as
director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Heritage Bank, since 1994.

Mr. Feurt has served as President of United since June of 2005, and has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of United,
and director and Executive Vice President and Senior Lending Officer of Heritage Bank, since 1998.

Ms. Delaney has served as Chief Financial Officer of United since 2001, and as Vice President of Heritage Bank since 1998. Ms. Delaney
has served on the Heritage Bank board since 2000. Previously, Ms. Delaney was employed in public accounting from 1984 to 1998, with
Hamilton Misfeldt & Co. P.C., a Great Falls, Montana-based public accounting firm.
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Supervision and Regulation

        United is a bank holding company which owns Heritage Bank, a Montana-state chartered commercial bank.

        Bank holding companies are subject to the general supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve Bank. Under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended, and Federal Reserve Bank regulations, a bank holding company may engage in banking, managing or
controlling banks, furnishing or performing services for banks it controls and conducting activities that the Federal Reserve Bank has determined
to be closely related to banking. Bank holding companies must also obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Bank before acquiring 5%
or more of the outstanding shares of another bank or bank holding company and must provide notice to, and in some situations obtain the prior
approval of, the Federal Reserve Bank in connection with the acquisition of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of a company engaged in a
"bank related" business.

        Under Federal Reserve Bank regulations, a bank holding company is required to serve as a source of financial and managerial strength to its
subsidiary banks and may not conduct its operations in an unsafe or unsound manner. In addition, it is the Federal Reserve Bank's policy that in
serving as a source of strength to its subsidiary banks, a bank holding company should stand ready to use available resources to provide adequate
capital to its subsidiary banks during periods of financial stress or adversity. A bank holding company's failure to meet its obligations to serve as
a source of strength to its subsidiary banks will generally be considered by the Federal Reserve Bank to be an unsafe and unsound practice or a
violation of Federal Reserve Bank regulations, or both.

        Bank holding companies are subject to certain limitations on redemption of common stock or other equity securities. In addition, the
Federal Reserve Bank has issued regulations setting minimum capital standards for bank holding companies. Depending on the capital
classification of a bank holding company, it may be restricted from engaging in certain non-bank activities or from acquiring interests in
additional banks or other depository institutions. As of September 30, 2006, United met the limitations on redemption of common stock and the
minimum capital requirements issued by the Federal Reserve Bank. See also discussion below under Capital Adequacy regarding recent
amendments to the Federal Reserve Bank Board's Small Bank Holding Company Policy Statement.

        Under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended by the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994
(the "Interstate Act"), a bank holding company may acquire banks throughout the United States subject only to state or federal deposit caps and
state minimum age requirements. Effective June 1, 1997, the Interstate Act authorized interstate branching by acquisition and consolidation in
those states that had not opted out by that date. Montana had opted out of the interstate branching by acquisition and consolidation until
October 1, 2001.

        The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 came into effect on March 11, 2000. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 repeals the two
affiliation provisions of the Glass-Steagall Act: Section 20, which restricted the affiliation of Federal Reserve member banks with firms
"engaged principally" in specified securities activities; and Section 32, which restricts officer, director, or employee interlocks between a
member bank and any company or person "primarily engaged" in specified securities activities. In addition, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of
1999 contains provisions that expressly preempt any state law restricting the establishment of financial affiliation, primarily related to insurance.
The general effect of the law is to establish a comprehensive framework to permit affiliation among commercial banks, insurance companies,
securities firms, and other financial service providers by revising and expanding the bank holding company framework to permit a holding
company system to engage in a full range of financial activities through a new entity known as a financial holding company. To date, United has
not elected to become a financial holding company.
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        Bank holding companies that elect to become a financial holding company may affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and
engage in other activities that are financial in nature or are incidental or complementary to activities that are financial in nature. "Financial in
nature" activities include securities underwriting, dealing, and market making, sponsoring mutual funds and investment companies, insurance
underwriting and agency, merchant banking, and activities that the Federal Reserve, in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury,
determines from time to time to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto.

        To the extent that the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 permits banks, securities firms, and insurance companies to affiliate, the financial
services industry may experience further consolidation. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 is intended to grant to community banks certain
powers as a matter of right that larger institutions have accumulated on an ad hoc basis. Nevertheless, this legislation may increase the amount of
competition from larger institutions and other types of companies with substantially greater resources and a wider variety of financial products
than United currently offers.

        Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, federal banking regulators have adopted rules that limit the ability of banks and other
financial institutions to disclose non-public information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties. These limitations require disclosure of
privacy policies to consumers and, in some circumstances, allow consumers to prevent disclosure of certain personal information to a
nonaffiliated third party. United has implemented procedures to comply with these rules and believes that compliance has not adversely affected
its operations.

        United and its subsidiaries are deemed affiliates within the meaning of the Federal Reserve Act, and transactions between the affiliates are
subject to certain restrictions. Accordingly, United and its respective subsidiaries must comply with Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal
Reserve Act. Generally, these sections restrict "covered transactions" (i.e., loans, purchases of assets, guaranties and similar transactions) to a
percentage of the depository institution's capital and surplus, require that such transactions be appropriately collateralized and require that such
transactions be on terms as favorable to the depository institution as transactions with non-affiliates. Loans to insiders (officers, directors and
10% shareholders) of a depository institution are subject to Sections 22(g) and (h) of the Federal Reserve Act and regulations thereunder.
Among other things, such loans must be made on terms substantially the same as loans to non-insiders.

        On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism of 2001, which we refer to as the USA Patriot Act. Among other things, the USA Patriot Act (1) prohibits banks from
providing correspondent accounts directly to foreign shell banks; (2) imposes due diligence requirements on banks opening or holding accounts
for foreign financial institutions or wealthy foreign individuals; (3) requires financial institutions to establish an anti-money-laundering
compliance program; and (4) generally eliminates civil liability for persons who file suspicious activity reports. The Act also increased
governmental powers to investigate terrorism, including expanded government access to account records. The Department of the Treasury is
empowered to administer and make rules to implement the Act. While the USA Patriot Act may, to some degree, affect United's record-keeping
and reporting expenses, United does not believe that the Act will have a material adverse effect on its business and operation. Management
believes United is in compliance with the USA Patriot Act.

        Depository Institution Subsidiary�Heritage Bank.    As a Montana-chartered commercial bank, Heritage Bank is subject to regulation and
supervision by the Montana Department of Commerce, Division of Banking and Financial Institutions and the FDIC. Heritage Bank's deposits
are insured by the FDIC up to $100,000.
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         The Montana statutes and regulations place limitations on the business and other activities of Heritage Bank which may be more
restrictive than limitations applicable to depository institutions that are not state-chartered commercial banks. In particular, and among other
limitations, the establishment and operation of new branch offices, is limited by, and subject to approval by, the Montana Department of
Commerce, Division of Banking and Financial Institutions. In addition, state-chartered commercial banks are generally not authorized to make
investments in the capital stock of any corporation, or to make other investments in equity securities or to engage in securities or insurance
activities. A Montana bank may acquire shares of stock in an affiliate or subsidiary, the business activities of which are limited to those allowed
by law for a bank. Some federally chartered depository institutions located in Montana may engage in such activities without regard to state law.

        By reason of FDIC insurance, Heritage Bank is an insured depository institution for purposes of certain federal laws and regulations. The
federal laws that apply to depository institutions regulate, among other things, the scope of their businesses, their investments, the reserves
against deposits, the timing and availability of deposited funds and certain aspects of their lending activities. These laws and regulations
governing the depository institution activities have generally been promulgated to protect depositors and not to protect stockholders of such
institutions or their holding companies. These laws and regulations are designed to ensure that appropriate action is taken to address concerns
regarding the safe and sound operation of insured depository institutions and generally relate to internal control and information systems, loan
documentation and credit underwriting, asset growth, management performance and earnings. If an insured depository institution fails to meet
the applicable standards and regulatory requirements, an appropriate banking agency may require that the institution prepare and submit to the
agency an acceptable plan for addressing the regulatory concern. If the plan submitted is deemed inadequate, or if the institution fails to submit
or comply with the required plan, a banking agency may take further action with respect to the regulatory concerns, including institution of an
enforcement action with respect to the institution.

        The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 required federal banking regulators to adopt regulations in a number
of specific areas to insure depository institution safety and soundness, including internal controls, credit underwriting, asset growth, management
compensation, asset quality and earnings performance. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 also contains
provisions intended to change independent auditing requirements, to restrict the activities of certain insured depository institutions, to change
various consumer banking laws and to limit the ability of "under-capitalized banks" to borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank's discount window
or to acquire brokered deposits. Heritage Bank is in compliance with applicable Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of
1991 regulations as of October 31, 2006.

        The Financial Institution Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 significantly changed existing federal banking legislation and
regulation, including significant increases in FDIC insurance premiums, separation of the FDIC insurance into two deposit insurance funds,
authorizing bank holding companies to own savings associations, increasing the federal banking agencies' enforcement powers and increasing
the civil and criminal penalties for violations of federal banking laws and regulations.

        Heritage Bank is subject to certain federal consumer laws, including the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as amended, which we
refer to as the CRA, and other fair lending laws and regulations which impose nondiscriminatory lending requirements on insured depository
institutions. In recent periods, federal regulatory agencies have sought a more rigorous enforcement of the CRA and other fair lending laws and
regulations. A successful challenge to a depository institution's performance under the CRA and related fair lending laws and regulations could
result in a variety of sanctions, including the required payment of damages and civil money penalties, prospective and retrospective injunctive
relief and the imposition of restrictions on mergers and acquisitions or other activities of the depository institution or the holding companies
controlling such depository institutions. Private parties may also
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have the ability to challenge an institution's performance under the fair lending laws in private class action litigation. Heritage Bank's most
recent CRA exam in May of 2005 earned the Bank a satisfactory rating.

        Federal regulatory banking agencies have also established uniform capital requirements for all insured depository institutions. An insured
depository institution that does not achieve and maintain required capital levels may be subject to supervisory action through the issuance of
capital directives, cease and desist orders or other written orders or agreements with the appropriate federal banking agency. Failure of an
insured depository institution to meet the required capital levels may also prohibit or limit the ability of a bank holding company controlling
such institution to engage in merger and acquisition activities or other expansion activities. As of September 30, 2006, Heritage Bank met the
"well capitalized" requirements issued by the applicable federal banking agency.

        Depository institutions generally depend upon the difference between the interest rate paid by them on deposits and other borrowings and
the interest rate received on loans extended to customers and on investment securities. The interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors
beyond the control of depository institutions, including general economic conditions in their primary market area and the broader economy. In
addition to general economic conditions affecting business generally, depository institutions such as Heritage Bank are affected by federal
government policies and actions of regulatory agencies. In particular, the Federal Reserve Bank through its various operations and powers may
affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits. Such changes in interest rates affect the growth and quality of depository institution
loans, investments and deposits.

        Federal banking regulatory agencies may institute enforcement actions against depository institutions, their parent holding companies and
other institution-affiliated parties with respect to violations of any federal law or regulation. Enforcement actions may include the appointment
of a conservator or receiver, the issuance of cease and desist orders or other formal action, termination of insurance of deposits and the
imposition of civil money penalties. Heritage Bank is currently not subject to any such enforcement actions.

        From time to time, various types of federal and state legislation have been proposed that would result in additional regulation of, or
restrictions on, the business of depository institutions. It cannot be predicted whether such legislation will be adopted or how such legislation
would affect the business of Heritage Bank.

        Deposit Insurance and FDIC Regulation.    Heritage Bank is a member of the Savings Association Insurance Fund ("SAIF"), and the Bank
Insurance Fund ("BIF"), both administered by the FDIC. Section 5(d) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act ("FDI Act"), known as the Oakar
Amendment, permits merger transactions between SAIF- and BIF-member institutions resulting in an institution with deposits that are
proportionally insured by both SAIF and BIF.

        Savings deposits are insured up to the applicable limits (generally $100,000 per insured depositor) by the FDIC. The FDIC is empowered to
impose deposit insurance premiums, conduct examinations and require reporting by Heritage Bank. The FDIC may also prohibit Heritage Bank
from engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious risk to the FDIC. The FDIC can also initiate
enforcement actions against Heritage Bank and may terminate the deposit insurance of Heritage Bank if it determines that Heritage Bank has
engaged or is engaging in any unsafe or unsound practice, or are in an unsafe or unsound condition.

        For 2005, the FDIC assessment rate for Heritage Bank decreased each quarter from 1.44 basis points per $100 of insured deposits during
the first quarter, to 1.34 basis points for the fourth quarter. As a result, Heritage Bank's 2005 FDIC deposit insurance premium was
approximately $0.1 million. FDIC has published assessment rates for the second quarter of 2006, per $100 of insured deposits, of 1.24 basis
points.
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        State Lending Limits.    Heritage Bank is subject to a State of Montana lending limit of 20% of capital. The maximum aggregate amount of
loans outstanding to a single borrower at Heritage Bank at September 30, 2006 was approximately $3.1 million. At September 30, 2006 Heritage
Bank was in compliance with the State of Montana lending limit.

        Capital Adequacy.    FDIC emphasizes capital as a measure of performance and establishes a rigid regulatory scheme based almost entirely
on capital levels. Banks are assigned to one of five capital categories depending on their total risk-based capital ratio, Tier I risk-based capital
ratio, and leverage ratio, together with certain subjective factors. Banks which are deemed to be "undercapitalized" are subject to certain
mandatory supervisory corrective actions. The five statutory capital categories established by FDIC are "well capitalized," "adequately
capitalized," "undercapitalized," "significantly undercapitalized" and "critically undercapitalized." Heritage Bank's capital position exceeded the
minimum requirement for the "well capitalized" category as of September 30, 2006. FDIC also mandates that regulations be promulgated adding
other risk-based capital requirements covering (a) concentrations of credit risk, (b) risks from nontraditional activities and (c) the capital impact
of fair value adjustments associated with FASB Statement No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities."

        Federal bank regulatory agencies use capital adequacy guidelines in the examination and regulation of bank holding companies and banks.
If capital falls below minimum guideline levels, the holding company or bank may be denied approval to acquire or establish additional banks or
nonbank businesses, to open new facilities, or to accept brokered deposits.

        The FDIC and Federal Reserve use risk-based capital guidelines for banks and bank holding companies. These are designed to make such
capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies, to account for off-balance sheet
exposure, and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories, each
with appropriate weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items.
The guidelines are minimums, and the Federal Reserve has noted that bank holding companies contemplating significant expansion programs
should not allow expansion to diminish their capital ratios and should maintain ratios well in excess of the minimum.

        The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("Board") is amending the asset size threshold and other criteria for determining
whether a bank holding company ("BHC") qualifies for the Board's Small Bank Holding Company Policy Statement and an exemption from the
Board's consolidated risk-based and leverage capital adequacy guidelines for BHC's. The Board is adopting this final rule to address the effects
of inflation, industry consolidation, and normal asset growth of BHC's since the Board introduced its previous policy statement in 1980. The
final rule increases the asset size threshold from $150 million to $500 million in consolidated assets for determining whether a BHC may qualify
for the policy statement and an exemption from the capital guidelines; modifies the qualitative criteria used in determining whether a BHC that
is under the asset size threshold nevertheless would not qualify for the policy statement or the exemption from the capital guidelines; and
clarifies the treatment under the policy statement of subordinated debt associated with trust preferred securities.

        The risk-based guidelines apply on a consolidated basis to any BHC with consolidated assets of $500 million or more. The risk-based
guidelines also apply on a consolidated basis to any BHC with consolidated assets of less than $500 million if the holding company (i) is
engaged in significant nonbanking activities either directly or through a nonbank subsidiary; (ii) conducts significant off-balance sheet activities
(including securitization and asset management or administration) either directly or through a nonbank subsidiary; or (iii) has a material amount
of debt or equity securities outstanding (other than trust preferred securities) that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
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Commission. The Federal Reserve may apply the risk-based guidelines at its discretion to any BHC, regardless of asset size, if such action is
warranted for supervisory purposes.

        With current consolidated assets of approximately $418 million, it does not appear that United will be subject to the new risk-based
guidelines as described above. United would, however, be subject to the small bank holding company rules in Part 225, Regulation Y of title 12
of the Code of Federal Regulations.

        Federal Home Loan Bank System.    Heritage Bank is a member of the FHLB of Seattle, Washington. Each FHLB serves as a reserve or
central bank for its members within its assigned region, is funded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of consolidated obligations of
the FHLB system and makes loans (advances) to its members in accordance with the policies and the procedures established by the FHLB board
of directors. All advances from the FHLB are required to be fully secured by sufficient collateral as is determined by the FHLB. Member banks
are required to purchase and maintain FHLB stock in an amount equal to the greater of 1% of the unpaid principal of residential mortgage loans,
and 5% of FHLB advances outstanding.

        Corporate Governance.    United regularly monitors developments in the area of corporate governance. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(the "Sarbanes-Oxley Act") established a number of new corporate governance standards and disclosure requirements. The Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC") has issued additional rules to implement the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In addition, Nasdaq adopted changes to its
corporate governance and listing standards. United has reviewed its governance policies and practices against the requirements of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, related SEC rules and Nasdaq's listing standards. As a result, United has taken steps to implement those rules and listing
standards. In particular, United continues to maintain the following:

�
A Nominating Committee and a Nominating Committee Charter;

�
A code of Ethics and Business Conduct applicable to directors, officers and employees of the Company and of Heritage
Bank;

�
An Audit Committee Charter;

�
A Compensation Committee Charter; and

�
A policy of holding regularly scheduled meetings of United's non-management directors, separate from management.

        United will be subject to the new Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 404 requirements regarding internal control evaluation and reporting for the
year ended December 31, 2007.

        United's Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committee charters can be obtained by visiting United's website and clicking on the
Corporate Governance link on the home page www.ufcmontana.com, or by writing to: United Financial Corp., c/o Investor Relations, P.O. Box
2779, Great Falls, MT 59403.

Taxation

        General.    United files consolidated Federal and State of Montana income tax returns pursuant to a tax sharing agreement. Generally, with
some exceptions, including Heritage Bank's reserve for bad debts discussed below, United is subject to Federal and state income taxes in the
same manner as other corporations.

        The following discussion of tax matters is intended solely as a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all the
tax rules applicable to United.
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        Tax Bad Debt Reserves.    For taxable years beginning prior to January 1, 1996, savings institutions, which met certain definitional tests
primarily relating to their assets and the nature of their business ("qualifying thrifts"), were permitted to establish a reserve for bad debts and to
make annual additions thereto, which additions may, within specified formula limits, be deducted in arriving at their taxable income.

        Federal legislation repealed the reserve method of accounting for bad debt reserves for tax years beginning after December 31, 1995. As a
result, savings associations could no longer calculate their deduction for bad debts using the percentage-of-taxable-income method. Instead,
savings associations were required to compute their deduction based on actual charge-offs during the taxable year or, if the savings association
or its controlled group had assets of less than $500 million, based on actual loss experience over a period of years. This legislation also required
savings associations to recapture into income over a six-year period their post-1987 additions to their bad debt tax reserves, thereby generating
additional current tax liability.

Property

        At December 31, 2005, United owned 13 of its 15 offices, including its headquarters and other property having an aggregated book value
including land of approximately $7.1 million, and leased the remaining branches. Three locations are leased, including two building leases and
one land lease. The following schedule provides property information for the United's locations as of December 31, 2005.

Properties
Leased

Properties
Owned

Net Leasehold
Improvements

Net Book
Value
Owned

(Dollars in thousands)

Heritage Bank:
Great Falls (25,125 sq. ft.) � 3 $ � $ 2,821
Billings (4,900 sq. ft.) 1 1 � 1,379
Bozeman (4,000 sq. ft.) � 1 � 1,193
Missoula (3,600 sq. ft.) � 1 � 762
Havre (2,400 sq. ft.) � 1 � 246
Libby (1,250 sq. ft.) � 1 � 149
Chester (1,800 sq. ft.) � 1 � 142
Shelby (2,800 sq. ft.) � 1 � 101
Fort Benton (5,000 sq. ft.) � 1 � 99
Glendive (4,000 sq. ft.) � 1 � 99
Geraldine (4,350 sq. ft.) � 1 � 61
Kalispell (2,500 sq. ft.) 1 � 65 �
Hamilton (1,200 sq. ft.) 1 � � �

Total Montana locations 3 13 $ 65 $ 7,052

Legal Proceedings

        Although neither United nor Heritage Bank are involved in any material pending litigation as of September 30, 2006, Heritage Bank is a
defendant in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of current
litigation will not have a material effect on United's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.
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Market For United's Common Equity And Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases Of Equity Securities

Market Information

        United common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "UBMT." The closing sale price per share of United
common stock on November 24, 2006 was $23.04.

Shareholder Data

        As of November 17, 2006, there were approximately 200 owners of record of United common stock and an estimated 1,000 additional
beneficial holders whose shares of United common stock were held in street name by brokerage houses.

Common Stock Market Prices

        The quarterly (high and low) sale prices for United's common stock on the Nasdaq National Market during the past two years were as
follows. All prices have been adjusted for the effect of the June 2002 10% stock dividend, the June 2003 50% stock dividend, and the
December 2005 25% stock dividend.

2005 2004

United Stock Price United Stock Price

High Low High Low

First Quarter $ 19.75 $ 18.88 $ 23.02 $ 19.84
Second Quarter 20.20 18.88 20.73 18.34
Third Quarter 20.16 19.12 19.54 17.94
Fourth Quarter 21.56 20.75 19.77 18.59

Dividend Payment History on United Common Stock

        United paid the following cash dividends for each of the four quarters of 2005 and 2004, adjusted for the 10% stock dividend in June 2002,
the 50% stock dividend in June 2003 and the 25% stock dividend in December 2005:

2005 2004

First Quarter $ .22 $ .21
Second Quarter .22 1.01
Third Quarter 23 .22
Fourth Quarter .23 .22

$ .90 $ 1.66

        The declaration and payment of future dividends by the United Board is dependent upon United's net income, financial condition, economic
and market conditions, industry standards, certain regulatory and tax considerations and limitations and other conditions. No assurance can be
given, or should be assumed, as to the amount, timing or frequency of future dividend payments.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants

        None.
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UNITED UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Statements Of Financial Condition

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
September 30,

2006
December 31,

2005

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,808 19,127
Securities available-for-sale 39,641 35,359
Restricted stock, at cost 4,228 4,228
Loans held for sale 7,899 3,902
Loans receivable, net 332,578 311,997
Accrued interest receivable 3,367 2,537
Premises and equipment, net 8,614 8,519
Goodwill 1,422 1,422
Other assets 2,514 2,456

$ 418,071 389,547

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Demand, NOW and money market demand accounts $ 89,542 90,556
Savings deposits 49,135 51,472
Time deposits 172,439 161,663

311,116 303,691
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 56,857 42,044
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 8,608 4,248
Accrued interest payable 2,780 2,043
Subordinated debt owed to trust 3,093 3,093
Other liabilities 2,434 2,450

384,888 357,569

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares; no shares issued and
outstanding � �
Common stock, no par value; authorized 8,000,000 shares; 3,075,820 and 3,071,158
shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively 26,949 26,902
Paid in capital 108 64
Retained earnings 6,362 5,263
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (236) (251)

33,183 31,978

$ 418,071 389,547

Equity/Assets 7.94% 8.21
Book Value/Share $ 10.79 10.41

See Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

85



64

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

86



United Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Statements Of Income

(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005

Interest income
Loans receivable $ 6,254 5,096 17,615 13,953
Taxable investments 466 326 1,316 1,058
Nontaxable investments 5 4 14 13
Other interest earning assets 22 44 94 104

Total interest income 6,747 5,470 19,039 15,128
Interest expense
Deposits 2,253 1,438 6,197 3,483
Other borrowings 811 524 2,006 1,563

Total interest expense 3,064 1,962 8,203 5,046

Net interest income 3,683 3,508 10,836 10,082
Provision for loan losses � 100 175 150

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 3,683 3,408 10,661 9,932

Non-interest income
Gain on sale of loans 1,005 1,107 2,583 2,602
Service charges and fees 311 362 898 952
Gain on sale of securities available-for-sale � 1 � 1
Other 36 44 104 86

Total non-interest income 1,352 1,514 3,585 3,641
Non-interest expense
Compensation and benefits 1,900 1,880 5,525 5,208
Occupancy and equipment expense 387 371 1,127 1,086
Data processing fees 241 206 510 594
Other expenses 626 569 1,874 1,775

Total non-interest expense 3,154 3,026 9,036 8,663

Income before income taxes 1,881 1,896 5,210 4,910
Income taxes 726 719 1,990 1,860

Net income $ 1,155 1,177 3,220 3,050

Basic earnings per share $ ..38 ..38 1.05 ..99
Diluted earnings per share .37 .37 1.02 .97
Dividends declared per share .23 .23 .69 .67
Weighted average shares outstanding�basic 3,075 3,064 3,073 3,058
Weighted average shares outstanding�diluted 3,145 3,149 3,147 3,145

See Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.
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United Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Statements Of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2006

September 30,
2005

Cash flows from operating activities, before loans held for sale $ 3,708 4,216
Mortgage loans originated and held for sale (125,610) (124,183)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 121,613 119,559

Net cash from operating activities (289) (408)

Cash flows from investing activities
Net increase in loans receivable (20,928) (35,429)
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (11,011) (5,721)
Proceeds from maturities, pay downs and sales of securities available-for-sale 6,709 11,946
Purchases of premises and equipment (561) (630)
Proceeds from sale of real estate and other personal property owned 225 286

Net cash from investing activities (25,566) (29,548)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposits 7,425 44,496
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 79,750 56,100
Payments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances (64,938) (66,537)
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,360 (2,643)
Dividends paid to stockholders (2,121) (2,056)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 48 156
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options 12 �

Net cash from financing activities 24,536 29,516

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,319) (440)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 19,127 19,187

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 17,808 18,747

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure
Cash payments for interest $ 7,466 4,600
Cash payments for income taxes 2,082 1,667

Non Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Acquisition of other personal property in settlement of loans $ 161 101

See Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements.
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Notes To Unaudited Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

General

        United Financial Corp. ("United," or the "Company") is a bank holding company headquartered in Great Falls, Montana, with operations in
14 locations in 13 Montana communities. United was organized as a Minnesota corporation in 1996. United conducts its banking business in
Montana through its wholly owned subsidiary, Heritage Bank, a Montana corporation established in 1923.

        Heritage Bank is a state-chartered commercial bank with locations in Billings, Bozeman, Chester, Fort Benton, Glendive, Great Falls (three
locations), Hamilton, Havre, Kalispell, Missoula, Libby and Shelby, Montana. Effective October 31, 2006, a location in Geraldine was closed
and those operations merged into the Fort Benton location. Heritage Bank conducts its community banking business by soliciting deposits from
the general public through its branches and using those deposits, together with other available funds, to originate commercial (including lease
financing), commercial real estate, residential, agricultural and consumer loans primarily in its market areas in Montana. Heritage Bank's
banking business is concentrated in the Great Falls area with 49% of United's total assets located at Heritage Bank's Great Falls locations.
Heritage Bank also invests in mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasury obligations, other U.S. Government agency obligations and other
interest-earning assets.

        Heritage Bank's financial condition and results of operations and therefore, its financial condition and results of operations, depend
primarily on net interest income and fee income. Heritage Bank's financial condition and results of operations are also significantly influenced
by local and national economic conditions, changes in market interest rates, governmental policies, tax laws and the actions of various regulatory
agencies.

        United's principal offices are located at 120 First Avenue North, Great Falls, Montana 59401, and its telephone number is (406) 727-6106.

        United's periodic and current reports are available, free of charge, on its website as soon as reasonably practicable after United files or
furnishes such material to the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC").

Basis of Presentation

        The accompanying consolidated condensed statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2005, which has been derived from audited
financial statements, and the unaudited interim consolidated condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") for interim financial information and in accordance with the
instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Accordingly, United's consolidated
condensed financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the
opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated condensed financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows for
the periods disclosed. United's operating results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of the
results that United anticipates for the year ending December 31, 2006. For additional information, you should refer to the consolidated audited
financial statements and related footnotes included in United's Annual Report to Shareholders and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005. Certain reclassifications have been made to the September 30, 2005 financial information to conform to the
September 30, 2006 presentation. These reclassifications did not affect previously reported net income or stockholders' equity.
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Comprehensive Income

        Unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale comprise United's only significant element of other comprehensive income.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2006 2005

Net income $ 1,155 1,177 3,220 3,050
Unrealized and realized holding gains (losses) arising during period 346 (86) 15 (160)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income, net of
tax � 1 � 1

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale, net of tax 346 (85) 15 (159)

Total comprehensive income $ 1,501 1,092 3,235 2,891

Computation Of Earnings Per Share

        Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for
the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic EPS plus
the incremental amount of potential common stock determined by the treasury stock method. Potential common stock includes the incremental
shares available for issuance under stock option plans.

        The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005 2006 2005

Weighted average shares outstanding during the period on which basic
earnings per share is calculated 3,075 3,064 3,073 3,058
Add: incremental shares under stock option plans 70 85 74 87

Average outstanding shares on which diluted earnings per share is calculated 3,145 3,149 3,147 3,145

Net income applicable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ 1,155 1,177 3,220 3,050
Basic earnings per share $ .38 .38 1.05 .99
Diluted earnings per share $ .37 .37 1.02 .97
Related Parties

        Central Financial Services, Inc. ("CFS") provides various management services to United, including certain accounting and tax services,
investment consulting, personnel consulting, asset-liability management and regulatory consulting. CFS is owned by United's largest shareholder
and has been providing similar services to various banks and financial services organizations since December of 1988. CFS fees billed to United
were approximately $0.1 million for the three month periods and $0.3 million for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The fees are billed by CFS on an hourly basis for work performed by United's Chairman, United's largest shareholder, and four
other CFS employees. United's Chairman does not receive direct compensation from United for these services. He is compensated for services as
a director through director's fees of $400 per month,
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and for services as an officer of United through CFS. Through CFS, United's largest shareholder and Chairman earn annual salaries of $100,000
and $151,000, respectively.

        From time to time, Heritage Bank purchases loans from Central Bank, a Stillwater, Minnesota Bank and Timberline Bank in Grand
Junction, Colorado. United's largest shareholder founded Central Bank in 1988, and United's Chairman is the Chairman of its Board. United's
Chairman also serves on the Board of Directors of Timberline Bank. Balances of loan participations outstanding with Central Bank and
Timberline Bank at September 30, 2006 were $3.2 million and $12.4 million, respectively.

        United expects such transactions to continue to occur in the future with both Central Bank and Timberline Bank. Such sales have in the past
and will continue in the future to be made on the same terms as loan participations which are sold to nonaffiliated persons. United's largest
shareholder and its Chairman serve on other bank boards as well. These banks, to date, have not had any loan participation activity with Heritage
Bank.

Subsequent Events-Dividends Declared And Definitive Agreement Signed

        On October 24, 2006, United's Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.23 per share, payable December 1, 2006, to
shareholders of record on November 17, 2006.

        On November 6, 2006, U.S. Bancorp and United Financial Corp. announced the signing of a definitive agreement for U.S. Bancorp to
acquire United Financial Corp. This acquisition will nearly double the branch presence in Montana for U.S. Bancorp's lead bank, U.S. Bank
National Association and give the bank a deposit base exceeding $1 billion. The agreement provides for a stock-for-stock merger in which
0.6825 shares of U.S. Bancorp will be exchanged for each common share of United. Based upon stock prices of both companies on November 3,
2006, this represents approximately $22.91 per share. Completion of the transaction, which is expected to occur in the first quarter of 2007, is
contingent upon customary closing conditions, including regulatory approval and the approval of United's shareholders.

Stock-Based Compensation

        United has a stock-based employee compensation plan which is described more fully in footnotes included in United's Annual Report to
Shareholders and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005. United adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) Number 123 (R), Share-Based Payment (SFAS No. 123 (R)), on January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method.
Under this method, awards that are granted, modified, or settled after December 31, 2005, are measured and accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 123(R). Also under this method, expense is recognized for unvested awards that were granted prior to January 1, 2006, based upon
the fair value determined at the grant date under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS No. 123). Prior to adoption
of SFAS No. 123 (R), United accounted for stock compensation under the intrinsic value method permitted by Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB No. 25) and related interpretations. Accordingly, United previously recognized
no compensation cost for employee stock options that were granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common
stock on the date of grant. United's accounting policy for recognizing compensation costs for awards with graded vesting is straight line over the
vesting period.
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        The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if United had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123 (R) in 2005.

(In thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2005

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2005

Net income: As reported $ 1,177 3,050
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects(1) (4) (12)

Pro forma net income $ 1,173 3,038

Earnings per share:
Basic�as reported $ .38 .99
Basic�pro forma $ .38 .99
Diluted�as reported $ .37 .97
Diluted�pro forma $ .37 .97

(1)
A Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to determine the fair value of the options granted.

        As a result of adopting SFAS 123 (R) on January 1, 2006, income before taxes and net income for the nine months ended September 30,
2006 are $31,677 and $29,173 lower, respectively, than if United had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB No. 25.
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 would have been $1.06 and $1.03, respectively, if United
had not adopted SFAS 123 (R), compared to reported basic and diluted earnings per share of $1.05 and $1.02, respectively. Prior to adopting
SFAS 123 (R), United presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS 123 (R) requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in
excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. The $11,962 excess
tax benefit classified as a financing cash flow would have been classified as an operating cash inflow if United had not adopted SFAS 123 (R).

        Share-based compensation expense recognized for stock options was $31,677 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The total
related income tax benefit recognized was $2,504 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Stock Option Plan

        United has a stock-based employee compensation plan for directors and employees. Options have a term of ten years, are generally granted
with an exercise price equal to the market value of United's stock at the date of grant, and generally vest over four years. At September 30, 2006,
54,856 shares of common stock were available for grant under the plan.
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        The following table presents the activity related to options under the plan for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Shares
Actual

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Weighted-Average
Remaining Term

(in years)
Aggregate

Intrinsic Value

Options Outstanding at January 1, 2006 208,578 $ 11.99
Granted � �
Exercised (4,662) 10.25
Forfeited or Expired (3,932) 15.95

Outstanding at September 30, 2006 199,984 $ 11.96 5.80 $ 1,828,506

Exercisable at September 30, 2006 162,626 $ 10.12 5.80 $ 1,784,824

        No options were granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005. The total intrinsic value (amount by which the fair
value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of an option on exercise date) of options exercised during the nine months ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005 was $54,142 and $176,856, respectively.

        Cash received from option exercises for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 was $47,803 and $156,482, respectively. The
amount of excess tax benefits received for these options exercised for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 was $11,962 and
$20,087, respectively.

        United issues new shares to satisfy option exercises.

        At September 30, 2006, there was $0.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.5 years.

Critical Accounting Policies

        United has identified its most critical accounting policies to be those related to the allowance for loan losses, stock based compensation and
accounting for securities available-for-sale. United's allowance for loan losses methodology incorporates a variety of risk considerations in
establishing an allowance for loan losses that management believes is appropriate. Risk factors include historical loss experience, delinquency
and charge-off trends, collateral values, an analysis of the current loan portfolio, and the level of non-performing and impaired loans. United also
uses an internal loan risk grading system to evaluate potential losses of individual loans. Other factors include the future economic trends in
United's markets and, in particular, the state of certain industries. Changes in any of the above factors could have a significant affect on the
calculation of the allowance for loan losses in any given period. Therefore, management performs a full analysis on a quarterly basis to ensure
that changes in estimated loan loss levels are reflected in the loan loss allowance on a timely basis.

        In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued SFAS No. 123 (R) (revised 2004), "Share-Based
Payment." This Statement requires United to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the award. United recognizes that cost over the period during which an employee provides service in
exchange for the award. See Note 7 above regarding the impact of implementing this statement.

        United has also identified its accounting method for securities available-for-sale to be a critical accounting policy. United carries securities
available-for-sale at fair value and excludes unrealized gains

71

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

95



and losses (net of related tax effects) from earnings, except when unrealized losses are determined to be other than temporary. United reports
these unrealized gains and losses (net of related tax effects) as a separate component of stockholders' equity.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

        In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No,
109 ("FIN 48"), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. This interpretation provides that the financial statement effects of
a tax position shall initially be recognized when it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the position will be sustained upon
examination. This interpretation also may require additional disclosures related to tax position taken.

        The provisions of FIN 48 are effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2007, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle
recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. United's management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN
48 on United's financial statements but does not expect the adoption of this statement to be significant to the financial statements.

        In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, an amendment of SFAS No. 140. This
Statement amends SFAS No. 140 to require that all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities be initially measured at fair
value, if practicable. This Statement permits, but does not require, the subsequent measurement of separately recognized servicing assets and
servicing liabilities at fair value.

        The provisions of SFAS No. 156 are effective as of the beginning of an entity's first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006, with
the cumulative effect of the change in fair value recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. United management is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 156 on United's financial statements but does not expect the impact of the change to be
material.

        In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157
applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements.

        The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. United management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on United's financial
statements but does not expect the impact of the change to be material.

        In September 2006, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans. SFAS No. 158 improves financial reporting by requiring an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to recognize
changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income of the business entity or changes in
unrestricted net assets of a not-for-profit organization. This statement also improves financial reporting by requiring an employer to measure the
funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position, with limited exceptions.

        The provisions of SFAS No. 158 are effective for employers with publicly traded equity securities as of the end of the fiscal year ending
after December 15, 2006. United management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 158 on United's financial statements but
does not expect the impact of the change to be material.
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Management's Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Results Of Operations

Key Performance Indicators

September 30,
2006

December
31, 2005

Capital ratios (Bank holding company):
Tier 1 leverage ratio 8.39% 8.71
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 9.84% 10.18
Total risk-based capital ratio 10.94% 11.26

Allowance for loan losses to loans 1.13% 1.19
Nonperforming loans to total loans � �
Book value per share $ 10.79 10.41
(In Thousands)
Loans receivable and held for sale, gross $ 344,373 319,650
Allowance for loan losses $ 3,896 3,751
Nonperforming loans $ 6 30
Total assets $ 418,071 389,547
Total deposits $ 311,116 303,691
Net loans to deposits 109.4% 104.0

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2006

September 30,
2005

September 30,
2006

September 30,
2005

Net earnings:
Return on average assets 1.12% 1.24 1.06 1.12
Return on average common equity 14.26% 15.00 13.36 13.21

Net interest margin 3.84% 4.03 3.85 4.03
Earnings per share-basic $ .38 .38 1.05 .99
Earnings per share-diluted $ .37 .37 1.02 .97
Dividends per share $ .23 .23 .69 .67

Non Financial:
Full-time employees 125 127 125 127
New deposit accounts 1,403 2,073 4,563 4,672
Closed or reissued deposit accounts 1,180 1,131 3,434 3,042
Full service branches 14 13 14 13
ATM's 10 9 10 9
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Material Changes In Financial Condition. Comparison Of September 30, 2006 To December 31, 2005

Selected Financial Condition Data

September 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

$
Change

%
Change

(In Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,808 19,127 (1,319) (6.9)
Securities available-for-sale 39,641 35,359 4,282 12.1
Restricted stock, at cost 4,228 4,228 � �
Loans held for sale 7,899 3,902 3,997 102.4
Loans receivable, net 332,578 311,997 20,581 6.6
Premises and equipment, net 8,614 8,518 96 1.1
Goodwill 1,422 1,422 � �
All other assets 5,881 4,994 887 17.8
Total assets 418,071 389,547 28,524 7.3
Deposits 311,116 303,691 7,425 2.4
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 56,857 42,044 14,813 35.2
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 8,608 4,248 4,360 102.6
Subordinated debt 3,093 3,093 � �
All other liabilities 5,214 4,493 722 16.0
Total liabilities 384,888 357,569 27,319 7.6
Stockholders' equity, net 33,183 31,978 1,205 3.8

Total assets�Total assets increased $28.5 million to $418.1 million at September 30, 2006 from $389.6 million at December 31, 2005.
Assets increased primarily because of a net increase in loans receivable and loans held for sale of approximately $24.6 million. Securities
available-for-sale increased approximately $4.3 million. Other changes totaling $(.4) million are detailed in the table above.

Securities available-for-sale�Securities available-for-sale increased $4.3 million to $39.6 million at September 30, 2006 from $35.4 million
at December 31, 2005. The increase was the result of $11.0 million of purchases offset by $6.7 million of principal repayments and maturities.
Unrealized losses on securities available-for-sale decreased $0.1 million, before income taxes, for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.
United's portfolio consists primarily of agency and mortgage backed securities and is likely to remain as such.

Loans Receivable�United summarizes loans receivable, net of unamortized net deferred loan fees, as of September 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, in the following table:

September 30,
2006

December 31,
2005

(In thousands)

First mortgage loans and contracts secured by real estate $ 138,637 114,303
Commercial real estate loans 76,924 79,036
Commercial loans 59,669 65,576
Agricultural loans 17,715 16,578
Consumer Loans 43,529 40,255

336,474 315,748

Allowance for loan losses (3,896) (3,751)

$ 332,578 311,997
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        Allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated are:

Nine Months
Ended

September 30,
2006

Year Ended
December 31,

2005

(In thousands)

Balance, beginning of period $ 3,751 3,708
Provision for loan losses 175 230
Losses charged off (49) (217)
Recoveries 19 30

Balance, end of period $ 3,896 3,751

Loans Receivable and Loans Held for Sale�Net loans receivable increased by $20.6 million to $332.6 million at September 30, 2006 from
$312.0 million at December 31, 2005. United attributes the increase primarily to growth in the real estate loan category. The increase includes a
$24.3 million increase in first mortgage loans and contracts secured by real estate and a $3.3 million increase in consumer loans. These increases
were offset by a $2.1 million decrease in commercial real estate loans and a $5.9 million decrease in commercial loans.

        Heritage Bank purchases and participates in commercial and lease financing loans. In the normal course of business, banks often purchase
loans from other banks that would exceed the originating bank's lending limit. Heritage Bank had $29.3 million and $32.6 million of
participation and purchased loans as of September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively. The $29.3 million balance at September 30,
2006 includes $3.2 million of loan participation balances outstanding with Central Bank and $12.4 million of loan participation balances
outstanding with Timberline Bank. The $32.6 million balance at December 31, 2005 includes loan participation balances outstanding with
Central Bank of $3.5 million and $12.7 million of loan participation balances outstanding with Timberline Bank. Each of the loans purchased
from Central Bank and Timberline Bank were loans that would have exceeded those banks' lending limits when originated. Heritage Bank has
no participated loans sold as a result of legal lending limit issues.

        During the nine months ended September 30, 2006, loans held for sale increased $4.0 million to $7.9 million at September 30, 2006 from
$3.9 million at December 31, 2005. United originated for sale $125.6 million of residential real estate loans, and United sold $121.6 million of
residential real estate loans to the secondary market during the nine months ending September 30, 2006.

Allowance for Loan Losses�The allowance for loan losses increased $0.1 million to $3.9 million at September 30, 2006 as compared to
$3.8 million at December 31, 2005. Loan charge offs of $0.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, were offset by a
$0.2 million provision for loan losses. United management believes the allowance for loan losses at September 30, 2006 was adequate given the
low level of non-performing assets and management's assessment of loan risk. The allowance for loan losses to total loans receivable at
September 30, 2006 was 1.13% as compared to 1.19% at December 31, 2005.
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        The following table summarizes non-accrual, non-performing and classified asset balances at September 30, 2006 as compared to
December 31, 2005.

September 30, 2006 December 31, 2005

Balance

% of
Total
Bank
Assets Balance

% of
Total
Bank
Assets

(In thousands)

Non-accrual loans $ 6 �% � �
90 days past due and still accruing � � .1 .02
Assets classified as loss � � � �
Assets classified as doubtful � � � �
Assets classified as substandard .3 .06 .3 .1
Impaired .3 .06 .3 .1

Deposits�Deposits increased by $7.4 million to $311.1 million at September 30, 2006 from $303.7 million at December 31, 2005. The
decrease in NOW and money market accounts and savings accounts from December 31, 2005 to September 30, 2006 reflect the normal volatility
in these types of accounts. The increase in certificates of deposits primarily resulted from a combination of competitive rates on all deposit
offerings, and Heritage Bank's commitment to community banking, both of which continue to attract depositors. Brokered deposits decreased
$3.9 million to $14.4 million at September 30, 2006, from $18.3 million at December 31, 2005. Brokered deposits are deposits obtained through
a broker who engages in facilitating the placement of deposits with insured depository institutions for a third party. The following table breaks
down United's deposits, as of September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, by types and amounts.

September 30, 2006 December 31, 2005

(In thousands)

Demand accounts $ 56,666 18.2% 56,642 18.7
NOW and money market accounts 32,875 10.6 33,914 11.2
Savings accounts 49,135 15.8 51,472 16.9
Certificate of deposits 172,440 55.4 161,663 53.2

$ 311,116 100.0% 303,691 100.0

Borrowed Funds�Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased $14.9 million from $42.0 million at December 31, 2005 to $56.9 million at
September 30, 2006. The increase of $14.9 million consists of $79.8 million in advances and $64.9 million in repayments. Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase increased $4.3 million to $8.6 million at September 30, 2006 from $4.3 million at December 31, 2005.

Stockholders' Equity�Stockholders' equity totaled $33.2 million at September 30, 2006, up $1.2 million from $32.0 million at
December 31, 2005. Stockholders' equity activity during the third quarter included $3.2 million of net income less cash dividends declared of
$2.1 million. The remaining increase of $.1 million was a result of new stock issued under the stock option plan.
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Material Changes In Results Of Operations�Comparison Of The Three Months Ended September 30, 2006 And September 30, 2005

Selected Income Statement Data Three
Months Ended September 30,

2006 2005 $ Change % Change

(In Thousands)

Interest income $ 6,747 5,470 1,277 23.3%
Interest expense 3,064 1,962 1,102 56.2

Net interest income 3,683 3,508 175 5.0
Provision for losses on loans � 100 (100) (100.0)

Net interest income after provision for losses on loans 3,683 3,408 275 8.0
Non-interest income 1,352 1,514 (162) (10.7)
Non-interest expense 3,154 3,026 128 4.2

Income before income taxes 1,881 1,896 (15) (.8)
Income taxes 726 719 7 .9

Net income $ 1,155 1,177 (22) (1.9)

Net Interest Income�Like most financial institutions, the most significant component of United's earnings is net interest income, which is
the difference between the interest earned on interest-earning assets (loans, investment securities, mortgage-backed securities and other
interest-earning assets), and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. This amount, when divided by average interest-earning assets, is
referred to as the net interest margin, expressed as a percentage. Net interest income and net interest margins are affected by changes in interest
rates, the volume and the mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and the level of non-performing assets. The difference
between the yield on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing liabilities expressed as a percentage is referred to as the net
interest-rate spread. Net interest income increased $.2 million to $3.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 from $3.5 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2005. Net interest margin decreased .19% to 3.84% for the three months ended September 30, 2006
from 4.03% for the three months ended September 30, 2005. Net interest spread decreased .36% to 3.25% for the three months ended
September 30, 2006 from 3.61% for the three months ended September 30, 2005.

Interest Income�The $1.3 million increase reported above in interest income was attributable to loan interest income. Average balances of
loans for the three months ended September 30, 2006 increased $34.8 million to $338.5 million as compared to average balances for the same
period in 2005 of $303.7 million. Likewise, weighted average interest rates on loans have increased at September 30, 2006 to 7.39%, up .68%
from 6.71% at September 30, 2005.

Interest Expense�Interest expense increased $1.1 million to $3.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 from $2.0 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2005. The average balance of deposits increased $19.9 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2006 to $258.4 million compared to $238.5 million the same period in 2005. Higher interest rates during the three months ended
September 30, 2006 resulted in an increase in interest expense on deposits of $0.8 million during the three months ended September 30, 2006
compared to the same period in 2005. Average interest yields on deposits were 3.49% and 2.41% at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Non-interest Income�In addition to net interest income, United generates significant non-interest income from a range of retail banking
services, including mortgage banking activities and service
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charges for deposit services. Non-interest income totaled $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and $1.5 million for the
same period in 2005.

        Heritage Bank's loan demand has remained consistent in the residential real estate origination market, during the three months ended
September 30, 2006 as compared to the same period in 2005, as mortgage interest rates remain stable. Gain on sale of loans decreased
$0.1 million for the three months ending September 30, 2006 to $1.0 million from $1.1 million for the same period in 2005.

Material Changes In Results Of Operations-Comparison Of The Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006 And September 30, 2005

Selected Income Statement Data Nine Months
Ended September 30,

2006 2005 $ Change % Change

(In thousands)

Interest income $ 19,039 15,128 3,911 25.8
Interest expense 8,203 5,046 3,157 62.6

Net interest income 10,836 10,082 754 7.5
Provision for losses on loans 175 150 25 16.7

Net interest income after provision for losses on loans 10,661 9,932 729 7.3
Non-interest income 3,585 3,641 (56) (1.5)
Non-interest expense 9,036 8,663 373 4.3

Income before income taxes 5,210 4,910 300 6.1
Income taxes 1,990 1,860 130 7.0

Net Income $ 3,220 3,050 170 5.6

Net Interest Income�Net interest income increased $0.7 million to $10.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 from
$10.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005. Net interest margin decreased .18% to 3.85% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006 from 4.03% for the same period in 2005. Net interest-rate spread decreased .35% to 3.30% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006 from 3.65% for the same period in 2005.

Interest Income�The $3.9 million increase reported above in interest income was attributable to loan interest income. Average balances of
loans for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 increased $42.0 million to $329.8 million as compared to average balances of
$287.8 million for the same period in 2005. Likewise, weighted average interest rates on loans have increased at September 30, 2006 to 7.12%,
up .66% from 6.46% at September 30, 2005.

Interest Expense�Interest expense increased $3.2 million to $8.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 from $5.0 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2005. The average balance of deposits increased $34.9 million to $257.2 for the nine months ending
September 30, 2006, compared to $222.3 million for the same period in 2005. The $0.4 million increase in interest on other borrowings included
increases in both interest on FHLB advances and repurchase agreements. The average balance of FHLB advances decreased $2.9 million for the
nine months ending September 30, 2006 to $46.9 million, compared to $49.8 million for the same period in 2005 and the weighted average rate
for outstanding advances increased to 4.53% at September 30, 2006 from 3.57% at September 30, 2005. The average balance of repurchase
agreements increased $2.6 million to $8.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to $6.3 million for the same period
in 2005. The weighted average rate for repurchase agreements increased to 3.26% at September 30, 2006 from 1.53% at September 30, 2005.
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Provision for Loan Losses�United provided $0.2 million for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Provisions in 2006 were made to offset loan charge-offs.

        The provision for loan losses is determined by management as the amount to be added to the allowance for loan losses after net charge-offs
have been deducted to bring the allowance to a level which is considered adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio in
accordance with GAAP. Future additions to United's allowance for loan losses and any change in the related ratio of the allowance for loan
losses to non-performing assets are dependent upon the performance and composition of United's loan portfolio, the economy, inflation, changes
in real estate values and interest rates and the view of the regulatory authorities toward adequate reserve levels.

Non-interest Income�Non-interest income was $3.6 million for both the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

Non-interest Expense�United's non-interest expense increased $0.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2006 as compared
to the same period in 2005 to $9.0 million from $8.7 million, primarily due to increases in personnel costs.

Asset/Liability Management

        United's earnings depend to a large extent on the level of its "net interest income." Net interest income depends upon the difference
(referred to as "interest rate spread") between the yield on United's loan and investment portfolios and interest-earning cash balances (referred to
as "interest-earning assets"), and the rates paid on its deposits and borrowings (referred to as "interest-bearing liabilities"). The relative amounts
of United's interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities also affect net interest income. In recent years, United's interest-earning assets
have exceeded interest-bearing liabilities. However, when interest-earning assets decrease as a result of non-accrual loans and investments in
non-interest earning assets, net interest income and interest rate spread also decrease and any continued decrease in the level of interest-earning
assets would generally result in a negative impact on earnings.

        One of United's management's primary objectives has been to structure the balance sheet to reduce United's vulnerability to changes in
interest rates (referred to as "interest rate risk"). Commercial banking institutions can suffer from a mismatch in the term to maturity of their
assets and liabilities, with mortgage loan assets tending to be of a much longer term than deposits, the primary liabilities of commercial banking
institutions. In periods of rising interest rates, this mismatch can render commercial banking institutions vulnerable to increases in costs of funds
(deposits and borrowings) that can outstrip increases in returns on longer-term fixed rate loans and investments, resulting in a reduction in
interest rate spread and lower earnings.

        Management has employed several strategies to minimize the mismatch of asset and liability maturities. Heritage Bank sells the majority of
newly-originated long-term (15 to 30-year maturity) fixed-rate mortgage loans to the secondary market. Heritage Bank sells these loans at their
outstanding principal balance, which is the prearranged contract purchase price, and therefore, the amount recognized under the income
statement caption "gain on sale of loans" represents fee income only. Heritage Bank promotes the origination and retention of loans providing
for periodic interest rate adjustments, shorter terms to maturity or balloon provisions. Heritage Bank also emphasizes investment in adjustable
rate or shorter-term mortgage-backed securities and other interest-earning investments. When maturities of loans increase, management
generally offsets the increased interest rate risk with matching funds and maturities with Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings.
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Liquidity And Capital Resources

        United's primary sources of funds are deposits, FHLB borrowings, repurchase agreements, proceeds from loan sales, and loan and
mortgage-backed securities repayments. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and mortgage-backed securities are a predictable
source of funds, deposit flows and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by market interest rates, economic conditions and competition.
In a period of declining interest rates, mortgage prepayments generally increase. As a result, United generally would invest these proceeds from
mortgage prepayments in lower yielding loans or other investments which have the effect of reducing interest income. In a period of rising
interest rates, mortgage prepayments would generally decrease and United generally would invest the proceeds from such prepayments in higher
yielding loans or investments which would have the effect of increasing interest income.

        Federal bank regulatory agencies use capital adequacy guidelines in the examination and regulation of bank holding companies and banks.
If capital falls below minimum guideline levels, the holding company or bank may be denied approval to acquire or establish additional banks or
nonbank businesses, to open new facilities, or to accept brokered deposits.

        The FDIC and Federal Reserve use risk-based capital guidelines for banks and bank holding companies. These are designed to make such
capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies, to account for off-balance sheet
exposure, and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories, each
with appropriate weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items.
The guidelines are minimums, and the Federal Reserve has noted that bank holding companies contemplating significant expansion programs
should not allow expansion to diminish their capital ratios and should maintain ratios well in excess of the minimum.

        The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("Board") has amended the asset size threshold and other criteria for determining
whether a bank holding company ("BHC") qualifies for the Board's Small Bank Holding Company Policy Statement and an exemption from the
Board's consolidated risk-based and leverage capital adequacy guidelines for BHC's. The Board has adopted this final rule to address the effects
of inflation, industry consolidation, and normal asset growth of BHC's since the Board introduced its previous policy statement in 1980. The
final rule increases the asset size threshold from $150 million to $500 million in consolidated assets for determining whether a BHC may qualify
for the policy statement and an exemption from the capital guidelines; modifies the qualitative criteria used in determining whether a BHC that
is under the asset size threshold nevertheless would not qualify for the policy statement or the exemption from the capital guidelines; and
clarifies the treatment under the policy statement of subordinated debt associated with trust preferred securities.

        The risk-based guidelines apply on a consolidated basis to any BHC with consolidated assets of $500 million or more. The risk-based
guidelines also apply on a consolidated basis to any BHC with consolidated assets of less than $500 million if the holding company (i) is
engaged in significant nonbanking activities either directly or through a nonbank subsidiary; (ii) conducts significant off-balance sheet activities
(including securitization and asset management or administration) either directly or through a nonbank subsidiary; or (iii) has a material amount
of debt or equity securities outstanding (other than trust preferred securities) that are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
The Federal Reserve may apply the risk-based guidelines at its discretion to any BHC, regardless of asset size, if such action is warranted for
supervisory purposes.

        With current consolidated assets of approximately $418 million, it does not appear that United will be subject to the new risk-based
guidelines as described above. United would, however, be subject to
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the small bank holding company rules in Part 225, Regulation Y of title 12 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

        As a state-chartered commercial bank, quantitative requirements for capital adequacy for Heritage Bank include minimum amounts and
ratios set forth in the table below to be considered well capitalized under the prompt corrective action provisions. As of September 30, 2006,
Heritage Bank met all regulatory capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

Heritage Bank

Actual

Minimum capital
requirements to be
well capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(In thousands)

September 30, 2006:
Total risk-based capital $ 36,881 10.40% 35,457 10.0
Tier I risk-based capital 32,985 9.30 21,274 6.0
Tier I leverage 32,985 7.97 20,699 5.0

Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

        Market Risk�Market risk is the risk of loss in a financial instrument arising from adverse changes in market rates/prices such as interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. Since United's earnings depend on its level of interest rate spread, its
primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk ("IRR").

        Interest Rate Risk�United has established a formal IRR policy, and Heritage Bank has an Asset/Liability Management Committee ("ALCO")
and an Investment Committee, which meet at least quarterly to review and report on management's efforts to minimize IRR. United has
employed several asset/liability management strategies to minimize United's exposure to IRR. These strategies include selling most
newly-originated long-term fixed-rate mortgages, promoting the origination and retention of loans providing for periodic interest rate
adjustments, shorter terms to maturity or balloon provisions, and investing in adjustable rate or shorter-term mortgage-backed securities and
other interest-earning investments.

        The Asset/Liability Management Committee utilizes a detailed simulation model prepared by an institutional fund management service to
quantify the estimated exposure of net interest income ("NII") to sustained interest rate changes. The model predicts the impact of changing
interest rates on the interest income received and interest expense paid on assets and liabilities over a 12-month period. United compares this
sensitivity analysis to ALCO policy limits which specify a maximum tolerance level for NII given a 200 basis point (bp) rise or decline in
interest rates.
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        The following table summarizes the sensitivity analysis for Heritage Bank as of June 30, 2006, the most recent information available.
United management believes there has been no material change in interest rate risk since June 30, 2006. For additional information, see
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations".

Heritage Bank
Estimated increase (decrease)
in net interest income:

Interest Rate
Change
+200 bp

Interest Rate
Change
-200 bp

0-90 days $ 52,421 (108,559)
91-360 days (113,337) (136,629)
2 years (215,268) (354,700)
3 years (207,875) (671,288)

        The preceding sensitivity analysis does not represent a forecast and you should not rely upon the analysis as being indicative of expected
operating results. These hypothetical estimates are based upon numerous assumptions, including the nature and timing of interest rate levels
including yield curve shape, prepayments on loans and securities, deposit decay rates, pricing decisions on loans and deposits,
reinvestment/replacement of assets and liability cash flows and other assumptions. Sensitivity analysis does not reflect actions that United might
take in responding to or anticipating changes in interest rates.
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UNITED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors
United Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
Great Falls, Montana

        We have audited the consolidated statements of financial condition of United Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
United Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/  MCGLADREY & PULLEN, LLP      
Sioux Falls, South Dakota
March 3, 2006
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors and Stockholders
United Financial Corp. and Subsidiaries
Great Falls, Montana

        We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of income of United Financial Corp and subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and the related consolidated statements of stockholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows, for the year
ended December 31, 2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and
cash flows of United Financial Corp and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP
Spokane, Washington
February 20, 2004
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United Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

2005 2004

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,126,528 19,187,177
Securities available-for-sale 35,358,861 38,949,170
Restricted stock, at cost 4,228,300 4,211,400
Loans held for sale 3,902,478 5,785,521
Loans receivable, net 311,996,555 265,010,993
Accrued interest receivable 2,536,867 1,937,338
Premises and equipment, net 8,518,570 8,471,062
Real estate and other personal property owned 70,774 293,125
Deferred tax asset, net 738,281 279,392
Goodwill 1,421,912 1,421,912
Other assets 1,648,022 1,592,702

$ 389,547,148 347,139,792

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:
Non-interest bearing deposits $ 56,641,508 47,489,541
Interest bearing deposits 247,049,557 210,844,643

Total deposits 303,691,065 258,334,184
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 42,044,355 44,794,355
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,248,120 7,497,859
Income taxes payable 307,793 13,643
Accrued interest payable 2,042,888 1,189,449
Subordinated debt owed to trust 3,093,000 3,093,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,141,793 1,589,184

Total liabilities 357,569,014 316,511,674

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 13 and 21)

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares; no shares
issued and outstanding � �
Common stock, no par value; authorized 8,000,000 shares; 3,071,158 and
3,045,748 shares issued at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively 26,901,546 26,649,795
Paid in capital 63,864 29,341
Retained earnings 5,263,346 3,871,256
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes (250,622) 77,726

Total stockholders' equity 31,978,134 30,628,118

$ 389,547,148 347,139,792
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See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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United Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Interest income:
Loans receivable $ 19,716,705 16,445,196 15,856,651
Taxable investments 1,427,837 1,551,514 1,574,538
Nontaxable investments 17,937 34,142 80,579
Other interest-earning assets 146,461 133,888 295,940

Total interest income 21,308,940 18,164,740 17,807,708

Interest expense:
Deposits 5,198,749 3,432,324 4,275,965
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,663,822 1,446,962 1,327,754
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 99,435 112,032 189,260
Other borrowings � � 7,837
Subordinated debt owed to trust 215,207 161,166 153,541

Total interest expense 7,177,213 5,152,484 5,954,357

Net interest income 14,131,727 13,012,256 11,853,351

Provision for loan losses 230,000 70,000 778,300

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 13,901,727 12,942,256 11,075,051

Non-interest income:
Gain on sale of loans 3,163,310 2,803,889 4,970,369
Customer service charges 1,164,648 1,072,315 911,938
Loan servicing fees 110,250 101,977 93,197
Gain on sale of securities 989 242,007 17,587
Other 110,776 206,934 191,445

Total non-interest income 4,549,973 4,427,122 6,184,536

Non-interest expense:
Compensation and benefits 7,094,978 6,575,253 6,895,696
Occupancy and equipment 1,470,181 1,426,718 1,306,579
Data processing fees 785,546 753,169 708,518
Management fees 452,096 472,183 459,000
Marketing and business development 192,424 170,246 326,689
Telephone and postage 303,694 298,585 298,995
Legal and accounting 218,069 116,798 148,067
Other 1,269,959 1,275,970 1,348,254

Total non-interest expense 11,786,947 11,088,922 11,491,798
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Years ended December 31,

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 6,664,753 6,280,456 5,767,789

Income taxes 2,525,242 2,362,497 1,938,504

Income from continuing operations 4,139,511 3,917,959 3,829,285
Discontinued operations:
Income from operations, net of tax � � 176,587
Gain on disposal, net of tax � � 714,129

Income from discontinued operations � � 890,716

Net income $ 4,139,511 3,917,959 4,720,001

Basic earnings per share
Continuing operations $ 1.35 1.29 1.26
Discontinued operations � � 0.29

Net income $ 1.35 1.29 1.55

Diluted earnings per share
Continuing operations $ 1.32 1.25 1.22
Discontinued operations � � 0.28

Net income $ 1.32 1.25 1.50

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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United Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income

Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Number of
shares Common stock

Paid in
capital

Retained
earnings

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)

Total
stockholders'

equity

Balances at December 31, 2002 3,048,961 $ 27,166,756 � 2,476,481 832,491 30,475,728

Comprehensive income:
Net income � � 4,720,001 � 4,720,001
Decrease in net unrealized gain on securities
available-for-sale, net of reclassification
adjustment � � � (491,605) (491,605)

Total comprehensive income 4,228,396

Issuance of 8,341 shares; employee stock options
and stock awards 8,341 78,501 � � � 78,501

Dividends declared ($.72 per share) � � (2,181,826) � (2,181,826)

Redemption of common stock (11,000 shares) (11,000) (220,110) � � � (220,110)

Balances at December 31, 2003 3,046,302 $ 27,025,147 � 5,014,656 340,886 32,380,689

Comprehensive income:
Net income � � 3,917,959 � 3,917,959
Decrease in net unrealized gain on securities
available-for-sale, net of reclassification
adjustment � � � (263,160) (263,160)

Total comprehensive income 3,654,799

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options � 29,341 � � 29,341

Issuance of 30,071 shares; employee stock options 30,071 248,363 � � � 248,363

Dividends declared ($1.66 per share) � � (5,061,359) � (5,061,359)

Redemption of common stock (30,625 shares) (30,625) (623,715) � � � (623,715)

Balances at December 31, 2004 3,045,748 $ 26,649,795 29,341 3,871,256 77,726 30,628,118

Comprehensive income:
Net income 4,139,511 � 4,139,511
Decrease in net unrealized gain on securities
available-for-sale, net of reclassification
adjustment � � � (328,348) (328,348)

Total comprehensive income 3,811,163

Tax benefit on exercise of stock options � 34,523 � � 34,523
Issuance of 25,410 shares; employee stock options
and stock awards 25,410 251,751 � � � 251,751

Dividends declared ($.90 per share) � � (2,747,421) � (2,747,421)

Balances at December 31, 2005 3,071,158 $ 26,901,546 63,864 5,263,346 (250,622) 31,978,134
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Number of
shares Common stock

Paid in
capital

Retained
earnings

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)

Total
stockholders'

equity

Disclosure of reclassification amount: 2005 2004 2003

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period $ (532,520) (185,583) (529,464)
Tax (expense) benefit 204,785 72,467 203,685

Net after tax (327,735) (113,116) (325,779)

Realized gain from discontinued operations � � (376,461)
Tax expense from discontinued operations � � 139,286
Less realized gain allocated to minority interest � � 82,253

� � (154,922)

Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (989) (242,007) (17,587)

Tax expense 376 91,963 6,683

Net after tax (613) (150,044) (10,904)
Portion of unrealized gain allocated to minority interest � � �

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on availiable-for-sale securities $ (328,348) (263,160) (491,605)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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United Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income from continuing operations $ 4,139,511 $ 3,917,959 $ 3,829,285
Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing
operations to net cash from operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 230,000 70,000 778,300
Depreciation 634,449 633,224 545,059
Net (gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment � (4,019) 4,269
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (253,728) 157,249 (5,887)
Amortization/accretion of premiums and discounts on
securities and loans, net 84,779 115,898 173,589
Gain on sale of investment securities (989) (242,007) (17,587)
Non cash compensation expense 36,600 � �
Loss on sale of real estate owned, net 22,964 44,540 �
Writedown of loan premium � � 17,251
Mortgage loans originated and held for sale (165,835,508) (142,395,826) (312,030,881)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale 170,881,861 143,297,079 325,931,522
Gain on sale of loans (3,163,310) (2,803,889) (4,970,369)
FHLB stock dividends (16,900) (102,500) (200,100)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable (599,529) (153,709) 383,642
Decrease in other assets (55,320) (428,038) (88,228)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes 328,673 63,564 (315,265)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable 853,439 174,757 (304,495)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other
liabilities 552,609 (335,805) 649,927

Net cash from continuing operations 7,839,601 2,008,477 14,380,032

Net income from discontinued operations � � 890,716
Adjustments to reconcile net income from discontinued
operations to net cash from operating activities:
Provision for loan losses � � 50,000
Depreciation � � 85,566
Deferred income tax expense � � 12,844
Amortization/accretion of premiums and discounts on
securities and loans, net � � 4,515
Mortgage loans originated and held for sale � � (1,593,426)
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale � � 288,046
Gain on sale of discontinued operations � � (714,129)
FHLB stock dividends � � (4,800)
Increase in accrued interest receivable and other assets � � (343,212)
Increase in accrued interest payable and other liabilities � � 70,327
Net change in minority interest � � 521,372

Net cash from discontinued operations � � (732,181)

Net cash from operating activities 7,839,601 2,008,477 13,647,851

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net increase in loans receivable (47,341,410) (38,318,904) (15,065,216)
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (11,213,717) (18,505,363) (38,652,712)
Proceeds from maturities, calls, paydowns and sales of
securities available-for-sale 14,199,513 22,546,487 40,724,741
Purchases of premises and equipment (681,957) (1,598,302) (1,345,124)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment � 28,750 13,000
Proceeds from sale of real estate and other personal
property owned 312,449 726,017 117,073
Net proceeds from the sale of discontinued operations � � 8,299,630

Net cash from investing activities (44,725,122) (35,121,315) (5,908,608)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 45,356,881 30,820,036 (3,339,205)
Proceeds from FHLB advances 76,100,000 70,250,000 35,000,000
Payments on FHLB advances (78,850,000) (56,455,645) (39,000,000)
Payments on line of credit � � (700,000)
Net decrease in securities sold under repurchase agreements (3,249,739) (391,558) (4,897,823)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 215,151 248,363 78,501
Redemption of common stock � (623,715) (220,110)
Dividends paid to stockholders (2,747,421) (5,061,359) (2,181,826)

Net cash from financing activities 36,824,872 38,786,122 (15,260,463)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (60,649) 5,673,284 (7,521,220)
Less net decrease in cash from discontinued operations � � 3,043,194

Net increase (decrease) in cash from continuing
operations (60,649) 5,673,284 (4,478,026)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 19,187,177 13,513,893 17,991,919

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 19,126,528 19,187,177 13,513,893

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, approximately $ 6,324,000 $ 4,978,000 $ 6,259,000
Income taxes, approximately $ 2,447,000 $ 2,142,000 $ 2,955,000

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing
activities
Loans transferred to other real estate owned $ 113,062 $ 404,325 $ 287,493

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1)    Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)    General

        The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of United Financial Corp. (United), a bank holding company
headquartered in Great Falls, Montana and United's wholly owned subsidiary, Heritage Bank. United's banking business is conducted through its
wholly owned subsidiary, Heritage Bank. United, through Heritage Bank, provides a full range of banking services to individual and corporate
customers in thirteen Montana communities. Heritage Bank is a state-chartered commercial bank with locations in Billings, Bozeman, Chester,
Fort Benton, Geraldine, Glendive, Great Falls (three locations), Hamilton, Havre, Kalispell, Libby, Missoula and Shelby, Montana. Heritage
Bank is engaged in the community banking business of attracting deposits from the general public through its branches and using those deposits,
together with other available funds, to originate commercial (including lease financing), commercial real estate, residential, agricultural and
consumer loans primarily in its market areas in Montana. Heritage Bank's banking business is concentrated in the Great Falls area. Based on
total assets, 41% of United's assets are located at Heritage Bank's Great Falls locations.

        In December 2004, Heritage Bank incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary, HPM, Inc. to acquire land and a building for a new Great Falls
drive-up location, which it then leased it back to Heritage Bank. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

        In January 2006, Heritage Bank sold its 17% ownership interest in Bankers' Resource Center (BRC), a computer data center, located in
Helena, Montana. The data center was owned and operated by a number of Montana banks, including Heritage Bank. BRC provided data
processing services to its bank owners. In 2005, the owners collectively decided to sell the assets of BRC to a non-related third party and to
liquidate the corporation. Heritage Bank will purchase these data processing services from this third party in 2006. While this transaction has
eliminated Heritage Bank's ownership in BRC, and United's data processing services will now be provided by a third party operator, United does
not expect this transaction to have a material effect on United's operations, financial condition or financial results.

(b)    Basis of Presentation

        The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the statement of financial condition and income and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates.

        A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near-term relates to the determination of the allowance for
loan losses. Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate, however, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based
on changes in factors affecting the borrowers' ability to repay. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination
process, periodically review the allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require United to recognize changes to the allowance based on
their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination.

(c)    Cash Equivalents

        For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, United considers all cash, daily interest demand deposits, amounts due from
banks and interest-bearing deposits with banks with original
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maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash flows from customers for loans, deposits and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase are reported net.

(d)    Securities Available-for-Sale

        Securities available-for-sale include all investment securities that management intends to use as part of its overall asset/liability
management strategy and that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates and resultant prepayment risk and other related factors.
Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value and unrealized gains and losses (net of related tax effects) are excluded from earnings and
reported as a separate component of stockholders' equity.

        Declines in the fair value of available-for-sale securities below carrying value that are other than temporary are charged to expense as
realized losses and the related carrying value is reduced to fair value. The cost of any investment, if sold, is determined by the specific
identification method.

        Premiums and discounts on investment securities are amortized or accreted into income using a method which approximates the level-yield
interest method.

(e)    Loans Receivable and Loan Fees

        Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances, less unearned discounts and net of deferred loan origination fees. Interest on loans
is credited to income as earned. Interest receivable is accrued only if deemed collectible. Discounts on purchased loans are amortized into
interest income using the level-yield method over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated prepayments.

        Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. Interest income previously accrued on
these loans, but not yet received, is reversed in the current period. Interest subsequently recovered is credited to income in the period collected.

        Material loan origination fees and related direct origination costs are deferred and the net fee or cost is recognized as interest income using
the level-yield method over the contractual life of the loans, adjusted for prepayments. Origination fees on loans sold to the secondary market are
recognized when the loan is sold. Amortization of deferred loan origination fees and costs and the accretion of unearned discounts are suspended
during periods in which the related loan is on nonaccrual status.

(f)    Allowance for Loan Losses

        The allowance for loan losses is based on management's evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance, including an assessment of United's
past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the
estimated value of any underlying collateral, current economic conditions and independent appraisals. Past-due status is determined based upon
the loan's contractual terms.

        Additions to the allowance arise from charges to operations through the provision for loan losses or from the recovery of amounts
previously charged off. The allowance is reduced by loans charged off. Loans are charged off when management believes the loan's principal
balance, or a portion thereof, is no longer collectable.

        United also provides an allowance for losses on specific loans which are deemed to be impaired. Groups of small balance homogeneous
loans (generally consumer loans) are evaluated for impairment collectively. A loan is considered impaired when, based upon current information
and events, it is probable that United will be unable to collect, on a timely basis, all principal and interest according to
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the contractual terms of the loan's original agreement. When a specific loan is determined to be impaired, the allowance for loan losses is
increased through a charge to expense for the amount of the impairment. The amount of the impairment is measured using cash flows discounted
at the loan's effective interest rate, except when it is determined that the sole source of repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of
the underlying collateral. In such cases, the current value of the collateral, reduced by anticipated selling costs, is used in place of discounted
cash flows. Generally, when a loan is deemed impaired, current period interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current
period interest income. Income on such impaired loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash in excess of any amounts charged off to the
allowance for loan losses is received and where the future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only
when they are brought fully current with respect to interest and principal and when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to
be fully collectible as to both principal and interest.

(g)    Loans Held for Sale

        Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. United expects the
loans to be sold in the short-term. The value of derivative instruments related to commitments to fund loans originated for sale and forward loan
sale agreements are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value, if material, and changes in fair value thereof are recognized in the statement of
income. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, no such amounts have been recognized.

(h)    Goodwill

        Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is not amortized but is
reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if certain indicators arise. United did not incur any goodwill impairment in 2005, 2004 or
2003.

(i)    Restricted Stock Investments

        Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock is a required investment for institutions that are members of the FHLB system. The required
investment in the common stock is based on a predetermined formula and is carried at cost on the statement of financial condition. The stock is
pledged as security for advances from the FHLB. Class B(1) stock can be sold back to the FHLB of Seattle at cost, but is restricted as to
purchase, sale, and redemption. Class B(2) is not a required investment for institutions and is not restricted as to purchase and sale, but has the
same redemption restrictions as class B(1) stock. Included in restricted stock on the statement of financial condition, Heritage Bank has
$3,477,500 and $3,463,400 of class B(1) stock, respectively, at December 31, 2005 and 2004. Heritage Bank held $750,800 and $748,000 of
class B(2) stock, respectively, at December 31, 2005 and 2004. During the second quarter of 2005, the FHLB of Seattle announced that it was
projecting very low net income over the next few years, possibly even losses. The FHLB of Seattle disclosed in a press release that it anticipates
minimal to no dividends during the next few years. While the FHLB of Seattle has ruled that members are no longer required to purchase
additional stock to support borrowing levels, it also is not redeeming member stock. Total annual dividend income United received on this stock
was $.1 million and $.2 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. United did not record any accruals of dividend
income in 2005. United accounts for the restricted stock at cost, with periodic evaluation for impairment. No impairment has been recognized on
this stock.
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(j)    Premises and Equipment

        Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed by straight-line and accelerated methods
over the estimated useful lives of 39 years for buildings, 5 to 40 years for improvements, and 3 to 10 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment.

(k)    Real Estate and Other Personal Property Owned

        Real estate owned represents real estate assets acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure and is comprised of properties
held for sale and held for investment. Foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of fair value less estimated costs to sell, or cost. Fair
value is determined as the amount that could be reasonably expected in a current sale (other than a forced or liquidation sale) between a willing
buyer and a willing seller.

(l)    Stock Repurchase Plan

        In October 2003, a stock repurchase plan was approved by the Board for a period of one year to repurchase up to 187,500 shares, or up to
$3,900,000 of United's common stock. Total shares repurchased under this plan in 2003 and 2004 totaled 41,625 for $843,825, an average price
of $20.27 per share. The program was extended on September 22, 2004 for twelve months, and was further extended on September 22, 2005 for
an additional twelve months. The number of shares United may purchase was reduced to 125,000, with an aggregate purchase price not to
exceed $2.4 million. At December 31, 2005, total shares authorized to be repurchased under the plan remained at 125,000.

(m)    Stock-Based Compensation

        At December 31, 2005, United has a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is described more fully in Note 16. United accounts
for the plan under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, for stock options, as all options granted under the plan
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on
net income and earnings per share if United had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation.

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Net income: As reported $ 4,139,511 3,917,959 4,720,001
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net
income, net of related tax effects 22,692 � �
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (41,754) (52,725) (61,107)

Pro forma net income $ 4,120,449 3,865,234 4,660,917

Earnings per share:
Basic�as reported $ 1.35 1.29 1.55
Basic�pro forma $ 1.35 1.27 1.53
Diluted�as reported $ 1.32 1.25 1.50
Diluted�pro forma $ 1.31 1.23 1.48

93

Edgar Filing: US BANCORP \DE\ - Form S-4/A

121



(n)    Income Taxes

        Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

(o)    Earnings Per Share

        Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic EPS plus
the incremental amount of potential common stock determined by the treasury stock method.

        The following table summarizes stock splits approved by United's Board of Directors.

Date Approved Type of split/dividend Record Date Payable Date Equity Effect

October 25, 2005 5 for 4 stock split, effected as a 25%
stock dividend

December 14, 2005 December 28, 2005 None

May 20, 2003 3 for 2 stock split, effected as a 50%
stock dividend

June 23, 2003 June 30, 2003 None

        Any fractional shares were paid in cash.

        As a result of the above stock splits, all share and per share amounts for time periods prior to these dates have been retroactively adjusted as
if the stock splits occurred on January 1, 2003.

(p)    Long-Lived Assets

        Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the sum of the expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. The
amount of the impairment loss, if any, is based on the asset's fair value, which may be estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows.
There were no impairment losses recognized during 2005, 2004 or 2003.

(q)    Mortgage Servicing Rights

        United recognizes as assets the rights to service mortgage loans for others, whether acquired or internally originated. Servicing assets are
initially recorded based on fair value determined by comparable market quotes and are amortized in proportion to and over the period of
estimated net servicing income. Amortization is netted with loan servicing fees in the consolidated statements of income. Servicing assets are
periodically evaluated for impairment by stratifying the servicing assets based on predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans
including loan type, note rate and loan term. Servicing assets are included in other assets on the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition.

(r)    Comprehensive Income

        Comprehensive income, which includes net income as well as other changes in stockholders' equity that result from transactions and
economic events other than those with stockholders, is reported in a separate statement. United's only significant element of other
comprehensive income is unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, net of tax effects.
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(s)    Segment Reporting

        Operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated by management on a Company-wide basis. Accordingly, all of United's
operations are aggregated in one reportable segment.

(t)    New Accounting Pronouncements

        In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment." This Statement requires United to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange
for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. United will recognize that cost over the period during which
an employee provides service in exchange for the award. The new standard also impacts the presentation of tax benefits received in the
statement of cash flows. United has adopted SFAS No. 123 R effective January 1, 2006. The annual expense associated with outstanding grants
as of December 31, 2005 is currently expected to be approximately $.01 to $.02 per share. This amount is subject to revisions as assumptions are
finalized.

        In May 2005, FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. This statement requires retrospective application
to prior periods' financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects
or the cumulative effect of the change. This statement also requires that any correction of an error in the financial statements of a prior period
discovered subsequent to their issuance shall be reported as a prior-period adjustment by restating the prior period. SFAS No. 154 is effective for
accounting changes and corrections or errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. United's management does not expect the
adoption of this Statement to have a material impact on United's consolidated financial statements.

(2)    Cash on Hand and In Banks

        Heritage Bank is required to maintain an average reserve balance with the Federal Reserve Bank (FRB), or maintain such reserve in cash on
hand. The amount of this required reserve balance at December 31, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $3,781,000 and $3,656,000, respectively.
An additional $25,000 compensating balance is required to be maintained with the FRB for check clearing services.

        United places its cash with high credit quality institutions. The amount on deposit fluctuates, and at times exceeds the insured limit by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, which subjects United to credit risk.

(3)    Securities Available-for-Sale

        The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses, and estimated fair values of investment and mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale
at December 31 are as follows:

2005

Amortized cost

Gross
unrealized
gains

Gross
unrealized
losses

Estimated fair
value

U.S. Government and federal agencies $ 6,500,000 � (77,455) 6,422,545
Mortgage-backed securities 28,161,017 56,037 (361,210) 27,855,844
Municipal bonds 605,000 � (17,683) 587,317
Corporate bonds and equity securities 500,062 � (6,907) 493,155

$ 35,766,079 56,037 (463,255) 35,358,861
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2004

Amortized cost

Gross
unrealized
gains

Gross
unrealized
losses

Estimated fair
value

U.S. Government and federal agencies $ 4,000,000 31,620 (2,190) 4,029,430
Mortgage-backed securities 34,337,879 205,579 (97,612) 34,445,846
Municipal bonds 485,000 � (11,106) 473,894

$ 38,822,879 237,199 (110,908) 38,949,170

        The investment securities shown below currently have fair values less than amortized cost and therefore contain unrealized losses. United
has evaluated these securities and has determined that the decline in value is not related to any company or industry specific event. As detailed
below, there are forty and eighteen investment securities with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. United
anticipates full recovery of amortized cost with respect to these securities at maturity or sooner in the event of a more favorable market interest
rate environment.

        The length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, aggregated by investment category at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

More than 12 Months Less than 12 Months Total

December 31, 2005
Estimated
fair value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Estimated
fair value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Estimated
fair value

Gross
unrealized
losses

U.S. Government and federal
agencies $ 988,430 (11,570) 5,434,115 (65,885) 6,422,545 (77,455)
Mortgage-backed securities 10,622,191 (230,923) 10,766,351 (130,287) 21,388,542 (361,210)
Municipal bonds 467,317 (17,683) � � 467,317 (17,683)
Corporate bonds and equity
securities � � 493,155 (6,907) 493,155 (6,907)

$ 12,077,938 (260,176) 16,693,621 (203,079) 28,771,559 (463,255)

More than 12 Months Less than 12 Months Total

December 31, 2005
Estimated
fair value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Estimated
fair value

Gross
unrealized
losses

Estimated
fair value

Gross
unrealized
losses

U.S. Government and federal agencies $ � � 997,810 (2,190) 997,810 (2,190)
Mortgage-backed securities 1,528,785 (18,883) 13,718,955 (78,729) 15,247,740 (97,612)
Municipal bonds � � 473,894 (11,106) 473,894 (11,106)

$ 1,528,785 (18,883) 15,190,659 (92,025) 16,717,444 (110,908)

        Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or
market concerns warrant such evaluation. In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent
and ability of United to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
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        Maturities of securities available-for-sale by contractual maturity at December 31, 2005 are shown below. Maturities of securities do not
reflect repricing opportunities present in many adjustable rate securities. In addition, mortgage-backed securities may be prepaid without
penalty. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, market values of variable rate securities included in securities available-for-sale are $11,571,863 and
$16,469,562, respectively.

Amortized
cost

Estimated fair
value

Due within one year $ � �
Due after one year through five years 3,485,062 3,417,957
Due after five years through ten years 1,000,000 991,640
Due after ten years 3,120,000 3,093,420
Mortgage backed securities 28,161,017 27,855,844

$ 35,766,079 35,358,861

        Gross proceeds from sales of securities were $1,750,235, $3,543,019 and $1,890,658 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively, resulting in gross gains of $989, $242,007 and $17,587 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

        At December 31, 2005 and 2004, investment securities with an amortized cost of $33,592,609 and $37,201,851 respectively, were pledged
on FHLB advances, repurchase agreements, public deposits, and other purposes as permitted or required by law.

(4)    Loans Receivable, Net

        Loans receivable, net of unamortized net deferred loan fees, at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2005 2004

First mortgage loans and contracts secured by real estate $ 114,302,901 100,322,421
Commercial real estate loans 79,036,076 51,017,462
Commercial loans 65,576,077 65,107,859
Agricultural loans 16,577,382 15,108,587
Consumer loans 40,255,382 37,163,026

Allowance for loan losses 315,747,818 268,719,355
(3,751,263) (3,708,362)

$ 311,996,555 265,010,993

        A summary of activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31 follows:

2005 2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,708,362 3,755,197 3,113,081
Provision for loan losses 230,000 70,000 778,300
Losses charged off (217,531) (184,573) (148,089)
Recoveries 30,432 67,738 11,905

Balance, end of year $ 3,751,263 3,708,362 3,755,197
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        Loans contractually past due in excess of 90 days and loans classified as non-accrual are summarized as follows (rounded to even dollars):

December 31,

2005 2004

Loans 90 days past due and still accruing $ 30,000 75,000
Non-accrual loans � 327,000

$ 30,000 402,000

        The following table presents data on impaired loans:

2005 2004 2003

Impaired loans for which a specific allowance has been provided $ 260,000 348,000 589,000
Impaired loans for which no specific allowance has been provided � � �

Total loans determined to be impaired $ 260,000 348,000 589,000

Allowance for loan loss for impaired loans included in the allowance for
loan losses $ 62,000 148,000 88,000

Average recorded investment in impaired loans $ 308,000 427,000 571,000

Interest income recognized from impaired loans $ 18,000 8,000 19,400

(5)    Premises and Equipment

        Premises and equipment at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2005 2004

Land $ 1,879,441 1,856,625
Building and improvements 6,494,126 6,254,210
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,025,075 3,736,309

12,398,642 11,847,144
Accumulated depreciation (3,880,072) (3,376,082)

$ 8,518,570 8,471,062
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(6)    Deposits

        Deposits at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2005 2004

Weighted
average rate Amount % Amount %

Demand accounts �%$ 56,641,508 18.7 47,489,541 18.4

NOW and money market accounts ..96% 33,914,270 11.2 35,974,153 13.9
Savings accounts 1.20% 51,472,467 16.9 54,426,865 21.1

Certificates of deposit: 1.00 to 1.99% � � 74,465,946 28.8
2.00 to 2.99% 23,508,585 7.7 3,774,100 1.4
3.00 to 3.99% 71,948,279 23.7 25,804,019 10.0
4.00 to 4.99% 64,155,972 21.1 13,408,034 5.2
5.00 to 5.99% 1,479,730 .5 1,776,213 .7
6.00 to 6.99% 545,059 .2 1,018,142 .4
7.00 to 7.99% 25,195 � 197,171 .1

Total certificates of deposit 3.66% 161,662,820 53.2 120,443,625 46.6

Total interest-bearing deposits 2.77% 247,049,557 81.3 210,844,643 81.6

2.26% $ 303,691,065 100.0 258,334,184 100.0

        Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit at December 31, 2005 are as follows:

2006 $ 112,777,799
2007 21,778,473
2008 17,740,686
2009 4,995,401
2010 4,076,122
Thereafter 294,339

$ 161,662,820

        Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more are $40,429,950 and $29,110,108 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

        Certificates of deposit balances include $18,300,000 and $8,395,000 of brokered deposits at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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(7)    Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

        Federal Home Loan Bank advances at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2005 2004

2.47% to 4.68% fixed rate advances, interest payable monthly $ 34,000,000 36,500,000
4.48% adjustable rate advance, interest payable monthly 3,000,000 �
5.52% putable advance, put options exercisable quarterly, interest payable
monthly 2,000,000 4,000,000
3.57%, fixed rate amortizing advance, interest payable monthly 3,044,355 4,294,355

$ 42,044,355 44,794,355

        The weighted average interest rate on these advances was 4.01% and 3.41% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

        Contractual principal repayments on advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2006 $ 23,000,000
2007 11,000,000
2008 8,044,355

$ 42,044,355

        Advances from the FHLB are secured by pledges of FHLB stock and a blanket assignment of Heritage Bank's otherwise unpledged,
qualifying mortgage loans, mortgage-backed securities and U.S. Government and federal agency securities.

        At December 31, 2005, the current established available FHLB advance credit line for Heritage Bank was 25% of its assets. Based upon the
current collateral pledged to the FHLB, Heritage Bank has an additional available credit lines of approximately $96,434,000 as of December 31,
2005.

(8)    Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

        Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at December 31 consist of the following:

2005

Repurchase
amount Weighted

average
rate
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